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Benpres Holdings Corporation (Benpres) was incorporated in 1993
by the Lopez family to serve as the holding company for investments
in four major sectors: broadcasting and cable; telecommunications;
power generation and distribution; and banking. It has since sold
its interest in banking and added to its portfolio investments in
other basic service sectors such as infrastructure and property
development.

mission
Benpres is a conglomerate committed to excellence in public service.
Through its investments in power generation, electricity distribution and toll
roads, Benpres provides infrastructure vital to nation building. Through its
interests in media and communications, telecom and cable, Benpres allows
members of Filipino families to reach out to one another, and to the world.

values
In fulfilling its mission to serve all Filipinos, Benpres adheres to the
attendant values of nationalism, integrity, entrepreneurship and innovation,
teamwork, and a strong work ethic.
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financial highlights
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

					
		
2007
2006
2005
EARNINGS PER SHARE			
Basic				
For income attributable to equity holders of the Parent
1.171
0.9379
0.1731
For income from continuing operations attributable
to equity holders of the Parent		
1.171
0.9379
0.0773
For income from discontinued operations attributable
to equity holders of the Parent		
0.0958
Diluted			
For income attributable to equity holders of the Parent
1.170
0.9374
0.1731
					
			(Amounts in Million Pesos)
TOTAL CONSOLIDATED REVENUES		
19,891
TOTAL CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME			
Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent		
5,365
Minority Interest		
563
		
5,928
			
TOTAL CONSOLIDATED ASSETS		
48,329
TOTAL EQUITY		
16,134

17,020

17,047

4,297
405
4,702

793
407
1,200

47,937
13,584

45,262
9,080

Benpres AR 2007
Financial Highlights

1

at-a-glance
Power Group through investments in
First Philippine Holdings Corporation

First Gen Corporation

Manila Electric Company

The largest vertically-integrated
power generation company in the
country with an installed capacity
of 2,582 MW

The largest electric utility in the
Philippines with a franchise area
covering 9,337 square kilometers,
home to 20 million people

2007 Highlights

2007 Highlights

• Won the bid for the
government’s 60%
controlling interest in
PNOC-EDC
• 5.8% hike in
consolidated revenues
to US$1.11 billion
• Net income jumped
by 23.6% to
US$181.83 million
year-on-year
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• Entered the PerformanceBased Rate Making
(PBR) regime in 2007,
an internationally accepted
rate setting methodology
adopted by the ERC that
provides electric utilities
with adequate and efficient
capital and operating
expenditures
• Total revenues grew by 5.2%
to P200.69 billion
• Consolidated net income of
P4.04 billion in 2007

Communications Group

ABS-CBN Broadcasting
Corporation
The largest news and
entertainment content provider
in the Philippines that produces
multimedia programming for
domestic and international
audiences

2007 Highlights
• Differentiated itself
by providing multiple
platforms for creative
content
• Consolidated revenues
increased by 16.9% to
P19.89 billion
• Net income soared by
71.1% to P1.27 billion

Infrastructure through
investments in First Philippine
Infrastructure Development
Corporation

Sky Cable Corporation

Property
Development

The largest cable operator
in the country offering
both prepaid and
post-paid services

Bayan
Telecommunications, Inc.

Manila North Tollways
Corporation

Rockwell
Land Corporation

Customer service leader
and innovator, the pioneer
in wireless landline

The gateway to
Northern Luzon offers
world-class service,
safety and convenience

2007 Highlights

2007 Highlights

The country’s trendsetting self-contained,
mixed-use community is
venturing outside Makati
into a greater Rockwell

• Consolidated
EBITDA grew to
P996 million
• Net proﬁt of
P658.08 million
in 2007
• Trend-setting
Platinum service
offers subscribers
with as much as
120 digital cable
channels

• Total revenues
rushed up by 15.45%
year-on-year to
P5.52 billion
• Net income rallied
263% to P2.05 billion
• Internet revenues
which cover Bayan’s
DSL business
breached the
P1.0 billion
revenue mark

2007 Highlights
• Net revenues
lower by 3.7%
year-on-year at
P5.50 billion due
to the toll rate
reduction
• Toll rate reductions
partly offset by
a 4.8% year-onyear increase
in average daily
traffic to 146,819
• Net income
improved by 13.9%
to P1.93 billion

2007 Highlights
• Revenues surged
by 20.1% to
P3.52 billion
• Net income
increased by
28.9% to
P475.96 million
• Embarked on its
first land
acquisition outside
Rockwell Center in
July 2007 with
“The Grove”
Benpres AR 2007
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We have remained consistent with the vision of our founding
fathers to serve our people well through fair, transparent and
prudent business practices.
Oscar M. Lopez
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Fellow shareholders,
A subprime crisis morphing into a credit

and generally low interest rates. The

crisis and escalating into a financial

strong peso, thanks to remittances by

meltdown that humbled the proudest

Filipino overseas workers, was quite

names in international finance plagued

helpful and enabled government to

the business environment in 2007. That

achieve fiscal targets by bringing down

same crisis of confidence continued

the peso equivalents of its foreign

into the first quarter of 2008 and is now

currency-denominated debts. The strong

feeding an American recession with all

peso also helped minimize the impact

its attendant gloomy scenarios of lives

of rising commodity prices such as

being turned upside down.

petroleum imports on the local economy.

Thus, it was not surprising that investor

As is the situation in other emerging

daring and creativity turned into

economies, there were, and still are,

caution almost overnight in most of

good reasons to stand by the Philippines.

the developed economies. While the

While external trade, affected by the

newly emerging economies are expected

continued weakness of the US economy

to also start feeling the impact of

posed a negative influence on export

the economic woes of the developed

growth, domestic demand played an

economies, there are still reasons to

increasingly vital role in the economy as

be upbeat and even optimistic. Indeed,

both consumer and investor confidence

rising commodity prices from oil to coal

held up well. Private consumption

and wheat to rice while contributing

expenditure grew by 6.0 percent in real

to the crisis in the West, are actually

terms, supported by benign inflation and

being fueled by demand from emerging

better labor market conditions. Overall

economies that continue to grow amidst

investment spending expanded further to

the economic turmoil in the developed

9.3 percent in real terms with business

world.

sentiment continuing to remain high

“Thus, 2007
was a year for
bold decisions
for many of
the companies
under the
Benpres wing. “

as indicated by results of the Business
In the Philippines, our macroeconomic

Expectation surveys of the Bangko

data reveals that the GDP (gross

Sentral ng Pilipinas.

domestic product) growth rate of 7.3
percent exceeded market expectations

As such, more and more opportunities

and is so far the strongest since the

opened up last year, especially in

economy registered its last peak growth

infrastructure development. Thus, 2007

of 8.8 percent in 1976. The Philippines

was a year for bold decisions for many of

also enjoyed a year of relatively low

the companies under the Benpres wing.

inflation, which averaged 2.8 percent,
Benpres AR 2007
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“It was a year
during which
our power
generation
‘grandchild’,
First Gen
Corporation,
purposely bid
for various
government
assets under
privatization.”

And we did make those bold decisions

the investment community. Earlier, in

as we made sure we didn’t let such

January 2008, First Gen sold

opportunities pass us by.

US$260 million-convertible bonds at a
coupon rate of 2.5 percent and an initial

Thus, it was a year that saw our group of

conversion price of P63.72 per share.

companies almost double our stake in
Meralco, the largest electric utility in the

Consistent with our commitment to

country, through affiliate First Philippine

clean and sustainable sources of energy,

Holdings Corporation which bought

First Holdings has entered into a joint

shares held by the Meralco Pension Fund

venture with Sunpower of the US to

and Union Fenosa.

provide wafer slicing services for the
solar power industry. Whatever else that

It was a year during which our power

we decide to enter going forward, it will

generation ‘grandchild’, First Gen

be in keeping with First Gen’s stature as

Corporation, purposely bid for various

the largest vertically-integrated power

government assets under privatization

generation company in the Philippines,

— and won the biggest prize of all:

with a bias for “clean and green” energy.

controlling interest in PNOC-Energy

First Gen now has an installed capacity

Development Corporation to the tune of

of 2,582 megawatts and accounts

P58.5 billion.

for approximately 16 percent of the
country’s total installed capacity.

It was a year when your Company and its
parent, Lopez, Inc., together purchased

In the communications sector, our

US$43 million worth of debt held by

investees continued to hold their ground

Asian Infrastructure Fund, of which they

amid stiff competition in their respective

are co-obligors. The debt was purchased

industries. ABS-CBN Broadcasting

for US$32.20 million, with the Company

Corporation (ABS-CBN) continued to

paying US$25.80 million and Lopez, Inc.

differentiate itself by providing multiple

paying US$6.40 million.

platforms for creative media content
and its profts recovered by 71 percent

The new investments of First Holdings

to over a billion pesos in 2007. Bayan

and First Gen meant arranging for new

Telecommunications, Inc. played its

debt for these associated companies,

maverick telecom role and led in the

even as Benpres, their parent company,

wireless local loop business with its

continued to negotiate terms of its own

innovative Bayan Wireless Landline. And

financial restructuring with creditors.

Sky Cable Corporation, while pushing its

It is, thus, most gratifying that when

signal encryption effort to reduce piracy

First Holdings and First Gen embarked

and increase legal connections, finally

on their own fund-raising exercises in

turned the corner to reverse several

2008, investor response was strong.

years of losses with a modest net

First Holdings issued P4.30 billion worth

income of about a hundred million.

of preferred shares in April 2008, up
from the originally planned P3.00 billion

6
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Years Beyond

On the global front, the impact of the
recession in the United States is starting

As the Philippines strives to join the

to be felt in our export figures. Exports

ranks of the prosperous economies of

have started to slow down, specially in

Southeast Asia, our group of companies

semiconductors; risk aversion of foreign

is committed to support this vision

investors has resulted in lower inflows

through timely investments in power,

of portfolio investments in our stock

infrastructure and communications, and

market; and overseas Filipinos, specially

the prudent management of resources

in the United States have a diminished

to always provide our fellow Filipinos

ability to increase their remittances as

with the choice of top-of-class services.

well as to invest in local real estate

But for now, a lot would depend on how

developments that were, until last year,

well the Philippine economy will adjust

simply booming.

to the turbulence in the world economic
environment.

Still and all, hopeful notes were sounded
recently by Deutsche Bank. “A worsening

The first half of 2008 has seen inflation

trade deficit due to energy and food

rising above government projections of

imports are a worry, but if remittances

5 percent for the whole year. The rice

were to merely meet the expected growth

situation is presenting threats to our

of 10 percent, this gap should easily be

fiscal position because of the huge

offset,” according to a bank report.

amounts of subsidies that must be
provided to ensure that the poor have

The enormous challenges in the global

access to affordable rice. A subsidy of

and national business environments

at least P20 billion is expected, placing

make it necessary for Benpres itself

total outstanding subsidies to the

to remain focused. Concluding the

National Food Authority at P100 billion.

Company’s financial rehabilitation is
still at the top of our agenda. We aim to

With the difficulties being experienced in

conclude it on terms that will allow us

meeting increased tax collection targets

to fully participate in exploiting the many

and the need to finance critical social

opportunities for growth that we expect

services from education to health care,

now and in the next few years.

the ability of government to keep within
its fiscal deficit target is increasingly

While Benpres itself cannot at this

dim. The potential impact of a bigger

time support the huge investment

fiscal deficit on the country’s credit

requirements of such associates as First

rating, and other macroeconomic factors

Holdings and First Gen, a permanent

should signal caution to local business.

closure to its restructuring should

On the positive side, the rice crisis would

provide the Group more elbow room to

hopefully spur government to take a

grow with the economy.

serious look at the country’s need for a
comprehensive population program.

Indeed, I have called this year “the year
of CFOs or chief financial officers.” We
went to market this year to finance over
Benpres AR 2007
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“As Lopez,
Inc., the
parent
company
of Benpres,
celebrates
its 80th
foundation
anniversary
in 2008,
allow me to
share with
you, fellow
shareholders,
the beginnings
of what is now
referred to
as the Lopez
Group of
companies.”

the medium term, our 2007 purchase

(ERC) to replace the Return on Rate

of Meralco and PNOC-EDC shares. We

Base (RORB) for both transmission and

paid a good price for them, and we came

distribution businesses as mandated by

in when the value-creating potential of

the Electric Power Industry Reform Act. It

those assets were at their highest. It

provides electric utilities with adequate

is for us to now unlock and realize that

and efficient capital and operating

potential for the benefit of shareholders,

expenditures to meet growing electricity

as well as our customers.

demand through timely rate adjustments.
It also provides financial incentives on

I have also called 2008 “the year of

improvements made on ERC-mandated

execution and performance.” In particular

performance measures.

for Meralco, the challenge rests on
many things. Although the economy

The 80th Year

seems to be on the rise, the growth in
demand for electricity in the industrial

As Lopez, Inc., the parent company of

and manufacturing sectors remains

Benpres, celebrates its 80th foundation

slow. Since the price of oil breached

anniversary in 2008, allow me to share

US$100 per barrel, political pressure to

with you, fellow shareholders, the

keep electricity rates below cost— an

beginnings of what is now referred to as

unsustainable proposition— has to

the Lopez Group of companies. It was in

be withstood with determination and

1928 when my father, Eugenio H. Lopez,

fortitude.

Sr. and his brother, former Vice President
of the Republic Fernando Lopez, signed

To its credit, Meralco has met its most

the co-ownership agreement for the

signiﬁcant business objectives: reducing

business operations of E&F Lopez

its systems loss, and again improving

Enterprises, the original private holding

its customer satisfaction rating, as

company of our family and today known

measured by third party surveys. This is

as Lopez, Inc.

why we are confident that Meralco will
remain the service provider of choice,

Raul Rodrigo, who has written five

in a deregulated environment that is

books for the Lopez Group in the last

emerging.

10 years, traced the historical roots of
the Lopez family in business. Founded

Meralco entered the Performance-Based

in the 1830s by Basilio and Sabina

Rate Making (PBR) regime in 2007.

Lopez, the family started business in

The PBR is an internationally accepted

rice trading, lumber and weaving. From

rate setting methodology adopted by

1860 to 1927, generations of Lopezes

the Energy Regulatory Commission

accumulated sugar lands in Negros and
Iloilo and built two sugar centrals without
resorting to bank financing.
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In 1928, the birth of E&F Enterprises

Throughout this period of 80 years, we

augured a different way of doing

have continually been true to the values

business—and defined what can now be

attendant to the practice of our public

called the Lopez DNA in business:

service philosophy: entrepreneurship

1) willing to break old paradigms;

and innovation, integrity, nationalism,

2) predisposed to be a pioneer, and ready

teamwork and a strong work ethic. We

to invest in leading-edge technology;

have also persistently subscribed to good

3) aimed at serving the Filipino market;

governance, business excellence and

4) oriented toward opportunities in mass

social responsibility as core values on

media and public utilities (airlines, buses,

which to anchor a sustainable enterprise.

taxis, shipping); and 5) resilient despite

We have remained consistent with the

adversity.

vision of our founding fathers to serve our
people well through fair, transparent and

That Lopez DNA from 1928 still defines the

prudent business practices.

way the Lopez Group does business today.
It is a conglomerate committed to serving

We are commemorating this year the

Filipinos, ready to invest in leading-edge

legacy of my father and the colorful history

technology to serve them better, constantly

of the business he and my uncle founded,

on the lookout for new opportunities to

not only to remember the past but also to

pioneer in service, and ready to absorb

serve as our guide in the challenging time

setbacks and disappointments on the way

before us.

to long-term success.
Thank you for your confidence in your board
The Lopez business model isn’t the

and in your management team.

easiest. Being in media and utilities
exposes it to political risk as it fights a
legacy of subsidized rates. Being willing
to pioneer means it will bring innovations
to market before the market is ready. And
serving Filipinos is making a really longterm bet on the health of the Philippine
economy. The significance of the Group’s
80 years has more to do with WHY it is in
business rather in how big it becomes or
how much money it makes. It is here to
make a difference.

Oscar M. Lopez
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer

Benpres AR 2007
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Your management team is determined to fulfill your mandate to enhance shareholder
value, as we strive to strengthen the foundation for your Company’s future.
Angel S. Ong
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The 1997 Asian financial contagion

grew by 28 percent to P13.60 billion

exacted a heavy toll on Benpres by

while revenues from the company’s

either destroying the value of its major

international arm, ABS-CBN Global, grew

investments or delaying execution of long

by 13 percent as it continued to expand

gestation projects intended to provide

its reach in foreign markets. ABS-CBN’s

private sector support for our country’s

international business now accounts for

development. Noteworthy is the sterling

one-fifth of its consolidated revenues.

performance of Benpres investees in
the last three years, achieved under

SkyCable is the turnaround story of

quite challenging circumstances. It

the year as it reported its first full year

demonstrates that with perseverance

of profitability with a net income of

and proper execution, a turnaround can

P658.08 million after several years of

be made possible and hopefully will be

losses. In 2007, Sky Cable successfully

sustained over the long term.

reduced the number of non-paying
subscribers, rolled out its prepaid

In 2007, your company posted a net

service, and reduced its debt levels.

income attributable to equity holders of
parent of P5.37 billion – a 25 percent

Bayan’s total revenues increased by

rise from last year’s P4.30 billion.

15 percent to P5.52 billion as it

Fueling the growth was the strong

maintained the growth momentum

performance of the various subsidiaries

of its data services revenues and as

and associates of Benpres.

its wireless landline service took off.
Consequently, net income grew fourfold

Operational Highlights of
Subsidiaries and Associates

to P2.05 billion.
First Philippine Holdings, meanwhile,

ABS-CBN’s profits soared to P1.27 billion

achieved consolidated revenues of

in 2007 or 71.1 percent higher year-on-

P60.52 billion, lower by 5 percent

year. Despite an industry wide slowdown

compared to the previous year. Net

in ad spending, ABS-CBN managed

income attributable to equity holders

to post a 17 percent increase in

of the parent stood at P4.48 billion,

consolidated revenues, on the strength

49 percent lower from last year due to

of its airtime revenues and international

the previous year’s one-time gain from

business. In 2007, airtime revenues

dilution of equity interest in First Gen

“In 2007, your
company
posted a
net income
attributable to
equity holders
of parent of
P5.37 billion
– a 25 percent
rise from last
year’s P4.30
billion. Fueling
the growth
was the strong
performance
of the various
subsidiaries
and associates
of Benpres.”

and the reversal of Meralco’s provisions.
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“The year
2007 was
an exciting
year for First
Philippine
Holdings as
it realized
its goal to
become the
single largest
shareholder
in Meralco
through two
strategic
acquisitions
that raised
its effective
ownership
to 33.4
percent.”

The year 2007 was an exciting year for

Luzon Expressway increase by 5 percent

First Philippine Holdings as it realized

despite the continuous increase in fuel

its goal to become the single largest

prices. Thus, despite the implementation

shareholder in Meralco through two

of the 11 percent reduction in toll rates

strategic acquisitions that raised its

in 2007, net revenues at P5.50 billion

effective ownership to 33.4 percent. The

were only 4 percent lower year-on-year.

company also increased its authorized
capital stock to P32 billion to support

Property arm, Rockwell, likewise enjoyed

future strategic investments. In addition,

a banner year as it started its first

its subsidiary First Gen won the bid

development outside of the Rockwell

for the government’s 40 percent stake

Center enclave with the construction

in PNOC-EDC, the country’s largest

of three buildings targeted at business

geothermal producer.

process outsourcing companies. At
the same time, its latest condominium

The toll road business, through First

development, One Rockwell, enjoyed

Philippine Infrastructure Inc., saw

brisk sales as Joya Lofts and Towers was

average daily traffic along the North

sold out.

The table below summarizes the contributions of the subsidiaries
and affiliates to your company.
Subsidiary/

Net Income attributable to

Associate

equity holders of parent

First Holdings

4,475

43.15%

1,931

FPII

1,498

48.08%

720

ABS-CBN

1,267

58.27%

738

Rockwell

476

24.50%

Total

117

3,506

With the exceptional performance of its subsidiaries and affiliates,
Benpres received P1.27 billion in cash dividends in 2007.

Subsidiary/Associate

Cash Dividends (in PHP mn)

First Holdings

508

FPII

312

ABS-CBN

201

Total
Benpres AR 2007
President’s Report

(in PHP mn)

(in PHP mn)

Rockwell

12

BHC Share
% Ownership

245

1,266

Notwithstanding the continued

Debt restructuring discussions with

competitive pressures faced by

our creditors are on-going and Benpres

subsidiaries and affiliates, we believe

continues to pay interest on its debt.

that the robust business models, by
which these companies create value

Foundation for the Future

for their customers, will allow them to
continue dividend payments in 2008

Your management team is determined

and beyond.

to fulfill your mandate to enhance
shareholder value, as we strive to

Debt Restructuring Update

strengthen the foundation for your
company’s future.

In 2007, your company was able to buy
back US$43 million in debt held by the

A successful conclusion of a debt

Asian Infrastructure Fund at a 40 percent

restructuring will signal a return to

discount, thus bringing down the debt

normalcy and will allow your company to

level to approximately US$365 million

definitively pursue growth initiatives and

from previous year’s US$408 million.

long-term projects.

In April 2008, Benpres successfully sold

Thank you for your support.

its 18 percent ownership in Professional
Services, Inc., owner and operator of The
Medical City, for P600 million.
In addition, the listing of the toll road
business was completed in 2007
through a back door listing using
dormant listed company City Resources.
This is in line with Benpres plan to
monetize its toll road investment by way
of private placement or public offering so
that it can further reduce its debt.

Angel S. Ong
President and
Chief Operating Ofﬁcer

Benpres AR 2007
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power
In 2007, First Philippine Holdings
Corporation (FPHC) achieved consolidated
revenues of P60.52 billion, 5 percent lower
than P63.74 billion the previous year. Net
income attributable to equity holders of
the Parent was at P4.48 billion, lower by
49 percent from P8.75 billion the previous
year.
In October 2007, FPHC shareholders
ratified in a special meeting FPHC’s
increase in authorized capital stock
to P32.1 billion from P12.1 billion, as
approved by the board of directors.
200 million preferred shares with a
par value of P100 each were created
in support of the increase. New capital
raised in 2008 will support the hike
in FPHC’s stakes in core investments
such as Meralco, First Gen Corporation
and Manila North Tollways Corporation.
Further, such capital may be used for new
strategic investments in infrastructure,
manufacturing and property, and to
refinance debt.
FPHC will directly and indirectly own
33.4 percent of Meralco after completing
the purchase of shares held by First
Philippine Union Fenosa and by the
Meralco Pension Fund.

Power
Generation
First Gen Corporation (First Gen) posted
a 5.8 percent increase in consolidated
revenues to US$1.11 billion in 2007
compared to 2006. Net income improved
by 23.6 percent to US$181.83 million
year-on-year (YoY) from US$147.08 million
in 2006.
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The increase was driven by contributions

for one month in 2007. A total of

from the gas plants, which attained

US$32.77 million was expensed at

one of the highest dispatches in the

the First Gen and Red Vulcan levels

country last year. The contribution of

to cover for underwriting fees, finance

the gas plants was also derived from

charges, interest payment on the

adjustments in the fuel inventory of

acquisition financing for PNOC EDC,

both plants, US$3.0 million insurance

and a net unrealized forex loss of

claim from FGP Corp. and the effects of

US$12.0 million on the First Gen Peso

the power augmentation projects. The

bonds. At an auction on November 21,

Pantabangan-Masiway hydroelectric

2007, First Gen won the bid for the

plants had its first full year of operations

government’s 60 percent stake in PNOC-

under First Gen management,

EDC (Philippine National Oil Company-

contributing a total of US$22.0 million

Energy Development Corporation).

which includes US$13.0 million of

Publicly-listed PNOC-EDC is the largest

unrealized forex gain from the US Dollar

geothermal producer in the Philippines

denominated PSALM loans.

with over 1,100 MW of steam capacity.
First Gen bid P58.5 billion or P9.75 per

First Gen’s 40 percent economic

share, besting three other groups that

stake in PNOC-EDC contributed

tried to acquire the block of shares held

US$16.70 million. This is First Gen’s

by the government and the PNOC-EDC

share of PNOC EDC’s net income

Retirement Fund.

On PNOC-EDC
First Gen Corporation bested three other groups that vied for the acquisition of the
government’s 60 percent controlling interest in PNOC-EDC (Philippine National Oil
Company-Energy Development Corporation) at a public auction on November 21,
2007. Publicly listed PNOC-EDC is the largest geothermal producer in the Philippines
with over 1,100 MW of steam capacity. First Gen bid of P58.5 billion or P9.75 per
share.
PNOC-EDC, which draws from an environmentally friendly power source, contributes
over 60 percent of the country’s installed geothermal capacity. It operates in seven
geothermal steamfields in five contract areas where it has exclusive rights to
geothermal exploration, development and utilization through service contracts with
the government. It is responsible for making the Philippines the second largest
producer of geothermal energy in the world, after the United States.
PNOC-EDC produces geothermal steam which it sells to National Power Corporation
(Napocor) and to independent power producers who use it to produce electricity
under a build-operate-transfer scheme. In addition, it is vertically integrated to offer
technical consultancy services to third parties worldwide, as well as for its own
steamfields and power plants.
Benpres AR 2007
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before the Supreme Court. In December

Power
Distribution

2006, the High Court overturned the Court

Manila Electric Company (Meralco)

Total revenues rose by 5.19 percent to

reported a consolidated net income of

P200.69 billion in 2007 from

P4.04 billion in 2007, lower than the

P190.79 billion in 2006, while total

P13.88 billion recorded in 2006. Net

expenses increased by 5.47 percent to
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tariffs allowed by the Energy Regulatory
Commission (ERC) in 2003.

income in 2006 would have been

P194.69 billion from P184.59 billion

P3.66 billion without the reversal of

largely due to higher power costs, and

probable losses in the amount of

operations and maintenance expenses.

P15.73 billion, as a result of the favorable

Revenues from the sale of electricity

ruling of the Supreme Court on Meralco’s

grew by 5.14 percent to P196.17 billion

unbundled rate case. Meralco reversed

from P186.58 billion, brought about by the

provisions for probable losses earlier

rise in overall electricity sales by

made in the event of a final and executory

4.6 percent. Sales to commercial

adverse decision on its unbundling case
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of Appeals decision nullifying unbundled

customers grew by 6.0 percent, while sales

with LGUs and government agencies.

to the industrial sector and the residential

Meralco entered the Performance-Based

segment increased by 4.2 percent and

Rate Making (PBR) regime in 2007. The

3.3 percent, respectively.

PBR is an internationally accepted rate
setting methodology adopted by the ERC

Capital expenditures amounted to

to replace the Return on Rate Base (RORB)

P6.47 billion in 2007. The investments

for both transmission and distribution

were used primarily to address customer

businesses as mandated by Republic

load growth, replace obsolete electrical

Act 9136 or the Electric Power Industry

facilities and reduce system loss. In terms

Reform Act. PBR provides electric utilities

of system efficiency, system loss level hit a

with adequate and efficient capital and

record low of 9.65 percent, the lowest level

operating expenditures to meet growing

in 28 years.

electricity demand through timely rate
adjustments. It also provides ﬁnancial

This was mainly due to new approaches in

incentives on improvements made on ERC-

pilferage management, review of system

mandated performance measures.

loss related processes and partnerships
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communications

Media
ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation

by 27.6 percent to P13.60 billion from

(ABS-CBN) continued to face stiff

P10.66 billion, following an advertising rate

competition in 2007 and focused on key

increase and growth in ad minutes.

programming and process improvements
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to build on the previous year’s gains. It

Sale of services improved by 12.5 percent

continued to differentiate itself by providing

to P5.30 billion from P4.71 billion, led

multiple platforms for creative content

by ABS-CBN Global which accounted for

through VHF and UHF television, cable, AM

70 percent of total sale of services.

and FM radio, film, recording, magazines,

ABS-CBN Global had an estimated

internet and mobile phones.

1.7 million viewers as of end-2007.

As a result of this resolute approach, net

Total expenses rose by 12.9 percent

income soared by 70.9 percent to

to P17.63 billion from P15.61 billion,

P1.27 billion in 2007 from P742.54 million

with production costs, general and

in 2006. Consolidated revenues increased

administrative expenses, cost of sales

by 16.9 percent to P19.89 billion, from

and services, and agency commission,

P17.02 billion the previous year. Despite

incentives, and co-producers’ share all

another downturn in the TV advertising

expanding by 13.6 percent, 7.6 percent,

industry, ABS-CBN’s airtime revenues grew

25.2 percent, and 18.2 percent,
respectively.

Entertainment programs such as Deal or No Deal and news
broadcasts are aired on multiple platforms for ABS-CBN’s
local and global viewers.

ABS-CBN conducted test broadcasts
of digital terrestrial television (DTTV) in
Pampanga and Bulacan in 2007. Test
audiences attested to the clarity of TV
reception and the ease of programming
the set-top boxes, electronic decoders
that convert ABS-CBN’s digital signals for
TV sets. ABS-CBN’s DTTV aims to recover
audiences in areas where reception of
its low band signal suffers from technical
interference.
ABS-CBN’s digital signals for TV sets. ABS-CBN’s DTTV aims to
recover audiences in areas where reception of its low band
signal suffers from technical interference.
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Cable
Sky Cable Corporation (Sky Cable) posted
a net profit of P658.08 million in 2007,
reversing several years of losses.
Consolidated EBITDA grew to
P996 million from P803 million the
previous year. Subscription revenues grew
by 8.1 percent while expenses edged up
by only 4 percent as programming costs
benefited from the stronger peso.
The country’s largest cable service
provider continued to innovate by offering
the country’s first digital cable TV service.
With the launch of its DigiBox, Sky Cable
is now capable of offering subscribers
different programming tiers from Sky
Cable’s Prepaid service which allows
subscribers to “load” as little as 3-days
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worth of cable viewing, to its trend-setting
Platinum service which offers subscribers
as much as 120 digital cable channels.
The Digibox enriches the cable viewing
experience by offering digital quality
signals. It also includes features such
as Electronic Program Guides that let
the viewers know what they are watching
and what is coming up for the rest of the
week, Parental Locks for non-child friendly
programming, and interactive video games.
The DigiBox addresses the problem of
cable theft as well by encrypting the cable
signal, thereby preventing illegal tapping
into Sky Cable’s network.

The early results of the prepaid cable
service remain encouraging. In areas
where prepaid has been launched, Sky
Cable has seen up to a 70 percent
growth in the number of subscribers.
With additional capital funding, Sky Cable
aims to increase the coverage of the
prepaid service to nearly 50 percent of its
franchise area in Metro Manila over the
next two years.
Sky Cable remains committed to Sky
Cable remains committed to innovating
its product line-up to better serve its
markets. For 2008, Sky Cable will be
launching high-definition programming
(HDTV) as well as Personal Video
Recorders (PVR) which allow subscribers
to pause, rewind, and forward while

they are watching live program feeds.
PVR’s will allow subscribers to record as
much as 80 hours worth of programs. Sky
Cable will also be expanding the coverage
of its broadband internet service and
increasing the available bandwidth to the
home. These plans are geared toward
rejuvenating the postpaid subscriber
business by increasing the Average
Revenue per Subscriber.
Sky Cable’s financial turnaround, overall
growth and continued industry leadership
is attributable to its willingness to innovate
and invest in new strategies.

SkyCable headend monitors channels and signal quality 24x7
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Telecom
Bayan Telecommunications, Inc. (Bayan)
banked on its industry-leading wireless
landline business to sustain business
growth in 2007.
Total revenue of P5.52 billion was
15 percent better than the P4.78 billion
posted during the previous year. Coupled
with the impact of the stronger peso,
Bayan’s net income grew by 262.8 percent
at P2.05 billion in 2007 from
P565.19 million in 2006. Revenue growth
was driven by a 10.1 percent gain in
voice services to P3.37 billion from
P3.06 billion, with wireless landline
contributing more than 20% of the
revenues. Data and Internet business
gained 27.2 percent YoY, at P2.06 billion
versus P1.62 billion.
Internet revenues which cover Bayan’s DSL
business breached the P1.0 billion revenue
mark, gaining 60 percent over the previous
year of P627 Million.

Customers are served at Bayan Centers in malls
and other convenient locations.
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Revenues from international leased
lines also grew 20 percent, which can
be attributed to Bayan’s gaining market
presence in the offshoring and outsourcing
(O&O) industry.
As Bayan grew its wireless businesses,

New Bayan
Identity

its core business of residential landlines,
DSL and data services to the corporate

Bayan unveiled a new brand

sector continued to deliver stable revenue

identity in 2007 to signal its drive

streams that can be funneled into further

toward bringing customer-driven

building the network infrastructure,

communication solutions to improve

expansion of coverage, and further

the lives of Filipinos. Its new logo is a

elevating customer service quality

communication bubble inspired by a lava

standards.

lamp liquid increasing in size. It signifies
the company’s progressive nature and

Bayan was able to meet all debt service

innovativeness.

requirements under its Court-approved
rehabilitation plan.

Its new tagline, Gaganda pa ang buhay,
summarizes Bayan’s unique brand
promise to the customer. Bayan goes
all out to be the consumer champion
by delivering reliable products and
services, through honest and responsive
employees. It is Bayan’s vision to be
kakaiba, that is, to make a difference
by bringing out the best in the lives of
Filipinos.
And Bayan delivered: 8 out of 10
Bayan customers tracked from a
comprehensive nationwide customer
satisfaction rating expressed very
positive experience of Bayan service.
Also, the independently conducted study
showed 50 percent of them consider
themselves loyal to Bayan as a brand,
despite the aggressive acquisition
schemes of competitors.
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infrastructure
Tollways
Net revenues of Manila North Tollways

Effective AOVP implementation led to an

Corporation (MNTC) were lower by

increase in the compliance rate based

3.7 percent YoY at P5.50 billion from

on all vehicles weighed to 80.3 percent

P5.71 billion, due to the toll rate reduction.

versus 78.2 percent the previous year.

Nonetheless, net income improved by
13.9 percent to P1.93 billion from

In December 2007, the joint venture

P1.69 billion, as unrealized foreign

group of FPHC, Egis Road Operation and

exchange gains and lower interest

Tollways Management Corporation (TMC),

and financing charges from the peso’s

operations and maintenance (O&M) service

appreciation compensated for higher

provider of the North Luzon Expressway

operating expenses.

for MNTC, was awarded the contract
for the interim O&M of the Subic-Clark-

The toll rate reduction was partly offset by

Tarlac Expressway (SCTex) by the Bases

a 4.8 percent YoY increase in average daily

Conversion Development Authority. The

traffic to 146,819. Revenues from Class

interim contract is good for six months

3 vehicles (trucks and trailers) recovered

beginning the start of commercial

by 2.9 percent, after falling in 2006 due

operations scheduled in the second

to the strict implementation of the Anti-

quarter of 2008.

Overloading Vehicle Program (AOVP).
TMC is 46 percent owned by First
Philippine Infrastructure Development
Corporation (FPIDC), 34 percent by Groupe

End-to-end travel through the North Luzon Expressway
is down to 46 minutes.
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MNTC, LTO
deputize TMC
Egis through Transroute, and 20 percent
by Philippine National Construction
Corporation. As of end-2007, FPIDC was
owned 51 percent by FPHC and 49 percent
by Benpres.
In 2007, Benpres and FPHC began the
process of reviving dormant publicly- listed
company City Resources (Phil.) Corporation
(CRC) to hold the Lopez Group’s interest
in toll road infrastructure development.
A share-swap with Benpres and FPHC
resulted in the transfer of FPIDC shares to
CRC. In addition to its stake in TMC, FPIDC
owns 67.1 percent of MNTC. The SEC
approved the increase in CRC’s authorized
capital to P5.40 billion from P335 million.
Upon completion of legal requirements
within 2008, CRC, renamed First Philippine
Infrastructure, Inc. (FPII), will fully own
FPIDC. FPII will then be owned 50.9 percent
by FPHC, 48.9 percent by Benpres, and
0.2 percent by public shareholders.

Manila North Tollways Corporation (MNTC) enlisted
the services of Tollways Management Corporation
(TMC) to implement its Anti-Overloading Vehicle
Program (AOVP), which aims to prolong the life
span and pavement quality of the roadway, fulfill
warranty requirements and preclude huge repair
and rehabilitation costs of the North Luzon
Expressway (NLEX).
The AOVP is anchored on Republic Act 8794,
which imposes motor vehicle users’ charge for all
types of motor vehicles. This law prohibits motor
vehicles, particularly trucks and trailers, from
loading beyond their prescribed axle load limit,
which is 13,500 kilograms or 13.5 metric tons
per axle. Vehicles that exceed the axle load limit
of 13.5 metric tons will not be allowed to proceed
on the carriageway and will be escorted up to the
nearest exit. An amount equivalent to 25 percent
of the Motor Vehicle User’s Charge or the vehicle
registration fee shall be imposed.
Weigh bridges and portable weigh scales are used
by the Department of Public Works and Highways
and its authorized representatives—including
TMC for the NLEX—to measure the axle load of
a vehicle. Specifically for the NLEX, TMC uses
weighing scales provided by the MNTC in line with
the AOVP.
The load limit under Philippine law is 13.5 tons
per axle, a very liberal limit compared to such
countries as China (10.0 tons), Nepal (9.3 tons),
the US (9.1 tons), and Australia (6-10 tons).
In addition to implementing the AOVP, TMC is
deputized by the Department of Transportation
and Communications-Land Transportation Office
(DOTC-LTO) to enforce the Land Transportation
Laws, Rules and Regulation along North Luzon
Expressway (NLEX).
The potential total value of penalties based on
citations at the NLEX, following heading and
guideline from the LTO, was P45.69 million in
2007, 11 percent more than the potential value of
penalties from citations of P41.18 million in 2006.
This does not mean that LTO actually collected the
amounts as these were subject to adjudication.
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other investments
Rockwell Land
Corporation

Rockwell Land Corporation (Rockwell Land)
revenues surged by 20.1 percent to
P3.52 billion from P2.93 billion in 2006.
This was attributed to a strong growth
in residential condominium sales which
accounted for 60.3 percent of total
revenues. The balance was contributed by
retail and cinema operations.
Net income increased by 28.9 percent to
P475.96 million from P369.28 million.
Total assets grew by 27.9 percent.
Rockwell Land also undertook an increase
in authorized capital stock from P6 billion
to P9 billion in preparation for future equity
fund-raising activities.
Gaining headway in 2007 was the
construction of three towers for top
corporations and business process
outsourcing (BPO) companies, a joint
venture with Meralco which owns
51 percent of Rockwell. Total leasable
space will be 76,282 square meters.
According to plans, Tower 1 is set for
completion in January 2009, Tower 2 in
March 2009, and Tower 3 in May 2009.
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Rockwell embarked on its first land
acquisition outside Rockwell Center in July
2007 with The Grove, the company’s foray
into the broader middle-income market.
Located along C-5 Road, it will consist
of five towers with over 2,600 units. The
Grove will be the first in the market to
provide its buyers with a 75 percent open
and landscaped environment. It is slated
for sales launch in the first half of 2008.

Professional
Services, Inc.
(The Medical City)

The Medical City’s profit from hospital
operations went up by 25.8 percent to
P440.87 million from P350.53 million
in 2006. Due to a loss on the sale of
investment property, however, the hospital
registered a net loss of P410.81 million
for 2007. The Medical City posted a loss
of P681.44 million on the sale of the land
in its old location. Nonetheless, operations
continued to improve with gross profit

Rockwell rocks
Rockwell’s residential units continued to sell well in
2007, with 97 percent of Joya Towers & Lofts and
91 percent of One Rockwell taken up by yearend.

increasing by 12.4 percent and revenues
by 17.6 percent.
A private tertiary care hospital, The
Medical City launched in 2007 The
Medical City Cancer Center as a flagship
program. It created an integrated multidisciplinary team to focus on cancer
patients’ unique needs and enhance
their quality of life and those of their
caregivers. The Center will cover many
aspects of the cancer spectrum,
including prevention, early detection,
diagnosis, treatment and rehabilitation.

One Rockwell, the company’s signature project,
started pre-selling in January 2006, broke ground
in the first quarter of 2007, and is slated for
completion in 2010. It adds to Rockwell’s reputation
as a trendsetter by introducing the country’s first
Z-loft units.
The East Tower, with its unique angular lightning
rod-shaped exterior, is a pioneer in itself. No other
building in the country boasts of ten different views
of a city. It has a total of seven corners with its
highest point reaching 45-storeys high. The top-most
levels cascade down and round out with 41-storeys.
The Sky Deck located at the 41st level will be
providing residents with a 180-degree breathtaking

The various units composing the team
are: Medical, Molecular, Radiation
Oncology Units; Breast Cancer Unit;
Thoracic Cancer Unit; Colorectal, Upper
Gastrointestinal and Liver Cancer Units;
Head and Neck Cancer Unit; Gynecologic
Cancer Unit; Musculoskeletal Cancer
Unit; Hematologic Cancer Unit; Urologic
Cancer Unit; Pediatric Cancer Unit; and
Neurologic Cancer Unit.

view.
The West Tower complements the East Tower’s
sharp edges with its curvilinear structural design.
It is made up of two halves that seem to slightly
slide away from each other at the center. It will be
the tallest residential building in Rockwell Center at
55-storeys high. An infinity pool will be located at the
53rd level with clear glass used for railings.

A private testing care hospital, The Medical City serves some
40,000 inpatients and 380,000 outpatients a year
Benpres AR 2007
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Manuel M. Lopez

Eugenio Lopez III

Manuel M. Lopez (aged 65) has

Eugenio Lopez III (aged 55) has

been a director of the company

been director and treasurer of the

since inception. He is a holder of

company since inception. He received

a Bachelor of Science degree in

a Bachelor of Arts degree in Political

Business Administration and attended

Science from Bowdoin College and

the Program for Management

a Masters degree in Business

Development at the Harvard Business

Administration from the Harvard

School. He is the chairman of

Business School. He has been

Meralco, and Rockwell Land, and is

chairman and chief executive officer

a director of FPHC and Lopez, Inc. He

of ABS-CBN since 1997, president

was president of Meralco from 1986

and director of Sky Cable, and vice

to June 2001. He owns 7,090,460

chairman of the board of Bayan,

Benpres shares.

among others. He was president of
ABS-CBN from 1993 to 1997. He
owns 16,829 Benpres shares.

Oscar M. Lopez
Chairman
Oscar M. Lopez (aged 78) assumed the
presidency in 1999 and has chaired the
company’s board since inception. He
received a Bachelor of Arts degree from
Harvard College and a Masters degree
in Public Administration from Harvard
University. He is chairman and chief
executive officer of FPHC (since 1986),
chairman and president of Lopez, Inc.
(since 1999) and chairman of among
others, FPIDC, MNTC, TMC, Bayan
and SkyCable. He is vice chairman of
the board of Rockwell Land and is a
director of ABS-CBN. He personally
owns 8,611,911 Benpres shares.
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board of directors

Angel S. Ong

Vicente T. Paterno

Washington Z. Sycip

Felipe B. Alfonso

(Independent)

(Independent)

Angel S. Ong (aged 58) was elected

Felipe B. Alfonso (aged 70) has

Washington Z. SyCip (aged 85) has

Vicente T. Paterno (aged 81) has

director and president and chief

been a director of the company

been a director of the company since

been a director of the company since

operating officer in 2004. He was the

since 1996. He has been EVP–

1996. He is an independent director. He

2004. He is an independent director.

Company’s EVP-chief financial officer

Human Resource Development

received a Bachelor of Science degree

He received a Bachelor of Science

from 2001 to 2004 and vice president

since January 2001. He received

in Commerce from the University of Sto.

degree in Mechanical Engineering

for finance from 1998-2000. He

a Bachelor of Laws degree from

Tomas and a Master of Science degree

from the University of the Philippines

received his Bachelor of Science in

the Ateneo de Manila University

in Commerce from Columbia University.

and a Masters degree in Business

Commerce degree from the Philippine

and a Masters degree in Business

He is chairman of the board of trustees

Administration (with distinction)

College of Commerce and a Masters

Administration from New York

and board of governors of the Asian

from Harvard University. He is the

degree in Business Administration

University. He has been co-vice

Institute of Management, and Honorary

founding chairman of Philippine

from the University of the Philippines.

chairman of the board of trustees of

Chairman of Euro-Asia Centre, INSEAD of

Seven Corporation and chairman

He is a director of ABS-CBN and

the Asian Institute of Management

France. He is also a member of the Board

of Phil-Seven Holdings Corporation.

MNTC, among others. He owns one (1)

(AIM) since September 1999.

of Overseers of the Columbia University

He owns one (1) Benpres share.

Benpres share.

He was AIM president from June

Graduate School of Business, and a board

1990 to 1999. He is currently vice

member of the Joseph H. Louder Institute

chairman of Meralco. He personally

of Management and International Studies,

owns one (1) Benpres share.

University of Pennsylvania. He owns one
(1) Benpres share.

Officers
Oscar M. Lopez

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Manuel M. Lopez

Salvador G. Tirona
Chief Finance Officer

Cielito R. A. Diokno

Vice Chairman of the Board

Vice-President-Human Resources

Angel S. Ong

Enrique I. Quiason

Eugenio L. Lopez III

Maria Amina O. Amado

President and Chief Operating Officer
Treasurer

Corporate Secretary
Compliance Officer
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corporate social
responsibility
Lopez Group
Foundation
In 2007, Lopez Group Foundation, Inc.
(LGFI) continued to work toward realizing
the donation of chairman Oscar M. Lopez
of several hectares of family-owned
raw agricultural land to a cooperative
consisting of over a hundred accredited
victim families of the Guimaras oil spill.
This was complemented by the offer of
technical assistance from the LGFI as
representative of the Lopez family in
developing together with the families a
community assistance program using the
land as the primary resource. Both offers
were well received during the consultations
which the community’s local council had
facilitated.
LGFI engaged a non-government (NGO)
organization as partner and provider of
technical assistance in dealing with the
issues faced by the affected families
and to maximize the benefits from the
donation. To indicate their sincerity, and
as an incentive for the victims to start up
agro activities at the site, LGFI built a water
well. The NGO partner provided assistance
to those who qualified as beneficiaries
under a voluntary land transfer of the
government’s land reform program into
organizing a cooperative. This was
eventually registered by the government
agency. Those members who failed to
meet the qualifications were given the
opportunity to join later.
LGFI hired the services of a legal team to
arrange the process of legal transfer. The
process, however, has been affected by
the problems arising from the country’s
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centuries-old system of titling lands that
is still prevalent in the rural areas. The
legal team attended to various claims
when the boundaries were being drawn
and recommended actions for their
settlement. Finally, they cleared some
15 hectares of the original donation and
are now proceeding to the completion of
legal documentation. A formal transfer
of the legal ownership to the cooperative
remained pending as of end-2007.
Despite this hurdle, funding support from
LGFI and technical assistance from the
NGO partner allowed the cooperative to
organize, plan and pilot agro-farm and
other activities for the benefit of the
residents of Barangay La Paz, Nueva
Valencia, Guimaras.
Forbes Asia named chairman Oscar
M. Lopez as one of the “Heroes of
Philanthropy in Asia” in its March 10,
2008 issue. The publication chose four
philanthropists each from 13 selected
countries and territories in the Asian region
to highlight the rising investments being
made in corporate altruism.
In 2007 alone, Lopez group member
companies donated at least P100 million
toward CSR projects conducted by
organizations which may or may not be
LGFI members. At the same time, LGFI
member foundations disbursed some
P130 million in funds received from all
donors, including those from Lopez group
companies. A member, ABS-CBN Bayan
Foundation, Inc., provided over P900 million
of loans to microentrepreneurs.

The following are member-foundations of LGFI:
• ABS-CBN Bayan Foundation, Inc.
• ABS-CBN Foundation, Inc.
• Don Senen Gabaldon Foundation
• Eugenio Lopez Foundation, Inc.
(The Lopez Memorial Museum)
• First Philippine Conservation, Inc.
• Knowledge Channel Foundation, Inc.
• Meralco Management & Leadership
Development Center Foundation, Inc.
• Meralco Millennium Foundation, Inc.
• Phil-Asia Assistance Foundation, Inc.

Engaged in continuing dialogue, LGFI and beneficiaries in
Guimaras plan socioeconomic programs using land donated
by the Lopez family as a primary resource.
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corporate governance
Quality Management
In 2003, Benpres was certified against the

practice of public relations that reflect and

standards of the International Organization

promote public interest, good values, and

for Standardization or ISO 9001:2000 for

genuine service. The Philippine Quill of

the provision of management services in

the International Association of Business

Finance and Accounting, Public Relations,

Communicators recognizes excellence

and Human Resources as a holding

in business communications through

company. In 2006, Benpres was re-certified

thought leadership, strategic management,

for the provision of the same management

creativity, resourcefulness and successful

services, and added Legal Services

solutions.

to the audited processes in its quality
management system since.

Corporate Governance

As part of its continuing compliance with

composed of seven members, two of whom

ISO-certified quality processes, it adopted

are independent directors.

the following Quality Policy:

The board of directors of Benpres is

In 2002, the board of directors of Benpres

Benpres exists to lead in quality

adopted the company’s Manual of

management practices and adheres to

Corporate Governance to institutionalize

good corporate governance in the conduct

corporate governance principles.

of all business.

The Board, management, employees, and

It is committed to provide the highest

shareholders believe that good corporate

standard of service to shareholders,

governance is a necessary component of

affiliates, regulators, creditors, and

sound strategic business management and

employees.

improves the economic and commercial
prosperity of the corporation and its

It shall innovate and continually pursue

stockholders.

improvements in all services and
processes to achieve business excellence.

Recognition

A copy of Benpres’ Manual of Corporate
Governance was submitted to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on

Benpres received an Anvil Award of Merit

September 2, 2002. It also now forms

and a Philippine Quill Award of Merit

part of the quality management system of

in 2007 for its group-wide publication,

Benpres as a reference and guide (RM-

LopezLink. It received an Anvil Award

BHC-04-01) for the conduct of all business.

of Excellence and a Gold Quill Award of
Merit for the same publication in 2006.

No amendments to the Manual were

The Anvil Awards of the Public Relations

adopted in 2007.

Society of the Philippines embody the
highest levels of excellence in the
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Board meetings
Regular board meetings are held at least

Compensation and
Remuneration Committee

once a month. In 2007, the Board had

The Compensation Committee has

eleven (11) meetings.

established a formal and transparent

Audit Committee

procedure for developing a policy on
executive remuneration and for fixing

The Audit Committee checks all financial

the remuneration packages of corporate

reports against its compliance with

officers and directors. It has three

both the internal financial management

members, one of whom is an independent

handbook and pertinent accounting

director.

standards, including regulatory
requirements. It performs oversight
financial management functions specifically
in the areas of managing credit, market,
liquidity, operational, legal and other risks
of the Corporation, and crisis management.
It consists of three Board members,
two of whom are independent directors.
The internal audit group of affiliate First
Philippine Holdings Corporation serves as
internal auditor of Benpres.

Nomination
and Election Committee
The Nomination Committee pre-screens
and shortlists all candidates nominated
to become a member of the board of
directors. Two members of the committee
are independent Board directors.
The following guidelines are used in
determining the eligibility of nominees: the
nature of the business of the corporations
in which he is a director; age of the
director; number of directorships/active
memberships and officerships in other
corporations or organizations; and possible
conflict of interest.

Board Committees
Audit Committee
Vicente T. Paterno - Chairman
Manuel M. Lopez
Washington Z. SyCip
Nominations and Election
Committee
Oscar M. Lopez
Manuel M. Lopez
Eugenio Lopez III
Angel S. Ong
Washington Z. SyCip
Vicente T. Paterno
Felipe B. Alfonso
Compensation and
Remuneration Committee
Oscar M. Lopez
Angel S. Ong
Vicente T. Paterno

Corporate
Code of Conduct
In 2006, the Board approved a Corporate
Code of Conduct to govern and guide the
actions of all its representatives in dealing
with its publics: shareholders, customers,
joint venture partners, suppliers and
service providers, government, and
creditors.
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The Code covers all directors, employees,

denominated obligations and a portion

consultants, product and service providers

of Philippine peso-denominated debt at a

and all persons who act for and in behalf

40% discount.

of Benpres Holdings Corporation.

of Benpres Holdings Corporation have

Foreign Currency Exchange
Risk and Foreign Currency
Revaluation Risk

been implementing a corporate risk

Volatility in foreign currency exchange rates

management program since 2002, in line

may expose Benpres to economic and

with an enterprise-wide risk management

accounting losses related to large direct

system championed by chairman Oscar M.

and indirect foreign currency-denominated

Lopez.

obligations. Extraordinary fluctuations

Risk Management
The executive officers and staff members

in foreign currency exchange rates may
Risks that may hinder the achievement

affect reported operational profits and

of corporate goals and objectives are

deficit, potentially reducing the ability

identified and reviewed annually to ensure

of associated companies to declare

mitigation measures are in place to

dividends.

adequately respond to and manage such
risks.

Top Risks

the company’s foreign currency debt by
US$43 million. It is also monitoring the

to be most significant and/or most likely

mitigation plans of associated companies

and appropriate mitigation strategies were

in relation to foreign currency revaluation

prepared and/or implemented to address

risk.

Capital availability or
cash flow (liquidity) risk

Interest rate risk
Fluctuations in interest rates affect the
company’s capital availability or cash

This risk refers to the company’s exposure

flow risk as they expose the company to

to the risk of lower returns on its

variable cash requirements in relation to

investments or the necessity to borrow

debt with floating interest rates.

due to shortfalls in cash or expected cash

Equity investment risk

flows, or variances in their timing. The
restructuring plan is based on cash flows
from dividends and asset sales and these
may not come in as expected.
In November 2007, Benpres bought
back a portion of its principal US dollar-
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undertaken in 2007, which directly reduced

In 2007, the following risks were assessed

them:
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The risk was eased by the debt buyback

This refers to the company’s exposure to
fluctuations in the value of equity securities
or income streams from equity ownership
in associated companies. Benpres has
direct and indirect equity investments in
the following publicly listed companies

whose market value as measured by
market capitalization changes daily:

Sovereign/Political risk
Many of the company’s operating units are

ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation, First

engaged in regulated businesses, subject

Philippine Holdings Corporation, Manila

to political pressure. Independent coverage

Electric Company, First Gen Corporation,

by ABS-CBN News and Current Affairs of

PNOC-EDC, First Philippine Infrastructure,

political events and personalities may

Inc. (formerly City Resources (Phil.) Corp.,

lead to adverse regulatory action toward

and Digital Telecommunications (Phils.),

associated companies.

Inc.

Strategic information/
Valuation risk

To mitigate this risk, Benpres supported
the efforts of operating units for lawful,
fair, and transparent rate-setting in power

This refers to the lack of relevant and

generation, power distribution and toll

reliable valuation information that may

roads. ABS-CBN News and Current Affairs

preclude prospective investors from

remains independent in its coverage of

making informed assessments of the

all newsworthy events and personalities.

value of the firm or any of its significant

It adopted a world-class Standards and

segments in a strategic context.

Ethics Manual to govern the actions of all

To manage this, the company is in constant

news personnel and enhance the credibility

communication with associated companies

and reputation of the institution for

to obtain updated and realistic financial

integrity and fairness. ABS-CBN provides all

models of their operations, as well as how

news subjects, regardless of political and/

such relate to the company. In addition,

or business affiliation, with the opportunity

key Benpres officers are either elected

to respond to unfavorable reports.

as member of the board in associated
companies or sit in as observer in
management committee or board meetings
of associated companies to ensure the

Customer (Stakeholder)
Wants Risk
Requirements of Benpres stakeholders

parent company is kept abreast of the

vary and Benpres is unable to meet

latest developments in said companies.

all requirements in a timely manner.

Legal (Shareholder) risk

Regulators require compliance with

Since beginning the process of debt
restructuring in June 2002, Benpres
shareholders have faced the risk of losing
control over the company’s financial
rehabilitation should creditors file for courtassisted corporate rehabilitation.
As the success of the restructuring
process will be based on consensual
agreement, Benpres management keeps in

rules and regulations; creditors require
the settlement of all obligations under
restructuring; shareholders require a fair
return on their investment; associated
companies require financial and other
forms of support; senior management
requires current and accurate information
on group-wide operations; and employees
require compensation and benefits.

contact with creditors.
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of consensual financial restructuring.

Audit Committee
Statement on
External Auditors

Completing the process will pave the way

Benpres paid or accrued the following fees,

to address the needs of shareholders,

including VAT, to its external auditors in the

employees, and associated companies.

past two years:

To mitigate this risk, Benpres continued
to work with creditors for the completion

Regulatory and senior management needs
were adequately served by Benpres officers
and staff members in 2007.

Other risks
Also in 2007, the following risk mandated

Audit & Audit-related fees
2007

P680,000

2006

P652,930

for assessment by IFRS (International
Financial Reporting Standards) was

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. was engaged by

deemed to be less significant and/or less

Benpres solely to audit its annual financial

likely:

statements. It was not engaged to provide

Capital management

any other (non-audit) services for Benpres

Under the Balance Sheet Management
Plan, cash is reserved for debt service
and working capital requirements. The
company has no material commitments for
capital expenditures and has not made any
major investments since 2002. Proceeds
of asset sales are placed in short-term
financial instruments under the company’s
ISO-certified Money Market Operations
procedure. Payment requirements for
goodwill interest and operating expenses
are withdrawn using the same process.
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in 2007.

management discussion
and analysis
Key Performance Indicators
As a holding company, Benpres receives

Other income (+63.3 percent) reflect ABS-

revenues from asset sales and dividends

CBN accounts. Foreign exchange gains

from investees.

amounted to P3.24 billion,
+3.5 percent the previous year’s

Hence, the key performance indicator with

P920 million. The peso appreciated

the most direct impact on Benpres is the

further against the dollar in 2007, closing

net income of investees. In 2007, the

the year at P41.28, compared to P49.03

financial performance of investees was

at the end of 2006 and P53.09 at the end

within expectations. It received a total of

of 2005.

P1.27 billion in dividends from investees
ABS-CBN, FPHC, FPIDC (parent company of

Equity in net earnings of associates

MNTC), and Rockwell Land. It also received

decreased by 39.2 percent to

net proceeds of P104 million from the sale

P2.84 billion from 2006’s P4.67 billion,

of Digitel shares.

which included non-recurring income
received by FPHC from the initial public

Results of Operations of Benpres
and its Subsidiaries for the year
ended December 31, 2007
compared with
December 31, 2006

offering of First Gen. Generally low interest

Benpres

Also benefiting from the strong peso,

Benpres registered consolidated revenues

Provisions for decline in value of

of P19.89 billion in 2007, 16.9 percent

investments at equity, deposits and

rates and the stronger peso in 2007
account for decreases in Finance costs
(-17.7 percent) and in finance revenue
(-11.6 percent).

better than P17.02 billion in 2006. Net

advances declined by 62.2 percent. In

income improved by 26.2 percent to

addition, Benpres purchased some debt

P5.93 billion from P4.70 billion the

(see discussion of Liquidity and Capital

previous year. Net income attributable to

Resources) prior to interest due date in

the equity holders of the Parent amounted

the second half of 2007 resulting in lower

to P5.37 billion (+24.9 percent) in 2007

interest payments for the period. Gain

versus P4.30 billion in 2006.

on sale of available-for-sale investments
slid 33.6 percent to P79 million as fewer

Airtime (+27.6 percent), Sales and

shares of Digital Telecommunications

services (+9.5 percent), and License

(Phils.), lnc. (Digitel) were sold during

fees (-50.9 percent) represent ABS-CBN

the year.

revenues while Production costs
(+13.7 percent), General and
administrative expenses (+7.4 percent),
Agency commission, Incentives and coproducer’s share (+18.2 percent), Cost of
sales and services (+25.2 percent), and
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There was no Excess of payable over

Bayan’s total revenue of P5.52 billion was

carrying value of disposed investment. The

15 percent better than the

2006 figure of P286 million represents the

P4.78 billion posted during the previous

sale of Corporate Informations Solutions.

year. Coupled with the impact of the

Loss on dilution was 313.8 percent more

stronger peso, Bayan’s net income grew

at P269 million in 2007 (compared to

by 240.1 percent at P2.05 billion in 2007

P65 million in 2006) as a result of

from P565.19 million in 2006. Revenue

availments of the employee stock purchase

growth was driven by a 6.65 percent

plan of FPHC.

gain in voice services to P3.37 billion
from P3.06 billion, with wireless landline

Associates

contributing more than 20 percent of the

ABS-CBN net income soared by

revenues. Data and Internet business

70.9 percent to P1.27 billion in 2007 from

gained 27.2 percent YoY, at P2.06 billion

P743 million in 2006. Consolidated

versus P1.62 billion.

revenues increased by 16.9 percent to
P19.89 billion, from P17.02 billion the

Sky Cable posted a net profit of

previous year. Despite another downturn

P658.08 million in 2007, reversing

in the TV advertising industry, ABS-CBN’s

several years of losses. Consolidated

airtime revenues grew by 27.6 percent

EBITDA grew to P996 million from

to P13.60 billion from P10.66 billion,

P803 million the previous year.

following an advertising rate increase and

Subscription revenues grew by 8 percent

growth in ad minutes.

while expenses edged up by only
3.5 percent as programming costs

In 2007, FPHC achieved consolidated

benefited from the stronger peso.

revenues of P60.52 billion, 5.1 percent
lower than P63.74 billion the previous year.

Rockwell Land revenues surged by

Net income attributable to equity holders

20.1 percent to P3.52 billion from

of the Parent was at P4.48 billion, lower by

P2.93 billion in 2006. This was attributed

49 percent from P8.75 billion the previous

to a strong growth in residential

year.

condominium sales which accounted
for 60.2 percent of total revenues. The

Net revenues of MNTC were lower by

balance was contributed by retail and

3.7 percent YoY at P5.50 billion from

cinema operations.

P5.71 billion, due to the toll rate reduction.
Nonetheless, net income improved by
14.2 percent to P1.93 billion from
P1.69 billion, as unrealized foreign
exchange gains and lower interest
and financing charges from the peso’s

Liquidity and Capital Resources
of Benpres (Parent Company
Only) for the year ended
December 31, 2007 compared
with December 3, 2006

appreciation compensated for higher
operating expenses.

As of December 31. 2007, the company’s
total assets stood at P14.36 billion,
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3 percent lower than P14.87 billion as

exchange gains as the principal debt was

of end-2006. Current assets increased

revalued at a more favorable peso-dollar

to P2.38 billion from P1.40 billion.

rate as of end-2007. Unrealized gain on

Other current assets ballooned 16x as

fair value adjustments of available-for-sale

noncurrent available-for-sale investments

investments dropped by 15.2 percent to

were reclassified as current assets,

P821 million from P968 million due to the

boosting other current assets to

lower market value of Digitel shares. Digitel

P1.56 billion.

shares closed the year at P1.84 per share
versus P1.96 per share in 2006.

The decrease in plant, property and
equipment (-14.6 percent) is mainly due

Total stockholders’ equity at yearend

to regular depreciation while the decline

increased by 34.9 percent, reducing the

in other noncurrent assets (-88.3 percent)

deficit to P18.18 billion from

is due to the reclassification to current

P21.55 billion, given the net income

assets of investments available-for-sale,

posted in 2007.

comprising interests in Digitel, The Medical
City, and BayanTrade Dotcom as the

In 2007, Benpres voluntarily made

company expects to sell its investments in

payments on its direct and contingent

these assets within the next 12 months.

obligations that are covered in its proposed

The company added pension plan assets,

Balance Sheet Management Plan (BSMP).

increasing its value by 20 percent to

Pending agreement with its creditors on

P36 million from P30 million. Total

the BSMP, the company offered to make

noncurrent assets declined by 11 percent.

payments semi-annually based on the
following rates:

Trade and other payables added
14.7 percent to P5.07 billion from

(a) At LIBOR plus a spread of 1.0

P4.42 billion, to account for the accrual

percent on all of its US dollar

of interest on obligations based on

obligations but shall not exceed 6

contracted rates. Estimated liabilities

percent p.a.; and

from guarantees and commitments were
reduced by 31 percent to P7.1 billion

(b) At the 182-day PDST-F rate plus a

from P10.30 billion with the purchase of

spread of 1.0 percent on all of its

US$43 million worth of debt held by Asian

peso obligations but shall not exceed

lnfrastructure Fund. The current portion

9 percent p.a.

of interest-bearing loans and borrowings
decreased by 12.5 percent to P8.18 billion
from P9.36 billion, representing foreign
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As of December 31, 2007, Benpres had
US$317 million and P1.99 billion in
direct and contingent obligations.

		

At Dec 31, 2007

(In millions)		

Php

US$

At Dec 31, 2006
Php

US$

Direct Obligations
Long-term Commercial

1,990		

2,000

Paper (LTCP)
Eurobond 7.875% Notes 			

150		

150

167		

210

-			

220

Contingent Obligations
BayanTel			
Maynilad				

In November 2007, the Company and
Lopez, Inc. together purchased US$43
million worth of debt held by Asian
lnfrastructure Fund, of which they are
co-obligors. The debt was purchased for
US$32 million, with the Company paying
US$26 million and Lopez. Inc. paying
US$6 million.
On January 19, 2007, the Company
officially exited from Maynilad Water
Services, Inc. and deleted US$220
million of guaranteed obligations.
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Statement of Management’s Responsibility
for Financial Statements

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION

The management of Benpres Holdings Corporation is responsible for all information and representations contained
in the consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. The financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and reflect amounts that
are based on the best estimates and informed judgment of management with appropriate consideration to materiality.
In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides for the necessary
internal controls to ensure that transactions are properly authorized and recorded, assets are safeguarded against
unauthorized use or disposition and liabilities are recognized. The management likewise discloses to the company’s
audit committee and to its external auditors: (i) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
controls that could adversely affect its ability to record, process, and report financial data; (ii) material weaknesses in
the internal controls; and (iii) any fraud that involves management or other employees who exercise significant roles in
internal controls.
The Board of Directors reviews the consolidated financial statements before such statements are approved and
submitted to the stockholders of the Company. SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appointed by
the stockholders, have examined the consolidated financial statements of the Company in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards in the Philippines and have expressed their opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion of such examination, in their report to the Board of Directors and stockholders.

Oscar M. Lopez
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Salvador G. Tirona
Chief Finance Officer
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Independent Auditors’ Report
SGV & CO

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
6760 Ayala Avenue
1226 Makati City
Philippines

Phone: (632) 891-0307
Fax:
(632) 819-0872
www.sgv.com.ph
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001
SEC Accreditation No. 0012-FR-1

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Benpres Holdings Corporation
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Benpres Holdings Corporation and
Subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance
sheets as at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated
statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years
ended December 31, 2007, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

SGV & Co is a member practice of Ernst & Young Global
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-2Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Benpres Holdings Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and
2006, and their financial performance and their cash flows for each of the three years ended
December 31, 2007 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the financial condition of the Company as
discussed in Note 1(b) to the consolidated financial statements. As discussed in Note 1(b), the ability
of the Company to continue operating as a going concern depends on the success of its Balance Sheet
Management Plan. This condition indicates the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue operating as a going concern. As discussed
in Note 10(b), Manila Electric Company (MERALCO), an associate of First Philippine Holdings
Corporation (which is an associate accounted for under the equity method), has pending real property
tax assessments and cases. The ultimate outcome of these matters cannot presently be determined, and
no provision for any additional liability that may result from additional cases in the event of an
adverse decision on these cases has been made in the financial statements of MERALCO. To address
these possible liabilities, MERALCO has filed an application with the Energy Regulatory Commission
for a recovery mechanism. As also discussed in Note 10(c), on October 28, 2005, the Toll Regulatory
Board directed Manila North Tollways Corporation [MNTC, a subsidiary of First Philippine
Infrastructure, Inc. (an associate of the Company accounted for under the equity method)] to defer the
imposition of Value Added Tax (VAT) on toll fees. Thus, MNTC deferred and continues to defer the
imposition of VAT from the motoring public. MNTC, together with other toll road operators, is in
discussion with the concerned government agencies on the issue of VAT. The ultimate outcome of
these matters cannot be presently determined, and no provision for any additional liability that may
result from these uncertainties has been made in the financial statements of MNTC. The Company
also has not provided for its share in any possible liability of MERALCO and MNTC that may arise in
the consolidated financial statements.
SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Jose Joel M. Sebastian
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 61687
SEC Accreditation No. 0097-AR-1
Tax Identification No. 104-597-500
PTR No. 0017623, January 3, 2008, Makati City
April 10, 2008
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Benpres Holdings Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Amounts in Millions)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in Millions)

December 31
2006
(As restated Note 4)
2007
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 7, 24 and 28)
Trade and other receivables - net (Notes 8, 19 and 28)
Program rights and other intangible assets - current (Note 13)
Other current assets - net (Notes 9 and 28)
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets
Investments in and advances to associates - net
(Notes 2, 10, 17 and 19)
Property and equipment - net (Notes 11, 16 and 30)
Long-term receivables from related parties (Notes 2, 19, 24
and 28)
Noncurrent program rights and other intangible assets
(Notes 13 and 14)
Deferred tax assets (Note 25)
Other noncurrent assets - net (Notes 2, 12, 14, 19, 26 and 28)
Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables (Notes 15, 16, 19 and 28)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
(Notes 1, 11, 12, 16, 24, 27, 28 and 30)
Estimated liabilities from guarantees and commitments
(Notes 1, 10, 17, 24, 28 and 30)
Income tax payable
Derivative liabilities (Note 28)
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings - net of current portion
(Notes 1, 11, 12, 16, 28 and 30)
Accrued pension obligation (Note 26)
Other noncurrent liabilities (Note 18)
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

P
=2,962
4,984
1,007
2,411
11,364

=2,969
P
4,438
773
1,052
9,232

18,979
9,905

20,111
10,185

3,892

2,423

1,664
184
2,341
36,965

1,445
302
4,239
38,705

P
=48,329

=47,937
P

P
=10,826

=9,321
P

8,770

11,497

7,107
54
–
26,757

10,304
29
358
31,509

4,940
401
97
5,438

2,449
280
115
2,844

(Forward)
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-2December 31
2006
(As restated Note 4)
2007
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Capital stock (Note 31)
Additional paid-in capital
Share in equity adjustment from translation (Note 10)
Unrealized gain on fair value adjustments of
available-for-sale (AFS) investments (Notes 9, 10 and 12)
Share in excess of acquisition cost over the carrying value
of minority interests (Note 31)
Retained earnings (deficit) (Notes 2 and 10)
Minority Interests
Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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P
=4,581
6,766
(3,372)
895
(12)
819
9,677
6,457
16,134
P
=48,329

=4,581
P
6,766
(489)
1,031
–
(4,546)
7,343
6,241
13,584
=47,937
P

Benpres Holdings Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Amounts in Millions, Except Earnings Per Share Amounts)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Amounts in Millions, Except Per Share Amounts)

Years Ended December 31
2006
2005
(As restated (As restated Note 4)
Note 4)
2007
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REVENUES
Airtime
Sales and services
License fees (Note 30)
EXPENSES (INCOME)
Production costs (Notes 11, 13, 19, 22, 26 and 30)
General and administrative expenses
(Notes 8, 11, 19, 23, 26 and 30)
Foreign exchange gains - net
Equity in net earnings of associates [Notes 2(c) and 10]
Agency commission, incentives and co-producers’
share (Note 21)
Cost of sales and services (Notes 11, 13, 19, 20 and 26)
Finance costs (Notes 16, 24 and 28)
Mark-to-market loss (gain) - net (Note 28)
Loss on dilution of equity interest (Note 10)
Provisions for decline in value of investments at equity,
deposits and advances (Notes 1, 10 and 12)
Interest income (Note 24)
Gain on sale of AFS investments (Note 9)
Excess of payable over carrying value of disposed
investment (Note 10)
Reversal of excess of accumulated losses
over acquisition cost (Note 3)
Others (Note 15, 16, 17, 19, 24 and 30)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX
(Note 25)
Current
Deferred
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(Note 3)
NET INCOME

P
=13,605
5,738
548
19,891

=10,663
P
5,240
1,117
17,020

=
P10,334
5,094
1,619
17,047

6,493

5,713

5,691

5,736
(3,242)
(2,841)

5,341
(920)
(4,672)

5,959
(522)
(2,627)

2,701
2,786
1,809
348
269

2,284
2,226
2,197
115
65

2,085
2,374
2,364
(35)
492

216
(175)
(79)
–

572
(198)
(119)
(286)

2,319
(297)
(8)
–

–
(1,055)
12,966

–
(646)
11,672

(1,089)
(365)
16,341

6,925

5,348

957
40
997

571
75
646

5,928

4,702

515

–

–

685

P
=5,928

=4,702
P

=
P1,200

706

438
(247)
191

(Forward)
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Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interests
Earnings Per Share (Note 29)
Basic
For income for the year attributable
to equity holders of the Parent
For income from continuing operations attributable
to equity holders of the Parent
For income from discontinued operations
attributable to equity holders of the Parent
Diluted
For income for the year attributable to equity holders
of the Parent
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Years Ended December 31
2006
2005
(As restated (As restated Note 4)
Note 4)
2007
P
=5,365
563
P
=5,928

=4,297
P
405
=4,702
P

=
P793
407
=
P1,200

P
=1.171

=0.9379
P

=
P0.1731

1.171

0.9379

0.0773

–

–

0.0958

1.170

0.9374

0.1731

(Forward)

At December 31, 2005, as previously reported
Effect of adoption of IFRIC 12 (Note 4)
At December 31, 2005, as restated
Equity adjustment from translation during
the year
Unrealized gain on fair value adjustment
of AFS investments
Realized gain on fair value adjustment
of AFS investments
Total expense for the year directly recognized
in equity
Net income for the year
Issuance of treasury shares
Total income and expense for the year
At December 31, 2006

At December 31, 2006, as previously reported
Effect of adoption of IFRIC 12 (Note 4)
At December 31, 2006, as restated
Equity adjustment from translation during
the year
Unrealized gain on fair value adjustment
of AFS investments
Realized gain on fair value adjustment
of AFS investment
Excess of acquisition cost over the carrying
value of minority interests
Total expense for the year directly recognized
in equity
Net income for the year
Dividends
Acquisition of treasury shares
Decrease in minority interests
Total income and expense for the year
At December 31, 2007

(Amounts in Millions)

–
–
–
–
–
–
P
=6,766

–
–
–
–
–
–
P
=4,581

–
–
–
–
–
–
P
=6,766

–
–
–
–
–
–
P
=4,581

–

–

–

–

–

–

P
=6,766
–
6,766

–

–

P
=4,581
–
4,581

–

–

Capital
Stock
(Note 31)
P
=4,581
–
4,581

(722)
–
–
(722)
(P
=489)

–

–

(722)

P
=233
–
233

(2,883)
–
–
–
–
(2,883)
(P
=3,372)

–

–

–

(2,883)

635
–
–
635
P
=1,031

(60)

695

–

P
=396
–
396

(136)
–
–
–
–
(136)
P
=895

–

(76)

(60)

–

–
–
–
–
=
P–

–

–

–

=
P–
–
–

(12)
–
–
–
–
(12)
(P
=12)

(12)

–

–

–

–
4,297
–
4,297
(P
=4,546)

–

–

–

(P
=9,239)
396
(8,843)

–
5,365
–
–
–
5,365
P
=819

–

–

–

–

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Share in
Excess of
Acquisition
Unrealized Cost Over the
Share in
Gain on
Carrying
Retained
Fair Value
Value of
Equity
Earnings
Additional
Adjustment Adjustments
Minority
(Deficit)
Paid-In
from
of AFS
Interests (As restated (Note 31)
Capital
Investments
Note 4)
Translation
P
=6,766
(P
=489)
P
=1,031
P
=–
(P
=5,026)
–
–
–
–
480
6,766
(489)
1,031
–
(4,546)
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(87)
4,297
–
4,210
P
=7,343

(60)

695

(722)

P
=2,737
396
3,133

(3,031)
5,365
–
–
–
2,334
P
=9,677

(12)

(76)

(60)

(2,883)

Total
P
=6,863
480
7,343

(132)
405
22
295
P
=6,241

–

–

(132)

P
=5,946
–
5,946

(50)
563
(149)
(127)
(21)
216
P
=6,457

(8)

–

6

(48)

Minority
Interests
P
=6,241
–
6,241

(219)
4,702
22
4,505
P
=13,584

(60)

695

(854)

P
=8,683
396
9,079

(3,081)
5,928
(149)
(127)
(21)
2,550
P
=16,134

(20)

(76)

(54)

(2,931)

Total
Equity
P
=13,104
480
13,584
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–
–
–
–
–
–
–
P
=6,766

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
P
=4,581

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

At December 31, 2004, as previously reported
Effect of adoption of IFRIC 12 (Note 4)
At December 31, 2004, as restated
Equity adjustment from translation during
the year
Unrealized gain on fair value adjustment
of AFS investments
Realized gain on fair value adjustment
of AFS investments
Total expense for the year directly recognized
in equity
Net income for the year
Total income and expense for the year
Minority interest attributable to deconsolidated
subsidiary
At December 31, 2005

Capital
Stock
(Note 31)
P
=4,581
–
4,581

–
P
=233

(664)
–
(664)

–

–

(664)

–
P
= 396

(648)
–
(648)

(13)

(635)

–

–
P
=–

–
–
–

–

–

–

–
(P
=8,843)

–
793
793

–

–

–

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Share in
Excess
Acquisition
Unrealized
Share in
Gain on Cost over the
Equity
Fair Value
Carrying
Adjustment Adjustments
Value of
Additional
Deficit
from
Minority (As restated Paid-In
of AFS
Note 4)
(Note 31)
Capital
Translation
Investments
P
=6,766
P
=897
P
=1,044
=
P–
(P
=9,971)
–
–
–
–
335
6,766
897
1,044
–
(9,636)

–
P
=3,133

(1,312)
793
(519)

(13)

(635)

(664)

Total
P
=3,317
335
3,652

(477)
P
=5,946

( 43)
407
364

–

–

(43)

Minority
Interests
P
=6,059
–
6,059

(477)
P
=9,079

(1,355)
1,200
( 155)

(13)

(635)

(707)

Total
Equity
P
=9,376
335
9,711
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BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Amounts in Millions)

(Amounts in Millions)

Years Ended December 31
2006
2005
(As restated (As restated Note 4)
Note 4)
2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income from continuing operations before income tax
Adjustments for:
Unrealized foreign exchange gains
Equity in net earnings of associates (Notes 2 and 10)
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 11, 12 and 13)
Interest and financing charges (Note 24)
Reversal of valuation allowance (Notes 17 and 24)
Mark-to-market loss (gain)
Provisions for decline in value of:
Investments and advances (Note 10)
Inventory
Deposits (Note 12)
Provisions for:
Retirement expense (Note 26)
Doubtful accounts (Note 8)
Others (Note 24)
Interest income
Gain on sale of investments (Note 9)
Loss on dilution of equity interest (Note 10)
Amortization of deferred charges
Gain (loss) on sale of property and equipment
Curtailment gain
Reversal of excess of accumulated losses
over acquisition cost (Note 3)
Excess of payable over carrying value of disposed
investment (Note 10)
Others
Operating income before working capital changes
Changes in operating assets and liabilities - net of effect
of deconsolidation of a subsidiary:
Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other receivables
Intangible assets
Other current assets
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables
Payments on:
Estimated liabilities from guarantees and
commitments
Income taxes
Net cash provided by operating activities
of continuing operations

P
=6,925

=5,348
P

=
P706

(3,360)
(2,841)
2,516
1,809
(457)
348

(814)
(4,672)
2,283
2,197
–
115

(590)
(2,627)
2,513
2,364
–
(35)

216
15
–

237
–
335

178
102
–
(175)
(79)
269
40
4
–

75
94
1
(198)
(119)
65
–
–
–

–

–

256
–
2,063
83
160
17
(297)
(8)
492
–
(8)
(158)
(1,089)

–
(67)
5,443

(286)
(36)
4,625

–
(12)
3,830

(176)
(1,073)
(324)
(1,237)

245
(591)
(483)
(545)

(1,198)
(585)
(251)
1,108

(1,203)
(359)

(73)
(258)

(80)
(422)

1,071

2,920

2,402
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2007
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividends and interest received from investees
Additions to property and equipment
Acquisition of investments and increase in advances
Proceeds from sale of:
AFS investments
Property and equipment
Decrease (increase) in:
Other noncurrent assets
Due from related parties
Interest received
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
of continuing operations
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of:
Loans and long-term debt
Interest and financing charges
Availments of interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Acquisition of minority interests
Payments for the termination of cross currency swaps
and interest rate swaps
Decrease in:
Other noncurrent liabilities
Minority interests
Net cash used in financing activities
of continuing operations
NET CASH FLOWS FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
NET CASH FLOWS FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Benpres AR 2007
Financial Statements

P958
=
(500)
(210)

=
P508
(645)
(246)

104
33

184
4

–
28

(974)
–
175

49
–
82

(293)
(21)
36

(706)

567

(633)

(2,569)
(748)
3,295
(27)
(393)

(2,154)
(1,079)
474
–
–

(481)
(1,758)
746
–
–

(98)
(5)

(112)
–

(135)
–

(545)

(2,871)

(1,628)

(180)

616

141

173

12

28

–

–

(2,355)

628

(2,186)

(7)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

2,969

2,341

4,527

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

P
=2,962

=2,969
P

=
P2,341

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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P
=1,064
(708)
(400)

Years Ended December 31
2006
2005

Benpres Holdings Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BENPRES HOLDINGS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information and Status of Operations
a. Corporate Information
Benpres Holdings Corporation (the Parent Company) is incorporated in the Philippines. The
Parent Company is a 54.61% owned subsidiary of Lopez, Inc. (Lopez), also a Philippine entity
and its ultimate parent company. The Parent Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Company”) are mainly involved in investment holdings and broadcasting
and entertainment. The Company’s associates are involved in telecommunications, power
generation and distribution, cable television, real estate development and infrastructure.
The registered office address of the Parent Company is 4th Floor, Benpres Building, Meralco
Avenue, Pasig City.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for issue
by the Board of Directors (BOD) on April 10, 2008.
b. Balance Sheet Management Plan
In June 2002, the Parent Company announced a plan called the Balance Sheet Management
Plan (BSMP) to address all its financial obligations involving activities to reduce debt and
dispose non-core assets.
On January 19, 2007, the Parent Company officially exited from Maynilad Water Services,
Inc. (Maynilad Water) and wrote off US$220 million of guaranteed obligations.
The Parent Company is recrafting a suitable debt restructuring plan to reflect current market
conditions.
Long-term direct obligations of the Parent Company that are due for payment as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006 amounted to P
=8,182 million and P
=9,355 million, respectively
(see Note 16). In 2007, the Parent Company paid P
=10 million of its debt from long-term
commercial paper (LTCP) holders (see Note 16).
In addition, by virtue of its guarantees and commitments, based on the BSMP, the Parent
Company may be liable for certain obligations that already fell due amounting to
approximately US$167 million and US$210 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006
(equivalent to P
=7,107 million as of December 31, 2007 and P
=10,304 as of December 31,
2006). In November 2007, the Parent Company and Lopez together settled the US$43 million
worth of debt held by Asian Infrastructure Fund (AIF), of which they are co-obligors. The
debt was settled for US$32 million with the Parent Company paying US$26 million and
Lopez paying US$6 million [see Notes 30(a) and (b)].
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, consolidated current liabilities exceeded consolidated
current assets by P
=15,393 million and P
=22,277 million, respectively.
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-2Starting in 2002, the Parent Company defaulted on its principal and interest payments on its
long-term direct obligations and guarantees and commitments (see Notes 16, 17 and 30). As
proposed in the BSMP, all liabilities of the Parent Company were computed as of May 31,
2002 and since December 2002, the Parent Company has been making good faith semi-annual
payments on its direct and contingent obligations.
On March 13, 2003, the Parent Company convened a Special Stockholders’ Meeting to obtain
stockholders’ consent to delegate to the BOD the authority to take all actions and matters
necessary and desirable for the restructuring of the Parent Company’s obligations under the
BSMP. The stockholders granted full authority to the BOD to negotiate with the creditors
without the need for prior stockholders’ approval.
In 2005, Ferrier Hodgson Corporate Advisory (WA) Pty Ltd. was appointed as financial
adviser to assist the Parent Company in addressing its long-term direct obligations, as well as
contingent obligations arising from outstanding guarantees and commitments. In the same
year, the creditors formed the Benpres Creditors’ Committee to facilitate the overall process
for the financial restructuring of the Parent Company.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the
Company will continue operating as a going concern. The ability of the Company to continue
operating as a going concern depends on the success of its BSMP. This condition indicates
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Company’s
ability to continue operating as a going concern.
2. Transfer of Media Interest
On April 17, 1997, the stockholders of the Parent Company approved the transfer of its ownership
interest in ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation (ABS-CBN) and SkyVision Corporation
(SkyVision) to Lopez, a majority stockholder. On March 16, 1998, the National
Telecommunications Commission (NTC) authorized the transfer of the ABS-CBN and SkyVision
shares and on April 21, 1998, the transfer was approved by the creditors of the Parent Company,
thus, the release of the ABS-CBN and SkyVision shares from the negative pledge covenants
included in the terms of outstanding LTCPs.
On April 24, 1998, the Parent Company transferred 553,457,304 shares of ABS-CBN at its market
value of P
=16.50 per share equivalent to P
=9,132 million and 162,463,400 shares of SkyVision at its
book value of P
=2.75 per share equivalent to P
=447 million in exchange for cash of P
=75 million and
Convertible and Nonconvertible Notes (Notes) of P
=9,504 million (Convertible Notes of
=5,504 million and Nonconvertible Notes of =
P
P4,000 million). The Notes are secured by a pledge
of the shares transferred and all subsequent shares distributed to Lopez by reason of its holdings of
ABS-CBN and SkyVision shares. After the transfer, Lopez assumed all voting rights associated
with the shares.
The Notes shall be repaid on April 24, 2013 (Maturity Date). Lopez has the option to redeem the
Notes, at any time, subject to certain conditions provided for in the Agreement by both parties.
The Parent Company has the option to convert the Convertible Notes into 553,457,304 shares of
ABS-CBN and 162,463,400 shares of SkyVision (Conversion Quantity) at a conversion price of
=5,504 million until Maturity Date or redemption date, as the case may be. The conversion
P
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-3quantity and price are subject to adjustments as provided for in the Agreement. The Notes may be
repaid in whole or in part on or before the Maturity Date. The Notes shall terminate on any earlier
date if the Convertible Notes shall have been properly converted and Lopez has satisfied its
obligations with respect to all such Convertible Notes. The Notes bear an annual interest of 1.5%,
subject to adjustments as agreed by both parties.
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the outstanding Notes amounted to P
=8,120 million and
=7,690 million, respectively. The underlying shares totaled 446,800,022 ABS-CBN shares in
P
2007 and 2006 [including 568,415 Philippine Depositary Receipts (PDRs) in 2007 and 2006] and
162,463,400 SkyVision shares in 2007 and 2006.
As of this date, the shares of stock in ABS-CBN and SkyVision are still under the name of Lopez.
Consequently, the power to vote those shares is with Lopez. The Parent Company has not
exercised its option to convert the ABS-CBN and SkyVision Notes into ABS-CBN and SkyVision
shares, respectively.
ABS-CBN
ABS-CBN is incorporated in the Philippines. Its core business is television and radio
broadcasting. Its subsidiaries and associates are involved in the following related businesses:
cable and direct-to-home (DTH) television distribution and telecommunication services overseas,
movie production, audio recording and distribution, video/audio post production, and film
distribution. Other activities of the subsidiaries include merchandising, internet and mobile
services and publishing.
The convertibility feature of the ABS-CBN Notes qualifies as “potential voting rights” under
PAS 27, “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.” Under PAS 27, the existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by another entity, are considered when assessing whether an entity has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of another entity. Consequently, for
consolidation purposes, ABS-CBN is considered a subsidiary of the Parent Company
(see Note 4). Accordingly, the issuance of the ABS-CBN Notes is eliminated for consolidation
purposes.
Condensed consolidated financial information of ABS-CBN before intercompany eliminations
follow:
2007
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets
Attributable to:
Equity holders of ABS-CBN
Minority interests

(In Millions)

2006

P
=8,876
17,232
(6,431)
(5,347)
P
=14,330

P7,841
=
16,060
(7,425)
(2,798)
=13,678
P

P
=14,284
46
P
=14,330

=13,615
P
63
=13,678
P
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-42007
Revenues
Costs and expenses
Net income
Attributable to:
Equity holders of ABS-CBN
Minority interests

P
=19,891
(18,620)
P
=1,271
P
=1,267
4
P
=1,271

2006

2005

(In Millions)

P17,020
=
(16,277)
=743
P

=
P17,047
(16,789)
=
P258

=741
P
2
=743
P

=
P252
6
=
P258

SkyVision
SkyVision is mainly involved in cable television services in Metro Manila and in certain
provincial areas in the Philippines.
The convertibility feature of the SkyVision Notes qualifies as “potential voting rights” under
PAS 28, “Investments in Associates.” Under PAS 28, the existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting rights held by other
entities, are considered when assessing whether an entity has significant influence. Consequently,
for consolidation purposes, SkyVision is considered an associate of the Parent Company.
Accordingly, the Parent Company’s investment in SkyVision is accounted for under the equity
method (see Note 10).
a. Consolidation of Sky Cable Corporation (Sky Cable, formerly Central CATV, Inc.) and
Philippine Home Cable Holdings, Inc. (Home Cable)
On July 18, 2001, ABS-CBN along with the Parent Company and Lopez (collectively, the
Benpres Group), signed a Master Consolidation Agreement (MCA) whereby they agreed with
the Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company and Mediaquest Holdings, Inc.
(collectively, the PLDT Group) to consolidate their respective ownership or otherwise their
rights and interests in SkyVision and Unilink Communications Corporation (Unilink) under a
holding company to be established for that purpose. Beyond Cable Holdings, Inc. (Beyond)
was incorporated on December 7, 2001 as the holding company. SkyVision owns Sky Cable
and Pilipino Cable Corporation (PCC), which operate cable television systems in Metro
Manila and key provincial areas under the tradenames “Sky Cable” and “Sun Cable,”
respectively. Unilink owns Home Cable, which operates cable television systems in Metro
Manila and key provincial areas under the tradename “Home Cable.”
Pursuant to the MCA, the Benpres Group and the PLDT Group shall, respectively, own 67%
and 33% of Beyond upon the transfer of their respective ownership, rights and interests in
SkyVision and Unilink to Beyond. Although the original MCA envisioned the transfer to be
completed within six months from signing date, or by January 18, 2002, the Benpres Group
and the PLDT Group agreed on January 16, 2002, to extend this closing date.
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-5In view of the above, a separate Memorandum of Agreement (Agreement) was executed on
April 8, 2004, wherein the majority stockholders of Home Cable and SkyVision agreed to
consolidate the ownership of their respective shares in Home Cable and SkyVision and to
combine the operations, assets and liabilities of Home Cable and Sky Cable. To effect the
consolidation, Home Cable transferred its assets and liabilities to Sky Cable in exchange for a
33% ownership in Sky Cable. The issuance of shares was approved by the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on August 30, 2004.
It is planned to transfer the minority shareholders of SkyVision to Sky Cable to put into effect
in Sky Cable what was originally intended for Beyond. With this transfer and as stipulated in
the MCA, the Minority shall hold 17.3% of Sky Cable while SkyVision will hold 55% and
Home Cable holding the balance 27.7%. Barring any unforeseen impediments, it is expected
that the transfer of the SkyVision Minority to Sky Cable be completed in 2008.
In relation to the consolidation discussed above, a competitor television broadcasting company
filed a case before the NTC asking for it to declare as null and void the consolidation of the
cable operating companies. On November 16, 2004, the NTC denied the motion for cease and
desist order filed by the competitor broadcasting company. On November 30, 2004, the
competitor television broadcasting company filed a motion for reconsideration which was also
denied by the NTC on October 13, 2005. This case was then elevated by the complainant to
the Court of Appeals (“CA”). On October 10, 2007, the CA has rendered its decision
dismissing the petition of the complainant. The complainant has filed a Motion for
Reconsideration at the CA. It is the opinion of SkyVision’s legal counsels that the case filed
by the competitor television broadcasting company is without legal basis.
b. Debt Restructuring Agreement (DRA) and Acquisition of Sky Cable Debt
On October 17, 2003, the required majority of SkyVision and Sky Cable’s creditors and a
substantial majority of Home Cable’s creditors signed the Memorandum of Agreement
(MOA) covering the restructuring plan. The MOA provided the framework under which Sky
Cable, SkyVision, Home Cable and the creditors mutually agreed to restructure the
outstanding debt obligations (“Sky Cable Debt”) which became the basis for the DRA, and
consent to the consolidation and merger of Sky Cable, SkyVision and Home Cable.
On July 2, 2004, the DRA between Sky Cable and its creditors was formalized in the Facility
Agreement. Under the provisions of the Facility Agreement, the outstanding principal on the
existing secured and unsecured debt shall be paid by way of a term loan payable in seven
years inclusive of a two-year grace period, in 20 unequal consecutive quarterly amortization
immediately commencing from the end of the 9th quarter from the value date.
In November 2005, SkyVision met with its creditors to request for an extension of the grace
period for another five (5) years, with principal amortization to start in 2011. The creditors
formed a steering committee to address the request of SkyVision.
In September 2006, Sky Cable made a token payment amounting to P
=5 million, upon which
the principal payments due in September 2006, December 2006 and March 2007 were
deferred to be paid in June 2007. A second token payment amounting to P
=5 million shall be
paid upon finalization of the debt restructuring.
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-6In 2007, ABS-CBN invited holders of outstanding Sky Cable Debt to offer to (1) sell their Sky
Cable Debt for up to 70% of the principal amount of the Sky Cable Debt (Cash Offer); or (2)
exchange their Sky Cable Debt for Notes up to 100% of the principal amount of the Sky Cable
(Debt Exchange offer). Holders of P
=944 million Sky Cable Debt opted for the Cash Offer,
while holders of =
P854 million opted for the Exchange Offer. The total loans acquired by
ABS-CBN amounted to P
=1,798 million. Thus, ABS-CBN became Sky Cable’s creditor (see
Note 16).
On September 20, 2007, related to the acquisition by ABS-CBN of about 66% of Sky Cable
debt from third party creditors, Sky Cable issued two Promissory Notes to ABS-CBN in the
aggregate amount of P
=1,798 million. As a consequence, ABS-CBN became the eventual
lender on record of Sky Cable due to the loans that were absorbed by it. This loan currently
pays monthly interest at 90-day PDST-F plus 1% with a final maturity of June 30, 2011. The
Promissory Notes are further governed by the terms and conditions of the Facility Agreement
dated July 2, 2004. Interest income amounted to P
=25 million in 2007 (see Note 24).
On February 21, 2008, ABS-CBN and the remaining party creditors of Sky Cable approved
the Second Amendment to the Facility Agreement. The amendment mainly focused on the
extension of the repayment period from December 2011 to September 2016 and amendment of
certain terms and conditions related to the term loan agreement (see Note 16).
ABS-CBN recognized “Day 1” profit of P
=206 million (P
=144 million, net of tax) in 2007 which
represents the difference between the fair value of Sky Cable Debt acquired and the fair value
of the consideration given (i.e., ABS-CBN debt and cash). This was included as part of
“Other income” account in the 2007 consolidated statement of income (see Note 24).
ABS-CBN’s receivable from Sky Cable was recorded at fair value. Receivable discount
which represents the difference between the nominal amount and the fair value of the
receivable amounted to P
=374 million.
Accretion on receivable, included as part of interest income, amounted to P
=10 million in 2007
(see Note 24).
Unamortized receivable discount as of December 31, 2007 which will be accreted over the
term of the receivable using the effective interest rate method is as follows:
Year
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012 to 2016
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Amount

(In Millions)

=
P40
45
49
55
175
=364
P

-7Repayments of receivable from Sky Cable based on nominal values are scheduled as follows:
Year
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

Amount

(In Millions)

=
P55
253
332
383
432
343
=1,798
P

c. Convertible Notes Issued to ABS-CBN
On June 30, 2004, SkyVision and Sky Cable (“Issuer”) issued a convertible note (the “note”)
to ABS-CBN amounting to US$30 million equivalent to P
=1,579 million as of December 31,
2007 and 2006. ABS-CBN’s long-term receivable from SkyVision includes accrued interest
receivable of P
=459 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. The note is subject to interest
of 13% compounded annually and matured on June 30, 2006. The principal and accrued
interest as of maturity date shall be mandatorily converted, based on the prevailing U.S. Dollar
to Philippine Peso exchange rate on Maturity Date, at a conversion price equivalent to a
twenty percent (20%) discount of: (a) the market value of the Shares, in the event of a public
offering of the Issuer before Maturity Date; (b) the valuation of the Shares by an independent
third party appraiser that is a recognized banking firm, securities underwriter or one of the big
three international accounting firms or their Philippine affiliate jointly appointed by the
Benpres Group and the PLDT Group pursuant to the MCA dated July 18, 2001 as amended or
supplemented.
As of December 31, 2007, the valuation done by an independent third party appraiser has not
been agreed by the Benpres Group and PLDT Group and accordingly, the conversion price has
not been determined. Based on the provisions of the convertible note, its conversion cannot be
completed without the determination of the conversion price, which in turn depends on the
valuation of SkyVision or Sky Cable, by an independent third party. Consequently,
ABS-CBN cannot convert the notes without such valuation. The conversion date was
effectively extended since the conversion price was not fixed on June 30, 2006. The
conversion date will effectively be the date when the conversion price will be set. ABS-CBN
will gain control of Sky Cable upon conversion of the convertible note. Consequently, the
voting rights on the underlying shares are retained by the original shareholders and ABS-CBN
has no right to exercise such voting rights.
The convertible note does not specifically state that interest shall accrue after June 30, 2006 in
the event that the convertible note is not converted for any reason. Thus, no interest was
charged after June 30, 2006. Interest income amounted to P
=115 million and P
=261 million in
2006 and 2005, respectively (see Note 24).
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-8Prior to the issuance of the convertible note, SkyVision, Sky Cable and Home Cable had trade
and advances payable to its shareholders in the Benpres Group and the PLDT Group,
respectively. Upon receipt of the proceeds of the note, SkyVision, Sky Cable and Home
Cable prioritized the servicing of their outstanding payables to third-party suppliers and
creditors, as well as new payables due to Creative Programs, Inc. (CPI), a wholly owned
subsidiary of ABS-CBN. As a result, these companies did not service payables to their
existing shareholders outstanding as of June 30, 2004. Included in the amounts left unpaid
was CPI’s trade receivables from Sky Cable of around P
=437 million. With the approval of its
creditors, ABS-CBN included CPI’s receivables in the above equity conversion in SkyVision
under the same terms of the note.
On January 11, 2007, ABS-CBN signed a commitment letter with ABN Amro Bank N.V., BPI
Capital Corporation and ING Bank N.V. (together, the Mandated Lead Arrangers) to arrange
and underwrite on a firm commitment basis the refinancing/restructuring of the existing longterm loan. Consequently, the execution copies of the agreement amending the Senior Credit
Agreement (SCA) facility was signed on March 27, 2007. It provides a carve out allowing
=437 million receivables of CPI from Sky Cable to be converted into equity. This shall
P
effectively supersede the consent requirement under the old facility.
On September 14, 2007, ABS-CBN together with the relevant parties of the SCA executed the
“First Amendment Agreement” which, among others, increases the amount of support that the
Company can extend to Sky Cable. From the previous threshold of P
=400 million aggregated
advances and guarantees, the agreement now allows up to P
=2,250 million.
In 2007 and 2006, equity in net earnings and losses of SkyVision amounting to P
=12 million
and P
=52 million has been charged and credited, respectively, against the “Long-term
receivables from related parties” account in the consolidated balance sheets.
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, total receivable from SkyVision and Sky Cable amounted to
=3,892 million and P
P
=2,423 million, respectively.
d. Shareholders’ Agreement
On August 15, 1997, SkyVision entered into a Shareholders’ Agreement with Telemondial
Holdings, Inc. (THI) granting the latter certain rights and privileges as a minority shareholder
in PCC. THI owns 49% of PCC. Under the agreement, THI has the option, under certain
conditions, to require SkyVision to purchase THI’s shares in PCC. THI exercised this option
on October 2, 2001. As provided in the agreement, a process whereby the value of THI’s
shares in PCC will be established has been set in motion. As of April 10, 2008, this valuation
process has not been concluded.
3. Deconsolidation of Maynilad Water
Maynilad Water, formerly known as Benpres-Lyonnaise Waterworks, Inc., was incorporated on
January 22, 1997 as a joint venture between the Parent Company and Suez-Lyonnaise Des Eaux,
now known as Suez Environnement (Suez), primarily to bid for the operation of the privatized
system of waterworks and sewerage services of the Metropolitan Waterworks and Sewerage
System (MWSS) for Metropolitan Manila.
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-9On February 21, 1997, Maynilad Water entered into a Concession Agreement with MWSS, a
government-owned and controlled corporation organized and existing pursuant to Republic Act
No. 6234 (the Charter), as amended, with respect to the MWSS West Service Area. The
Concession Agreement sets forth the rights and obligations of Maynilad Water throughout the
concession period. The MWSS Regulatory Office (MWSS-RO or Regulatory Office) acts as the
regulatory body of the Concessionaires [Maynilad Water and the East Concessionaire - Manila
Water Company, Inc. (Manila Water)] under the Concession Agreement with MWSS.
Under the Concession Agreement, MWSS grants Maynilad Water (as contractor to perform
certain functions and as agent for the exercise of certain rights and powers under the Charter), the
sole right to manage, operate, repair, decommission and refurbish all fixed and movable assets
(except certain retained assets of MWSS) required to provide water and sewerage services in the
West Service Area for 25 years commencing on August 1, 1997 (the Commencement Date) to
May 6, 2022 (the Expiration Date) or the Early Termination Date as the case may be. Maynilad
Water officially took over the operations of the West Service Area on August 1, 1997.
Debt Capital and Restructuring Agreement (DCRA)
On April 29, 2005, Maynilad Water, its shareholders, bank creditors, and MWSS executed the
DCRA to set out the terms and conditions of their understanding and to govern their respective
rights and obligations in connection with the restructuring of the debt and capital of Maynilad
Water. The DCRA provides, among others, the capital restructuring and restructuring of debt and
concession fees of Maynilad Water. The DCRA took effect upon the satisfaction of the conditions
precedent set forth in the DCRA. Conditions precedent include among others, the Court
Approval. The Rehabilitation Court approved the DCRA on June 1, 2005. The Effective Date of
the DCRA, wherein all the conditions precedent has been satisfied occurred on July 20, 2005.
The creditors of Maynilad Water has completely released the Parent Company from all its
obligations as guarantor of the US$120 million Standby Letter of Credit Facility and the
US$100 million term loan facility of Maynilad Water. A Deed of Release in relation to the
US$120 million Standby Letter of Credit Facility Agreement and a Deed of Release in relation to
US$100 million loan agreement were both executed as of April 29, 2005.
The capital restructuring provisions mainly involve write-off of shareholder advances, conversion
of advances into equity and dilution of the shares of the Parent Company’s equity interest in
Maynilad Water, representing fifty-nine percent (59%) of the equity interest in Maynilad Water
(BHC Shares).
The capital restructuring was completed on January 19, 2007 after the SEC approved all corporate
actions of Maynilad Water required by Clause 2 of the DCRA for the full implementation of the
Capital Restructuring.
As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, based on the stock and transfer book of Maynilad Water, the
Parent Company is still the registered owner of the BHC Shares. However, the said stock
certificates covering the BHC Shares have already been endorsed and delivered to the
Rehabilitation Receiver pursuant to the DCRA. In further compliance with the terms of the
DCRA, the Parent Company delivered to the Rehabilitation Receiver, an irrevocable proxy dated
July 21, 2005 (Proxy) appointing MWSS or any of MWSS’ authorized representatives as its proxy
to attend, in the Parent Company’s name, place and stead, all meetings of Maynilad Water, and to
vote all of the BHC Shares, specifically for the purpose of carrying out, or ensuring the
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- 10 completion of the capital restructuring of Maynilad Water as set out in the DCRA. Accordingly,
the Parent Company has lost its power to govern the financial and operating policies of Maynilad
Water as provided for in PAS 27, “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.” In view of
the above, the Parent Company deconsolidated Maynilad Water effective July 20, 2005. The
reversal of the excess of the Company’s accumulated equity in losses over its acquisition cost in
Maynilad, amounting to P
=1,089 million, is shown separately in the 2005 consolidated statement of
income.
The results of operations of Maynilad Water for the period January 1 to July 20, 2005 are
presented below: (shown separately in the consolidated statements of income as “Income from
discontinued operations” account)
January to
July 20, 2005
(In Millions)

Revenues
Costs and expenses
Net income

=
P4,301
(3,616)
=
P685

The net cash flows incurred by Maynilad Water are as follows:
January to
July 20, 2005
(In Millions)

Operating
Investing
Financing
Net cash outflow

(P
=3,252)
(2,526)
4,771
(P
=1,007)

Pending Cases on Maynilad Water’s Corporate Rehabilitation Proceedings
A case involving two consolidated petitions previously filed by certain so called public interest
groups and other persons claiming to be interested parties questioning the Rehabilitation Court’s
approval of the Company’s 2005 Rehabilitation Plan and issuance of order barring such petitioners
from participating in the rehabilitation proceedings, remains pending before the Second Division
of the Supreme Court. However, the Company believes that the termination of its rehabilitation
proceedings has now rendered this case moot and academic and is set to formally apprise the
Supreme Court of such matter.
4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instruments and AFS investments that have been measured at fair value. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency. All values are rounded to the nearest million pesos except
when otherwise indicated.
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- 11 Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).
Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company as at
December 31 each year. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting year as the Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
All intra-company balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting
from intra-company transactions that are recognized in assets and liabilities, are eliminated in full.
Unrealized gains and losses are eliminated unless costs cannot be recovered.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Parent
Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
Where there is a loss of control of a subsidiary, the consolidated financial statements include the
results for the part of the reporting year during which the Parent Company has control.
The 2005 consolidated statements of income and cash flows include the results of operations and
cash flows of Maynilad Water for the period January 1 to July 20, 2005, the date the Parent
Company effectively lost control over Maynilad Water (see Note 3).
Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries not held by
the Company and is presented separately in the consolidated statement of income and within
equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separate from the equity attributable to equity holders of
the Parent Company. The losses applicable to minority may exceed the minority’s investment in
the subsidiary. Any losses applicable to a minority shareholder in a consolidated subsidiary in
excess of the minority shareholder’s equity in the subsidiary are charged against the minority
interest to the extent that the minority shareholder has binding obligation to, and are able to, make
good the losses.
Acquisition of minority interests is accounted for using the parent entity extension method,
whereby, the difference between the consideration and the net book value of the share in the net
assets acquired is recognized in goodwill.
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company and
the following directly-owned subsidiaries as of December 31:
Country of
Incorporation

Subsidiaries:
ABS-CBN and Subsidiaries (see Note 2)

Philippines

Bayanmap Corporation (Bayanmap)

Philippines

Principal Activities
Broadcasting and film
distribution
Information service provider

Percentage of
Ownership
2007 2006
58.27 57.97
51.00 51.00
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- 12 Changes in Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS and Philippine Interpretations during the
year.
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Amendment to Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 1, “Presentation of Financial
Statements: Capital Disclosures”
PFRS 7, “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 7, “Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29,
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies”
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 8, “Scope of PFRS 2”
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9, “Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives”
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 10, “Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment”
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, “Service Concession Arrangements”

The principal effects of these changes are as follows:
�

PFRS 7, “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” and the complementary amendment to PAS 1,
“Presentation of Financial Statements” — PFRS 7 introduces new disclosures to improve the
information about financial instruments. It requires the disclosure of qualitative and
quantitative information about exposure to risks arising from financial instruments, including
specified minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, as well as
sensitivity analysis to market risk. It replaces PAS 30, “Disclosures in the Financial
Statements of Banks and Similar Financial Institutions,” and the disclosure requirements in
PAS 32, “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation.” It is applicable to all entities
that report under PFRS.
The Company adopted the amendment to the transitional provisions of PFRS 7, as approved
by the Financial Reporting Standards Council of the Philippines, which gives transitory relief
with respect to the presentation of comparative information for the new risk disclosures about
the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments. Accordingly, the Company
does not need to present comparative information for the disclosures required by paragraphs
31–42 of PFRS 7, unless the disclosure was previously required under PAS 32. Adoption of
this standard resulted in the inclusion of additional disclosures such as rollforward of
allowance for doubtful accounts (see Note 8), carrying amount per category of financial assets
and liabilities, market risk sensitivity analysis, contractual maturity analysis of financial
liabilities, credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired and aging
analysis of financial assets that are past due but not impaired (see Note 27).
The amendment to PAS 1 introduces disclosures about the level of an entity’s capital and how
it manages capital. Adoption of this amendment resulted in the inclusion of additional
disclosures on capital management (see Note 27).

�
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Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 7, “Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29,
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies,” — This provides guidance on how to
apply PAS 29 when an economy first becomes hyperinflationary, in particular the accounting
for deferred income tax. The interpretation had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company.

- 13 �

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 8, “Scope of PFRS 2,” — This requires PFRS 2, “Share-based
Payment,” to be applied to any arrangements where equity instruments are issued for
consideration which appears to be less than fair value. This interpretation had no impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

�

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9, “Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives” — This
interpretation prohibits subsequent reassessment of embedded derivatives unless there is a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that otherwise
would be required under the contract, in which case, reassessment is required. An entity
determines whether a modification to cash flows is significant by considering the extent to
which the expected future cash flows associated with the embedded derivative, the host
contract or both have changed and whether the change is significant relative to the previously
expected cash flows on the contract. This interpretation had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company.

�

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 10, “Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment”
The Company adopted Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 10 as of January 1, 2007, which
requires that an entity must not reverse an impairment loss recognized in a previous interim
period in respect of goodwill or an investment in either an equity instrument or a financial
asset carried at cost. As the Company had no impairment losses that were previously
reversed, the interpretation had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company.

�

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, “Service Concession Arrangements” — This interpretation
outlines an approach to account for public-to-private service concession arrangements
whereby: (a) the grantor controls or regulates what service a company must provide with the
infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what price; and (b) the grantor controls,
through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise, any significant residual interest in the
infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement. Infrastructure used in a public-toprivate service concession arrangement for its entire useful life (whole-of-life asset) is within
the scope of this interpretation if the conditions in (a) are met.
This interpretation applies to both (a) infrastructure that company constructs or acquires from
a third party for the purpose of the service arrangement; and (b) existing infrastructure to
which the grantor gives the Company access for the purpose of the service arrangement.
It provides that the operator should not account for the infrastructure as property, plant and
equipment, but recognize a financial asset and/or an intangible asset. A financial asset is
recognized to the extent that the operator has a contractual right to receive cash from the
grantor or has a guarantee from the grantor. An intangible asset is recognized to the extent
that the entity has a right to charge the public for use of the asset.
The Company, through its associates, First Philippine Holdings Corporation (FPHC) and First
Philippine Infrastructure, Inc. (FPII), has elected to early adopt Philippine Interpretation
IFRIC 12 effective January 1, 2007, as it applies to the infrastructure and other assets
constructed by or acquired by the First Gen Group and the FPII Group.
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The provisions of Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12 were applied to the applicable assets
acquired and constructed by PNOC Energy Development Corporation (PNOC-EDC) and
Bauang Private Power Corporation (BPPC) in connection with the Geothermal Service
Contracts (GSC), Steam Sales Agreements (SSA) and Power Purchase Agreements (PPA)
with the Government of the Republic of the Philippines (Government) and certain of its
agencies.
PNOC-EDC is a 60% owned subsidiary of First Gen Corporation (First Gen), a 54.84%
owned subsidiary of FPHC, while BPPC is a subsidiary of First Private Power Corporation
(FPPC), which, is in turn, an associate of First Gen.
BPPC
BPPC has an existing Fast Track Build, Operate and Transfer Project Agreement (BOT
Project Agreement) with National Power Corporation (NPC) for the design, financing,
construction and operation of a 225 Megawatt (MW) Bunker-Fired Diesel Power Plant.
Under the BOT Project Agreement, NPC supplies all the fuel required to generate electricity,
with all electricity generated purchased by NPC. BPPC is entitled to payment of fixed
capacity and operations and maintenance fees based on the nominated capacity of 225 MW, as
well as energy fees from the delivery of electric power to NPC. The fixed capacity and
operations and maintenance fees will be paid by NPC whether or not the energy is delivered
by BPPC.
The Project Agreement is for a period of 15 years which runs up to July 2010. Upon
expiration of the 15-year period, BPPC shall transfer to NPC all of its rights, titles and
interests in the power plant complex, free from liens created by BPPC and without any
compensation.
PNOC-EDC
All geothermal resources in public and/or private lands in the Philippines, whether found in,
on or under the surface of dry lands, creeks, rivers, lakes, or other submerged lands within the
waters of the Philippines belong to the State, inalienable and imprescriptible, and their
exploration, development and exploitation are governed under Presidential Decree (PD) No.
1442, “An Act to Promote the Exploration and Development of Geothermal Resources.”
Under PD 1442, the Philippine Government may enter into service contracts for the
exploration, development and exploitation of geothermal resources.
PNOC-EDC acquires the geothermal operations materials, equipment, plants and other
installations as required and necessary to carry out the geothermal operations. All materials,
equipment, plants and other installations erected or placed on the contract areas of a movable
nature by PNOC-EDC remain the property of PNOC-EDC, unless not removed therefrom
within one year after the expiration and/or termination of the related service contract in which
case, ownership will be vested with the Philippine Government.
The Geothermal Service Contracts (GSCs) provide that, among other privileges, PNOC-EDC
has the right to enter into agreements for the disposition of the geothermal resources produced
from the contract areas, subject to the approval by the Philippine Government.
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- 15 Pursuant to such right, PNOC-EDC has entered into SSAs for the sale of the geothermal
resources produced from the service contract areas principally with the NPC. The Steam Sales
Agreements (SSAs) are for a period of 25 years and may be opened for renegotiation by either
party after five years from the date of commercial operations.
EDC has also entered into PPAs with NPC for the development, construction and operation of
geothermal power plants by PNOC-EDC in the service contract areas and the sale to NPC of
the electrical energy generated from such geothermal power plants. The PPAs are for a period
of 25 years of commercial operations and may be extended upon the request of PNOC-EDC
by notice of not less than 12 months prior to the end of the contract period. The terms and
conditions of any such extension are to be agreed upon by the parties.
EDC’s agreements (both SSAs and PPAs) with NPC for the sale of the geothermal resources
(steam) produced from the service contract areas and the sale of the electrical energy
generated from the geothermal power plants contain certain provisions relating to price control
in the form of a cap in PNOC-EDC’s internal rate of return for specific contracts; as well as
for payment by NPC of minimum guaranteed monthly remuneration and nominated capacity.
For its Northern Negros service contract, PNOC-EDC does not have agreement with NPC for
the sale of the geothermal resources and electrical energy produced from the service contract
area. Instead, PNOC-EDC entered into contracts with distribution utilities, electric
cooperatives and other third party buyers of electricity for the sale of the electrical energy
generated from the service contract.
Based on the assessment, all the GSCs of PNOC-EDC and the Project Agreement of BPPC are
within the scope of Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12 and qualify under the financial asset
model except for the GSC for Northern Negros Project. The GSC for Northern Negros Project
qualifies under the intangible asset model. Accordingly, FPHC recognized the consideration
received or receivable in exchange for its infrastructure construction services or its acquisition
of infrastructure to be used in the arrangements as either a financial asset (concession
receivables) to the extent the First Holdings Group has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or other financial asset for its construction services from or at the direction of the
grantor, an intangible asset (concession rights) for the right to charge users of the public
service.
FPII Group
Manila North Tollways Corporation (MNTC, Concessionaire), a subsidiary of FPHC and
Philippine National Construction Corporation (PNCC, Franchisee), executed the Supplemental
Toll Operation Agreement (STOA) for the Manila-North Expressway, whereby the
Government granted MNTC the rights, obligations and privileges including the authority to
finance, design, construct, operate and maintain the project roads as toll roads (Concession).
Upon expiry of the concession period, MNTC shall hand-over the project roads to the Grantor
without cost, free from any and all liens and encumbrances and fully operational and in good
working condition, including any and all existing land required, works, toll road facilities and
equipment found therein directly related to and in connection with the operation of the toll
road facilities.
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- 16 Based on the MNTC’s assessment, the concession agreement described above is within the
scope of IFRIC 12 and would qualify under the intangible asset model. As allowed by its
transitional provisions, MNTC early adopted IFRIC 12 on its service concession and related
arrangements. The adoption of this interpretation required MNTC to recognize the roads and
tollways, currently recorded as property and equipment in its books, as an intangible asset in
accordance with PAS 38, “Intangible Assets.” This intangible asset is amortized using the
straight-line method over the life of the concession agreement. Under the property and
equipment classification, roads and tollways are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of
the assets or term of concession agreement whichever is shorter. For tax purposes, the MNTC
used the units of production method of depreciation on roads and tollways, starting January 1,
2006 as approved by the BIR.
MNTC also recognizes revenues and costs in accordance with PAS 11, “Construction
Contracts.” It measures contract revenue at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Given that MNTC has subcontracted the construction to outside contractor, the
construction revenues recognized is equal to the construction cost.
MNTC will also recognize its contractual obligations to restore the assets to a specified level
of serviceability. These contractual obligations will be recognized starting January 1, 2008
following the final turnover of the Project in October 2007. MNTC, therefore, will recognize
a provision following PAS 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,” as
the obligations arises which is as a consequence of the use of the road and therefore might be
proportional to the number of vehicles using the road and increasing in measurable annual
increments.
The adoption of this interpretation resulted to the increase in the following accounts as of and
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:
2007
Investments in and advances to
associates
Equity in net earnings of associates
Retained earnings, beginning
of year

2006

2005

(In Millions)

P
=480
–

=480
P
84

=396
P
61

480

396

335

Standards and Interpretations Not Yet Effective
The Company did not early adopt the following PFRS and Philippine Interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2007:
�

PAS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised)” (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2009)
This amendment will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009.
This amendment requires that statement of changes in equity includes only transactions with
owners and all non-owner changes are presented in equity as a single line with details included
in a separate statement. Owners are defined as “holders of instruments classified as equity.”
The amendment also introduces a new statement of comprehensive income that combines all
items of income and expenses together with “other comprehensive income.” Entities can
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- 17 choose to present all items in one statement or to present two linked statements, a separate
income statement and a statement of comprehensive income. The Company will apply this
amended standard in 2009.
�

PAS 23, “Borrowing Costs” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2009)
This standard has been revised to require capitalization of borrowing costs when such costs
relate to a qualifying asset. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. In accordance with the transitional
requirements in the standard, the Company will adopt this as a prospective change.
Accordingly, borrowing costs will be capitalized on qualifying assets with a commencement
date after January 1, 2009. No changes will be made for borrowing costs incurred up to this
date that have been expensed.

�

PFRS 8, “Operating Segments” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2009)
This standard adopts a management approach to reporting segment information. The
information reported would be that which management uses internally for evaluating the
performance of operating segments and allocating resources to those segments. Such
information may be different from that reported in the consolidated balance sheet and
consolidated statement of income and companies will need to provide explanations and
reconciliations of the differences. PFRS 8 will replace PAS 14, “Segment Reporting.” The
Company is currently assessing the impact of this standard on its current manner of reporting
segment information.

�

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 11, “Group and Treasury Share Transactions” (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after March 1, 2007)
This interpretation requires arrangements whereby an employee is granted rights to an entity’s
equity instruments to be accounted for as an equity-settled scheme by the entity even if (a) the
entity chooses or is required to buy those equity instruments (e.g., treasury shares) from
another party, or (b) the shareholder(s) of the entity provide the equity instruments needed. It
also provides guidance on how subsidiaries, in their separate financial statements, account for
such schemes when their employees receive rights to the equity instruments of the parent. The
Company does not expect this interpretation to have a significant impact on its consolidated
financial statements.

�

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13, “Customer Loyalty Programs” (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2008)
This interpretation requires customer loyalty award credits to be accounted for as a separate
component of the sales transaction in which they are granted and therefore part of the fair
value of the consideration received is allocated to the award credits and deferred over the
period that the award credits are fulfilled. The Company does not expect this interpretation to
have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 14, “PAS 19, The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction” (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2008)
This interpretation was issued in July 2007 and becomes effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2008. This interpretation provides guidance on how to assess
the limit on the amount of surplus in a defined benefit scheme that can be recognized as an
asset under PAS 19, “Employee Benefits.” The Parent Company is currently assessing the
impact of adopting this standard. ABS-CBN, on the other hand, expects that this
interpretation will have no impact on its financial position or performance as all its defined
benefit schemes are currently not fully funded.

New and revised disclosure requirements will be included in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements when the Company adopts these standards, amendments, and interpretations
on their respective effectivity dates.
Effect of IAS 27 (Amended), “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”
One of the changes to PAS 27 relates to changes in the parent company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary after control is obtained that do not result in a loss of control. Based on the amended
standard, such transaction should be accounted for as transactions with equity holders in their
capacity as equity holders. As a result, no gain or loss on such changes would be recognized in
statement of income. IAS 27 (Amended) shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2009. Earlier application is permitted only if IFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) is also applied.
However, the Financial Reporting Standards Council and SEC have not yet adopted IAS 27
(Amended).
Assuming IAS 27 (Amended) is adopted, because the transition provision does not require
retroactive application, the gain or loss on dilution recognized in the 2007 and 2006 consolidated
statement of income, related mainly to the Company’s share in gain on dilution of FPHC’s interest
in First Gen Group as a result of the latter’s public offering of its common shares recognized in the
=1.2 billion, shall not be reversed and be
2006 consolidated statement of income, amounting to P
recognized directly in equity.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three
months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Inventories
Inventories, included under “Other current assets” account in the consolidated balance sheet, are
valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on the weighted average
method. Net realizable value of inventories that are for sale is the selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the costs of marketing and distribution. Net realizable value of inventories
not held for sale is the current replacement cost. Unrealizable inventories are written off.
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Property and equipment, except land, are carried at cost (including capitalized interest), excluding
the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and amortization and accumulated
impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of such property and equipment
when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met. Land is stated at cost less any
impairment in value. Depreciation and amortization are computed on a straight-line method over
the property and equipment’s useful lives.
The property and equipment’s residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year-end.
Construction in progress represents equipment under installation and building under construction
and is stated at cost which includes cost of construction and other direct costs. Construction in
progress is not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are completed and available for
operational use.
An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.
Asset Retirement Obligation
The net present value of legal obligations associated with the retirement of an item of property and
equipment that resulted from the acquisition, construction or development and the normal
operations of property and equipment is recognized in the period in which it is incurred and a
reasonable estimate of the obligation can be made.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and any accumulated impairment losses. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortization period and method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life is reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted
for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized
in the consolidated statement of income in those expense categories consistent with the function of
the intangible asset.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from finite
to indefinite is made on a prospective basis.
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Amortization
Method Used

Impairment
Testing/
Recoverable
Amount Testing

Current and
Noncurrent
Portion

Intangible Asset

Useful Lives

Program Rights

Finite (license term
or economic life,
whichever is
shorter)

Amortized on the
basis of program
usage except for
CPI, which is
amortized on a
straight-line
method over the
license term.

If the remaining
expected benefit
period is shorter
than the
Company’s initial
estimates, the
Company
accelerates
amortization of the
purchase price or
license fee.

Based on the
estimated year of
usage except CPI,
which is based on
license term.

Story, Music and
Publication Rights

Finite (useful
economic benefit)

Amortized on the
basis of the useful
economic life.

If the remaining
expected benefit
period is shorter
than the
Company’s initial
estimates, the
Company
accelerates
amortization of the
cost.

Based on the
estimated year of
usage.

Movie In-Process

Finite

Individual-filmforecast
computation
method.

If the unamortized
film cost is less
than the fair value
of the film, the
asset is written
down to its
recoverable
amount.

Based on the
estimated year of
usage.

Video Rights and
Record Master

Finite (six months
or 10,000 copies
sold of video discs
and tapes,
whichever comes
first)

Amortized on the
basis of number of
copies sold.

If the remaining
expected benefit
period is shorter
than the
Company’s initial
estimates, the
Company
accelerates
amortization of the
cost.

Current.

Cable Channels CPI

Indefinite

No amortization.

Annually and more Noncurrent.
frequently when an
indication of
impairment exists.

- 21 -

Intangible Asset

Useful Lives

Production and
Distribution
Business - Middle
East

Finite - 25 years

Amortization
Method Used
Amortized on a
straight-line basis
over the period of
25 years.

Impairment
Testing/
Recoverable
Amount Testing
If the remaining
expected benefit
period is shorter
than the
Company’s initial
estimates, the
Company
accelerates
amortization of the
cost.

Current and
Noncurrent
Portion
Noncurrent.

Investments in Associates
The Company’s investments in associates are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. An associate is an entity over which the Company owns 20% or more or has
significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.
Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried at cost plus post-acquisition
changes in the Company’s share of net assets of the associate in the consolidated balance sheet.
Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not
amortized. The consolidated statement of income reflects the share on the results of operations of
an associate. Where there has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate, the
Company recognizes its share in any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. After application of the equity method, the Company
determines whether it is necessary to recognize any additional impairment loss with respect to the
Company’s net investment in the associate.
The reporting dates of the associates and the Company are identical and the associates’ accounting
policies conform to those used by the Company for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances.
Equity adjustment from translation represents the Company share in the adjustments of an
associate resulting from the translation into Philippine peso of the foreign currency financial
statements of an associate’s investee.
Starting in 2001, the Parent Company discontinued the recognition of its 49% share in the losses
of Bayan Telecommunications Holdings Corporation (Bayantel). The accumulated losses in
Bayantel reduced the carrying value of the Parent Company’s investment in Bayantel to zero.
Additional claims against the Parent Company arising from its guarantees and commitments have
been provided for and credited to “Estimated liabilities from guarantees and commitments”
account in the consolidated financial statements. If Bayantel subsequently reports profits, the
Parent Company will resume including its share of these profits only after its share of the profits
equals the share of net losses not recognized.
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- 22 In July 2003, Verizon Communications, Inc., a 19% shareholder of Bayantel sold all of its equity
interest in Bayantel to the Parent Company. As a result, the Parent Company’s equity ownership
in Bayantel increased from 49% to 68%. Lopez retained its direct equity ownership in Bayantel of
17%. On the same date, the Parent Company executed a Voting Trust Agreement with Lopez
where the Parent Company assigned the voting rights of the additional 19% equity in Bayantel to
Lopez while the Parent Company still has outstanding liabilities to Lopez. As a result, Lopez
retained control of Bayantel and continues to consolidate Bayantel in its consolidated financial
statements.
In November 2007, as a result of the purchase of the AIF Put Option, an additional 3.4 million
shares of Bayantel, equivalent to 2.92% ownership in Bayantel, were transferred to the Parent
Company. The Parent Company has entered into an agreement with Lopez to include the 2.92%
additional ownership in Bayantel in the Voting Trust Agreement.
Goodwill
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the Company’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment,
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired.
Goodwill is shown under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated balance sheet.
Tax Credits
Tax credits from government airtime sales availed under Presidential Decree (PD) No. 1362 are
recognized in the books upon actual airing of government commercials and advertisements. This
is included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated balance sheet.
Deferred Charges and Credits
Loss or gain on sale of decoders and set-top boxes which has no stand alone value without the
subscription revenues are aggregated and recognized ratably over the longer of subscription
contract term or the estimated customer service life. These are presented as part of “Other
noncurrent assets” account and “Trade and other payables” account (under “Deferred revenue”),
respectively, in the consolidated balance sheet.
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that property and
equipment, noncurrent program rights and other intangible assets, and tax credits may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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- 23 For assets, excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is
any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is
the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
and amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of income unless the asset is carried at
revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. After such a
reversal, the depreciation and amortization charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the
asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining
useful life.
Goodwill. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for
goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units is less than the carrying
amount of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill has been allocated, an impairment loss
is recognized. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods. The
Company performs its annual impairment test of goodwill at December 31.
Associates. After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is
necessary to recognize any additional impairment loss with respect to the Company’s net
investment in the associate. The Company determines at each balance sheet date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investments in associates are impaired. If this is the case, the
Company calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference between the fair value of
the associate and the acquisition cost and recognizes the amount in the consolidated statement of
income.
Financial Instruments
Date of Recognition. Purchases or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on the
settlement date. Derivatives are recognized on trade date basis (i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset).
Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of all
financial assets and liabilities, except for financial instruments which are measured at FVPL.
Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or
a component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense or income. Distributions to
holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any
related income tax benefits.
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- 24 A financial instrument is classified as debt if it provided for a contractual obligation to:
�

deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

�

exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Company; or

�

satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own shares.

Determination of Fair Value. The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organized
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at
the balance sheet date. When current bid and asking prices are not available, the price of the most
recent transaction provides evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a
significant change in economic circumstances since the time of the transaction.
For investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using reference to similar instruments for which observable
prices exist, discounted cash flows analyses, and other relevant valuation models.
“Day 1” Profit. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value
of other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” profit) in the consolidated
statement of income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where
use is made of data which is not observable, the difference between the transaction price and
model value is only recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the inputs become
observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1” profit amount.
Financial Assets
Financial assets are further classified into the following categories: (a) financial asset at FVPL; (b)
loans and receivables; (c) held-to-maturity (HTM) investments; and (d) AFS financial assets. The
Company determines the classification at initial recognition and where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.
a. Financial Assets at FVPL
Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading purposes, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, and derivative instruments.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
and repurchasing in the near term. Included in this classification are debt and equity securities
which have been acquired principally for trading purposes.
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- 25 Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition as at FVPL if any of the following
criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or recognizing gains or losses
on a different basis; or (ii) the assets or liabilities are part of a group of financial assets,
financial liabilities or both which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial
instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it would not be
separately recorded.
Financial assets at FVPL are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value. Changes
in fair value are accounted for in the consolidated statement of income. Interest earned or
incurred is recorded as interest income or expense, respectively.
The Company’s derivative instruments (including embedded derivatives) that are not
accounted for as accounting hedges are classified under this category as of December 31,
2006. As of December 31, 2007, there are no outstanding derivative instruments.
Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging
The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps and cross
currency swaps to hedge its risks associated with interest rate and foreign currency
fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when
the fair value is negative.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are taken directly to the consolidated statement of income.
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
�

fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized
asset or liability;

�

cash flow hedges when hedging exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a forecast
transaction; or

�

hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

A hedge of the foreign currency risk of a firm commitment is accounted for as a cash flow
hedge.
At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes
identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk
being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in
offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to
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- 26 the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they
actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they
were designated.
Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:
Fair Value Hedges. Fair value hedges are hedges of the Company’s exposure to changes in
the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment, or an
identified portion of such an asset, liability or firm commitment, that is attributable to a
particular risk and could affect profit or loss. For fair value hedges, the carrying amount of the
hedged item is adjusted for gains and losses attributable to the risk being hedged, the
derivative is remeasured at fair value and gains and losses from both are taken to the
consolidated statement of income.
The Company has no derivatives that are designated or accounted for as fair value hedges as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006.
Cash Flow Hedges. Cash flow hedges are hedges of the exposures to variability in cash flows
that are attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a
highly probable forecast transaction and could affect the consolidated statement of income.
Changes in the fair value of a hedging instrument that qualifies as a highly effective cash flow
hedge are recognized directly in equity, while any hedge ineffectiveness is recognized
immediately in the consolidated statement of income.
Amounts taken to equity are transferred to the consolidated statement of income when the
hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when hedged financial income or financial
expense is recognized or when a forecast sale or purchase occurs. Where the hedged item is
the cost of a nonfinancial asset or liability, the amounts taken to equity are transferred to the
initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.
If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, amounts previously recognized in
equity are transferred to the consolidated statement of income. If the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its designation
as a hedge is revoked, amounts previously recognized in equity remain in equity until the
forecast transaction occurs. If the related transaction is not expected to occur, the amount is
taken to the consolidated statement of income.
In October 2005, ABS-CBN designated its outstanding interest rate and cross currency swaps
as cash flow hedges. In 2007, these were terminated as a result of the prepayment of the
underlying obligation (see Note 28). There are no outstanding cash flow hedges as of
December 31, 2007.
Hedges of a Net Investment. Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a
hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the net investment, are accounted for
in a way similar to cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the
effective portion of the hedge are recognized directly in equity while any gains or losses
relating to the ineffective portion are recognized in the consolidated statement of income. On
disposal of the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recognized
directly in equity is transferred to the consolidated statement of income.
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- 27 The Company has no hedges of a net investment as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.
b. Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are not entered into with the intention of
immediate or short-term resale, are not classified as financial assets at FVPL, designated as
AFS financial assets or HTM investments.
After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method less allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs
that are integral part of the effective interest rate. The amortization is included in the interest
income in the consolidated statement of income. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in provision for doubtful accounts in the consolidated statement of income.
Loans and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within 12 months from the
balance sheet date otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.
This category includes the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, trade, intercompany and
other receivables (see Notes 2, 7 and 8).
c. AFS Financial Assets
AFS financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as AFS or are
not classified in any of the three preceding categories. They are purchased and held
indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market
conditions.
After initial recognition, AFS financial assets are measured at fair value. The effective yield
component of debt securities classified as AFS financial assets, as well as the impact of
restatement on foreign currency-denominated debt securities classified as AFS, is reported in
the consolidated statement of income. The unrealized gains and losses arising from the fair
valuation of AFS financial assets are excluded, net of applicable tax, from the consolidated
statement of income and are reported as cumulative translation adjustments in the equity
section of the consolidated balance sheet and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Assets under this category are classified as current assets if maturity is within 12
months from the balance sheet date and as noncurrent assets if maturity date is more than a
year from the balance sheet date.
The Company’s AFS financial assets include investments in ordinary common shares
(see Notes 9 and 12).
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Quoted nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities are classified as HTM when the Company has the positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity. Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in
this category. Other long-term investments that are intended to be HTM, such as bonds, are
subsequently measured at amortized cost. This cost is computed as the amount initially
recognized minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the
effective interest rate method of any difference between the initially recognized amount and
the maturity amount. This calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and all other premiums and discounts. For investments carried at amortized cost, gains and
losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the investments are
derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.
The Company has no HTM investments as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are categorized as financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities at
amortized cost. The Company does not have financial liabilities at FVPL.
Other Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost. Other financial liabilities at amortized cost pertain
to issued financial instruments or their components that are not classified or designated at FVPL
and contain contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder or to
settle the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. The components of issued financial instruments
that contain both liability and equity elements are accounted for separately, with the equity
component being assigned the residual amount after deducting from the instrument as a whole the
amount separately determined as the fair value of the liability component on the date of issue.
This category includes loans and borrowings which are initially recognized at fair value of the
consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs.
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
Gains or losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the amortization process.
The Company’s other financial liabilities at amortized cost include trade and other payables
(see Note 15), interest-bearing loans and borrowings (see Note 16) and obligations for program
rights (see Note 28).
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- 29 Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired.
Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use
of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in the consolidated statement
of income.
The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset
is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of
financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.
In relation to trade receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective
evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor)
that the Company will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the
invoice. The carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through use of an allowance account.
Impaired debts are derecognized when they are assessed as uncollectible.
Assets Carried at Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted
equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an
unquoted equity instrument has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
AFS Financial Assets. If an AFS financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortization) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognized in the consolidated statement of income, is transferred
from equity to the consolidated statement of income. Reversals in respect of equity instruments
classified as AFS are not recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Reversals of
impairment losses, if any, on debt instruments are reversed through the consolidated statement of
income, if the increase in fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
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- 30 AFS financial asset is considered impaired when there is a significant or prolonged decline in
market value against cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists.
Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the
related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated balance sheet.
Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial Asset. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:
�

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

�

the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

�

the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
Financial Liability. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.
Revenue
Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
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�

Airtime revenue is recognized as income on the dates the advertisements are aired. The fair
values of barter transactions are included in airtime revenue and the related accounts. These
transactions represent advertising time exchanged for program materials, merchandise or
service.

�

Sale of services include:
a. Subscription fees which are recognized as follows:
�

DTH subscribers and cable operators. Subscription fees are recognized under the
accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

�

Share in DirecTV subscription revenue. Subscription revenue from subscribers of
DirecTV who subscribe to The Filipino Channel (TFC) is recognized in accordance
with the Deal Memorandum, as discussed in Note 30.

�

Subscription revenue from ABS-CBN Now. Subscription revenue from online
streaming services of Filipino-oriented content and programming is received in
advance (included as “Deferred revenue” under “Trade and other payables” account in
the consolidated balance sheet) and is deferred and recognized as revenue over the
period during which the service is performed.

b. Telecommunications revenues are recognized when earned. These are stated net of the
share of the other telecommunications carriers, if any, under existing correspondence and
interconnection agreements. Interconnection fees and charges are based on agreed rates
with the other telecommunications carriers.
Income from prepaid phone cards are realized based on actual usage hours or expiration of
the unused value of the card, whichever comes earlier. Income from prepaid card sales for
which the related services have not been rendered as of balance sheet date, is presented as
“Other current liabilities” under “Trade and other payables” account in the consolidated
balance sheet.
c. Channel lease revenue are recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
d. Income from film exhibition are recognized, net of theater shares, on the dates the films
are shown.
e. Income from TV rights and cable rights are recognized on the dates the films are
permitted to be publicly shown as stipulated in the agreement.
�

License fees earned from DirecTV are recognized upon migration of the DTH subscribers of
ABS-CBN International, Inc. (ABS-CBN International) to DirecTV. The additional license
fees for each migrated subscriber that will remain for 14 consecutive months from the date of
activation, will be recognized on the 14th month (see Note 30).
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Sale of goods is recognized when delivery has taken place and transfer of risks and rewards
has been completed. These are stated net of sales discounts, returns and allowances.

�

Income and related costs pertaining to the sale and installation of decoders and set-top boxes
which has no stand alone value without the subscription revenues are aggregated and
recognized ratably over the longer of subscription contract term or the estimated customer
service life.

�

Short-messaging-system/text-based revenues, sale of news materials and Company-produced
programs included under “Sales of services” account in the consolidated statement of income
are recognized upon delivery.

�

Royalty income, included as part of “Sale of services” account in the consolidated statement
of income, is recognized upon rendering of service based on the terms of the agreement and is
reduced to the extent of the share of the composers or co-publishers of the songs produced for
original sound recording.

�

Management fees, included as part of “Other income” account in the consolidated statement of
income, is recognized based on the terms of the management agreement.

�

Rental income is recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Maynilad Water (see Note 3)
�

Revenue from water and sewerage services of Maynilad Water are recognized upon supply of
water to the customers. Billings to customers consist of the following:
a. Water Charges
�

Basic charges represent the basic tariff charged to consumers for the provisions of
water services. The basic tariff is subject to Consurmer Price Index, Extraordinary
Price Adjustment (EPA) and rate rebasing adjustments.

�

Accelerated EPA (AEPA) represents the tariff adjustment granted on October 20,
2001 until December 31, 2002, for the recovery of realized foreign exchange losses as
of December 31, 2000.

�

Foreign Currency Differential Adjustment (FCDA) is the mechanism that allows
Maynilad Water to recover foreign exchange losses on a current basis beginning
January 1, 2002 until May 6, 2022.

�

Maintenance service charge represents a fixed monthly charge per connection. The
charge varies depending on the meter size.

b. Environmental charge represents 10% of the water charges.
c. Sewerage charge represents 50% of the water charges for all consumers connected to
Maynilad Water’s sewer lines.
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- 33 Other Revenues
�

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis that reflects the effective yield on the
asset.

�

Dividends are recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized
as an interest expense.
Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset.
Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in
progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred and ceases when the assets are
ready for their intended use. If the resulting carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recorded. Borrowing costs include interest charges and other costs
incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Pension Costs
The Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit plan, except for ABS-CBN
International which has a defined contribution plan. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined separately for each plan using the projected unit credit method.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense when the net cumulative
unrecognized actuarial gains and losses for each individual plan at the end of the previous
reporting year exceeded 10% of the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets at that date. These gains or losses are recognized over the expected average remaining
working lives of the employees participating in the plans.
The past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. If the benefits are already vested immediately following the
introduction of, or changes to, a pension plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.
The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation
and actuarial gains and losses not recognized reduced by past service cost not yet recognized and
the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. If such
aggregate is negative, the asset is measured at the lower of such aggregate or the aggregate of
cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost and the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future
contributions to the plan.
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- 34 For ABS-CBN International, the defined contribution pension plan is composed of the
contribution of ABS-CBN International or employee (or both) to the employee’s individual
account. These contributions generally are invested on behalf of the employee through American
Funds. Employees ultimately receive the balance in their account, which is based on contributions
plus or minus investment gains or losses. The value of each account will fluctuate due to changes
in the value of investments.
Leases
The determination whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is
made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:
a. there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the agreement;
b. a renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;
c. there is a change in the determination of whether the fulfillment is dependent on a specified
asset; or
d. there is a substantial change to the asset.
Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios a, c or d and the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario b.
Finance Leases. Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and
benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease at
the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged directly against the consolidated statement of income.
Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset
and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by
the end of the lease term.
Operating Leases. Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
Income Taxes
Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.
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- 35 Deferred Tax. Deferred income tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including
asset revaluations. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income
tax (MCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
carryforward benefits of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred income tax,
however, is not recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax liabilities are not provided on non-taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in domestic subsidiaries and associates. With respect to investments in other
subsidiaries and associates, deferred income tax liabilities are recognized except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax
assets are measured at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred income tax to be recovered.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
Foreign Currency Translation
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Company determines its own functional
currency and items included in the consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate ruling at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All
differences are taken to the consolidated statement of income with the exception of differences on
foreign currency borrowings that provide a hedge against a net investment in a foreign entity.
These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are
recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those borrowings are also dealt with in equity. Nonmonetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
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- 36 rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.
Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income for the year attributable to
common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net income attributable to common
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential common shares from the conversion of Perpetual Convertible Bonds. The
number of common shares is the weighted average number of common shares plus the weighted
average number of common shares which would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive
potential common shares into common shares. For calculation purposes, Perpetual Convertible
Bonds are deemed to have been converted into common shares at the date of the issue of the
convertible bonds.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. They are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Subsequent Events
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position at
the balance sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to consolidated
financial statements when material.
Business Segments
The Company is organized into three major operating businesses, namely, investment holdings,
broadcasting and entertainment and water distribution (up to July 20, 2005 - see Note 3). The
Company’s remaining activity of information service is shown as services. Financial information
on business segments is presented in Note 6.
5. Management’s Use of Judgments and Estimates
The Company’s consolidated financial statements prepared under PFRS require management to
make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements and related notes. Future events may occur which will cause the judgments and
assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in judgments
and estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements as they become reasonably
determinable.
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- 37 Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
Judgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
Leases. The evaluation whether an arrangement contains a lease is based on its substance. An
arrangement is, or contains a lease when the fulfillment of the arrangement depends on a specific
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys the right to use the asset.
ABS-CBN has entered into operating lease arrangements as a lessor and as a lessee. ABS-CBN, as a
lessee, has determined that the lessor retains substantial risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are on operating lease agreements. As a lessor, ABS-CBN retains substantially all
the risks and benefits of ownership of the assets.
ABS-CBN has also entered into finance lease agreements covering certain property and equipment.
ABS-CBN has determined that it bears substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership
of said properties which are on finance lease agreements.
The carrying amount of property and equipment under finance lease amounted to P
=310 million and
=175 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively (see Note 11).
P
Determination of Functional Currency. Management uses judgment in assessing the functional
currency of ABS-CBN Middle East and ABS-CBN Europe. Management has determined the
functional currency of these companies to be the USD and GBP, respectively, which are not their
local currency but the currency that reflects the underlying transactions, events and conditions that are
relevant to ABS-CBN Middle East and ABS-CBN Europe. It is the currency that mainly influences
the revenue and cost of rendering services.
Financial Assets not Quoted in an Active Market. The Company classifies financial assets by
evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted or not in an active market. Included in the
evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted in an active market is the determination on whether
quoted prices are readily and regularly available, and whether those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
Estimates
The key assumptions concerning future and other key sources of estimation at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
Revenue Recognition. ABS-CBN’s telecommunications revenue recognition policies require the use
of estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of revenues and receivables.
The difference between the amount initially recognized and actual settlement or actual billing is taken
up in the accounts in the next period. However, there is no assurance that such use of estimates will
not result in material adjustments in future periods.
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- 38 Fair Value of Financial Instruments. PFRS requires that certain financial assets and liabilities
(including derivative instruments) be carried at fair value, which requires the use of accounting
estimates and judgment. While significant components of fair value measurement are determined
using verifiable objective evidence (i.e. foreign exchange rates, interest rates, volatility rates), the
timing and amount of changes in fair value would differ using a different valuation methodology.
Any change in the fair values of financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments)
directly affect the consolidated statement of income and equity.
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are set out in Note 28.
Estimated Useful Lives. The useful life of each of the Company’s property and equipment and
intangible assets with definite life is estimated based on the period over which the asset is expected to
be available for use. Estimation for property and equipment is based on a collective assessment of
industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets while for intangible
assets with definite life, estimated life is based on the life of agreement covering such intangibles.
The estimated useful life of each asset is reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ from
previous estimates due to physical wear and tear or other limits on the use of the asset. It is possible,
however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the amounts and
timing of recorded expenses brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above. A reduction in
the estimated useful life of any property and equipment or intangible assets would increase the
recorded expenses and decrease noncurrent assets.
The carrying values of property and equipment and intangible assets with definite life are as follows
(see Notes 11 and 13):
2007
Property and equipment - net
Program rights
Production and distribution business - Middle East
Movie in-process
Video rights and record master
Story, music and publication rights

P
=9,905
2,025
100
73
8
5

2006
(In Millions)

=10,185
P
1,537
125
83
8
5

Asset Retirement Obligation. Determining asset retirement obligation requires estimation of the costs
of dismantling installations and restoring leased properties to their original condition. While it is
believed that the assumptions used in the estimation of such costs are reasonable, significant changes
in these assumptions may materially affect the recorded expense or obligation in future periods.
Asset retirement obligation amounted to P
=15 million and P
=17 million as of December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively (see Note 18).
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets. The Company assesses impairment on assets whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The
factors that the group considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the
following:
�
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significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;

- 39 �

significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall business;
and

�

significant negative industry or economic trends.

The Company recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds it
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is computed using the value in use approach.
Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Nonfinancial assets subject to impairment testing when certain impairment indicators are present
follow (see Notes 11, 12 and 13):
2007
Property and equipment - net
Tax credits
Program rights
Cable channels - CPI
Deposits
Production and distribution business - Middle East

P
=9,905
1,707
2,025
460
218
100
P
=14,415

2006
(In Millions)

=10,185
P
1,741
1,537
460
218
125
=14,266
P

No impairment loss was recognized in 2007. Impairment loss of P
=335 million was recognized in
2006 and =
P2,063 million in 2005 for the Parent Company’s deposits related to SkyVision shares
based on assumptions outlined in Note 12. No impairment loss for other long-lived assets was
recognized in 2007, 2006 and 2005.
Impairment of AFS Equity Investments. The Company treats AFS equity investments as impaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where
objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’
requires judgment. The Company treats ‘significant’ generally as 20% or more of the original cost of
investment, and ‘prolonged’ as greater than 6 months. In addition, the Company evaluates other
factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted equities and the future cash flows and
discount factors for unquoted equities.
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, current and noncurrent AFS investments amounted to
=1,669 million and P
P
=1,785 million, respectively (see Notes 9 and 12).
Impairment of Goodwill. Goodwill is annually evaluated for impairment. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the
value in use requires the Company to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.
Provision for impairment loss of goodwill amounted to =
P22 million in 2007. No impairment loss was
recognized in 2006 and 2005. The carrying amount of goodwill at December 31, 2007 and 2006
amounted to P
=104 million and P
=126 million, shown under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the
consolidated balance sheets (see Note 12).
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- 40 Recognition of Deferred Income Tax Assets. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be
utilized. However, there is no assurance that sufficient taxable profit will be generated to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.
Net recognized deferred income tax assets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 amounted to
=184 million and P
P
=302 million, respectively. Unrecognized deferred tax assets as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006 amounted to P
=1,348 million and P
=2,603 million, respectively
(see Note 25).
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts at a
level considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The level of allowance is
evaluated by the Company on the basis of factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts. These
factors include, but are not limited to, the length of the Company’s relationship with the customers,
average age of accounts and collection experience. The Company performs a regular review of the
age and status of these accounts, designed to identify accounts with objective evidence of impairment
and provide the appropriate allowance for impairment losses. The amount and timing of recorded
expenses for any period would differ if the Company made different judgments or utilized different
methodologies. An increase in allowance for doubtful accounts would increase the recorded
operating expenses and decrease current assets.
Provision for doubtful accounts amounted to P
=102 million in 2007, P
=94 million in 2006 and
=160 million in 2005 (see Note 23). Trade and other receivables, net of allowance for doubtful
P
accounts, amounted to P
=4,984 million and P
=4,438 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 amounted to
=319 million and P
P
=551 million, respectively (see Note 8).
Net Realizable Value of Inventories. Inventories are carried at net realizable value whenever net
realizable value of inventories becomes lower than cost due to damage, physical deterioration,
obsolescence, changes in price levels or other causes. The allowance account is reviewed on a
regular basis to reflect the accurate valuation in the financial records. Inventory items identified to
be obsolete and unusable are written off and charged as expense in the period such losses are
identified.
Provision for decline in value of inventory amounted to P
=15 million in 2007 and P
=1 million in
2006 and 2005. Inventories, net of allowance for decline in value of inventory, amounted to
=170 million and P
P
=207 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively (see Note 9).
Present Value of Pension Obligation. The cost of defined benefit obligation is determined using
actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates,
expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension
increases. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to uncertainty.
The expected rate of return on plan assets was based on average historical premium on plan assets.
The assumed discount rates were determined using the market yields on Philippine bonds with
terms consistent with the expected employee benefit payout as of statements of income dates
(see Note 26).
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- 41 As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the present value of the pension obligation of the Parent
Company amounted to P
=93 million and P
=67 million, respectively.
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the present value of the pension obligation of ABS-CBN
amounted to P
=860 million and =
P854 million, respectively while its unrecognized net actuarial loss
amounted to P
=195 million and P
=398 million, respectively (see Note 26).
Contingencies. The Company is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The Company’s
estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation
with outside counsel handling defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential
results. The Company currently does not believe these proceedings will have a material adverse
effect on its consolidated financial position and results of operations. It is possible, however, that
future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the
effectiveness of strategies relating to these proceedings (see Note 33).
6. Segment Information
The primary segment reporting format is determined to be business segments as the Company’s
risks and rates of return are affected predominantly by differences in the products and services
produced. Secondary information is reported geographically. The operating businesses are
organized and managed separately according to the nature of the products and services provided,
with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves
different markets.
Segment information is prepared on the following bases:
Business Segments
The Company’s main businesses are investment holdings, broadcasting and entertainment and
water distribution (up to July 20, 2005 - see Note 3). Broadcasting and entertainment is further
segmented into three business activities - broadcasting, cable and satellite, and other businesses.
This segmentation is the basis upon which ABS-CBN reports its primary segment information.
The broadcasting segment is principally the television and radio broadcasting activities which
generate revenue from sale of national and regional advertising time. Cable and satellite business
primarily develops and produces programs for cable television, including delivery of television
programming outside the Philippines through its DTH satellite service, cable television channels
and blocked time on television stations. Other businesses include movie production, consumer
products and services. The Company’s remaining activity includes information service.
Geographical Segments
Although ABS-CBN is organized into three business activities, it operates in three major
geographical areas. In the Philippines, its home country, ABS-CBN is involved in broadcasting,
cable operations and other businesses. In the United States and in other locations (which includes
Middle East, Europe, Australia, Canada and Japan), ABS-CBN operates its cable and satellite
operations to bring television programming outside the Philippines.
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- 42 ABS-CBN’s geographical segments are based on the location of ABS-CBN’s assets. Sales to
external customers disclosed in geographical segments are based on the geographical location of
its customers.
Intersegment Transactions
Transfer prices between business segments are set on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to
transactions with third parties. Segment revenue, segment expense and segment result include
transfers among business segments and geographical segments. Those transfers are eliminated in
consolidation.
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P1
=
18
453

P
=–
18

223
2,319

P6
=
19

=24,095 P
=24,032
P
=20,366 P

P2,541
=
24,230

–

P
=–
–

P
=–

P
=–
–

P
=–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
P
=–

P
=–
–
P
=–

–

=–
P
–

=–
P

=–
P
–

=–
P
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
=–
P

=–
P
–
=–
P

–

=1,334
P
54

=–
P

=–
P
–

=777
P
–
–
–
–
–
(20)
–
=757
P

=4,301
P
–
=4,301
P

Water Distribution
2006
2005
2007

–

P
=–
–

P
=16

P
=–
5

P
=–
(1)
(3)
–
–
–
–
–
(P
=4)

P
=–
–
P
=–

2007

–

=–
P
–

=12
P

P4
=
11

=–
P
–
3
–
–
–
–
–
=3
P

=–
P
–
=–
P

Services
2006

=815
P
–
672
152
(972)
119
(375)
–
=411
P

=300
P
–
469
260
(955)
(9)
9
–
=74
P

–

=–
P
–

=9
P

333

P
=1,586
1,849

P
=4,294

197

=1,090
P
1,706

=4,177
P

572

=1,287
P
1,761

=4,001
P

P– P
=
P18,543 =
P20,695
=20,259 =
10
3,581
2,488
3,557

(P
=2) P
=1,513
–
–
–
868
–
71
–
(954)
–
174
–
(596)
–
–
(P
=2) P
=1,076

=– P
P
P11,169 =
P11,612
=13,537 =
–
217
111
75
=– P
P
=11,386 P
=11,723
=13,612 P

2005

129

P
=909
348

P
=2,069

P
=4,704
–

P
=191
12
63
72
(25)
(4)
(245)
–
P
=64

P
=4,736
128
P
=4,864

90

=244
P
252

=1,623
P

=4,417
P
–

P53
=
(52)
340
5
(52)
35
(192)
–
=137
P

=4,455
P
104
=4,559
P

465

=290
P
202

=2,403
P

=1,642
P
–

P385
=
(194)
747
32
(11)
(30)
62
–
=991
P

=4,068
P
–
=4,068
P

Broadcasting
Cable Satellite
2006
2005
2006
2005
2007
2007
(In Millions)

34

P
=234
108

P
=1,680

P
=2,708
–

P
=194
–
89
4
(3)
27
(120)
–
P
=191

P
=1,618
169
P
=1,787

12

=261
P
99

=3,909
P

=4,632
P
–

=96
P
–
54
5
–
18
(75)
–
=98
P

=1,396
P
236
=1,632
P
P
=485
–
(522)
(35)
35
–
(25)
–
(P
=62)

P
=–
(372)
(P
=372)

2007

=669
P
–
(618)
–
42
–
3
–
=96
P

=–
P
(557)
(P
=557)

2007

Consolidated
2006
2005

=905 P
P
P1,289
=401
P
=2,038 =
–
4,672
2,627
2,841
(953) 1,055
646
365
–
198
297
175
– (2,157) (2,312) (2,329)
–
920
522
3,242
–
(646)
(191)
(997)
–
(65)
(492)
(269)
(P
=48) P
=4,702 P
=1,200
=5,928 P

=– P
P
P17,020 =
P21,348
=19,891 =
(384)
–
–
–
(P
=384) P
=17,020 P
=21,348
=19,891 P

Elimination
2006
2005

12

=212
P
99

–

P
=–
–

–

=–
P
–

(292)

=29
P
–

719

P
=2,729
2,323

752

=1,596
P
2,075

3,076

=3,158
P
2,135

P47,635 =
P51,272
P
=48,145 =
=814 (P
P
=4,059) (P
=1,894) P
=29,757 P
=29,365
=1,780) (P
=26,645 P

=3,977 (P
P
=4,037) (P
=1,857) P
P27,524 =
P26,998
=1,791) (P
=29,166 =
– (3,513) (3,537) (2,444) 18,979 20,111 24,284

(P
=539)
–
23
5
(1)
(8)
(240)
–
(P
=760)

=1,367
P
273
=1,640
P

Other Business of
ABS-CBN
2006
2005
2007

Other Segment Information
Segment assets
Capital expenditures:
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

Revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales
Total revenue

Philippines
2006
2005

777
1,743
560
985

708
900

=28,153 P
=25,770
P
=28,714 P

P13,084 =
P13,202
P
=15,940 =
557
384
372
=13,641 P
=13,586
P
=16,312 P

2007

132
–

P
=2,351

P
=2,603
–
P
=2,603

2007

30
–

=2,659
P

=2,816
P
–
=2,816
P

170
–

=1,863
P

=2,919
P
–
=2,919
P

United States
2006
2005

77
–

P
=163

P
=1,348
–
P
=1,348

20
–

=361
P

=1,120
P
–
=1,120
P

P
=–
(372)
(P
=372)

2007

=–
P
(557)
(P
=557)

2007

Consolidated
2006
2005

=– P
P
P17,020 =
P17,047
=19,891 =
(384)
–
–
–
(P
=384) P
=17,020 P
=17,047
=19,891 P

Eliminations
2006
2005

11
–

–
–

–
–

–
29

986
1,743

610
985

889
929

=1,169 (P
P
=7,573) (P
=4,301) P
=23,600 P
=24,501
=5,304) (P
=25,924 P

=926
P
–
=926
P

Others
2005
2007 2006
(In Millions)

Geographical Segment Data
The following tables present revenue and expenditure and certain asset information regarding geographical segments of ABS-CBN as of and for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Other Segment Information
Capital Expenditures
Depreciation and amortization
Noncash expenses other than
depreciation and amortization

Consolidated total assets
Segment liabilities

P3,965
=
20,056

P
=3,286
18,930

=–
P
–
=–
P

Segment Assets and Liabilities
Segment assets
Investment in associates

=–
P
–
=–
P

=344) (P
=1,425)
(P
=345) (P
4,724
2,821
2,830
195
79
560
36
–
63
(1,210) (1,330) (1,362)
748
569
3,045
(7)
(2)
(11)
(65)
(492)
(269)
=3,957
=188
P
P
=4,663 P

P
=–
–
P
=–

Results
Segment result
Equity in net earnings
Other income - net
Interest income
Finance costs
Foreign exchange gain (loss)
Income tax
Loss on dilution
Net income

Revenues
Intersegment-sales
Total revenues

Investment Holding
2006
2005
2007

Business Segment Data
The following tables present revenue and income information and certain asset and liability information regarding business segments for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:
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- 44 7. Cash and Cash Equivalents
2007
Cash on hand and in banks
Short-term investments

(In Millions)

2006

=1,342
P
1,627
=2,969
P

P
=1,559
1,403
P
=2,962

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term investments are made
for varying periods of up to 90 days depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.
Interest income from cash and cash equivalents amounted to P
=140 million, P
=83 million and
=36 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively (see Note 24).
P
8. Trade and Other Receivables
2007
Trade receivables
Advances to suppliers
Due from related parties (see Note 19)
Advances to employees and talents
Receivable from DirecTV (see Note 30)
Other receivables

(In Millions)

=4,010
P
121
355
218
98
187
4,989
551
=4,438
P

P
=4,070
511
219
214
–
289
5,303
319
P
=4,984

Less allowance for doubtful accounts

2006

Trade receivables are noninterest-bearing and are generally on 60 to 90-day terms. For terms and
conditions of transactions relating to related party receivables, refer to Note 19.
Receivable from DirecTV was collected in 2007.
Movements of allowance for doubtful accounts follow:
Trade
Airtime Subscription

Others

Nontrade

Total

(In Millions)
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Balance at January 1, 2007
Provisions for the year (see Note 23)
Write-offs and others
Balance at December 31, 2007

P
=441
48
(284)
P
=205

P
=58
9
(6)
P
=61

P
=23
20
(21)
P
=22

P
=29
25
(23)
P
=31

P
=551
102
(334)
P
=319

Balance at January 1, 2006
Provisions for the year (see Note 23)
Write-offs and others
Balance at December 31, 2006

=410
P
44
(13)
=441
P

=
P86
20
(48)
=
P58

=91
P
23
(91)
=23
P

=12
P
7
10
=29
P

=
P599
94
(142)
=
P551

- 45 9. Other Current Assets
2007
Current AFS investments (see Note 28)
Prepaid taxes
Inventories at net realizable value (NRV)
Preproduction expenses
Derivative assets (see Note 28)
Prepaid expenses and others

P
=1,592
313
170
153
–
183
P
=2,411

(In Millions)

2006

=–
P
361
207
281
12
191
=1,052
P

a. AFS Investments
In 2007, the Parent Company reclassified its AFS investments as current. The Parent
Company expects to sell its equity investments in Professional Services, Inc., Bayantrade
Dotcom, Inc., Digital Telecoms (Digitel) and Manila Polo Club within the next 12 months.
Unrealized fair value adjustment on these shares amounted to P
=3 million as of December 31,
2007.
AFS investments consist mainly of investment in Digitel with a fair market value of
=1,115 million and P
P
=1,290 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Unrealized gain on fair value adjustment on these shares, amounting to P
=818 million and
=968 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, were charged directly to equity.
P
In 2007 and 2006, the Parent Company sold 52,027,000 shares and 126,437,000 shares of
Digitel resulting to a gain on sale of P
=79 million and P
=119 million, respectively (shown as
“Gain on sale of AFS investments” account in the consolidated statements of income). The
related unrealized gain on fair value adjustments on these shares that were recognized in the
statements of income amounted to P
=76 million and P
=60 million in 2007 and 2006,
respectively.
b. Inventories at net realizable value
Inventories consist mainly of materials and supplies of ABS-CBN and records and other
consumer products held for sale by its subsidiaries. The cost of inventories carried at NRV
amounted to P
=216 million and =
P244 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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2007
Investments in shares of stock of associates
(see Notes 1 and 2)
Bayantel guarantee and commitments - net of
allowance for impairment of P
=9.5 billion
in 2007 and P
=10 billion in 2006
Advances to associates (see Note 19)
Valuation allowance

2006
(As restated see Note 4)
(In Millions)

P
=18,975

=20,107
P

–
3,757
(3,753)
P
=18,979

–
3,541
(3,537)
=20,111
P

Investments in Shares of Stock of Associates
Associates of the Company are all incorporated in the Philippines. The details and movements of
investments in shares of stock of associates follow:

Principal Activities
FPHC, 43.15% owned in 2007
and 43.81% owned in 2006
First Philippine Infrastructure,
Inc. (FPII), 48.08% owned in
2007*
Rockwell Land Corporation
(Rockwell), 24.50%
owned **
First Philippine Infrastructure
Development Corporation
(FPIDC), 49.00% owned in
2006***
Bayantel, 70.92% owned in
2007 and 68.00% owned in
2006 - net of valuation
allowance of P
=558 million
SkyVision, 22.32% owned (see
Note 2)
Others

Investment holdings

(In Millions)

P
=14,418

=16,052
P

Infrastructure

2,883

–

Real estate

1,625

1,565

Infrastructure

–

2,435

Telecommunications

–

–

Cable television
Film distribution,
broadcasting and
information service
provider

–

–

49
P
=18,975

55
=20,107
P

* An additional 50.04% is owned by FPHC in 2007.
** An additional 24.50% is owned by FPHC.
*** An additional 51% is owned by FPHC in 2006.
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2007

2006
(As restated see Note 4)

- 47 -

2007
Acquisition costs
Accumulated equity in net earnings:
Balance at beginning of year, as previously
reported
Effect of IFRIC 12 (see Note 4)
Balance at beginning of year, as restated
Equity in net earnings of associates
Dividends received
Loss on dilution of equity interest
Balance at end of year
Share in equity adjustment from translation
(net of P
=9 million allowance for impairment in
value of investment in Bayantel)
Share in unrealized gain on fair value
of AFS investments

2006
(As restated see Note 4)
(In Millions)

P
=8,154

=7,970
P

11,982
480
12,462
2,829
(1,064)
(269)
13,958

8,365
396
8,761
4,724
(958)
(65)
12,462

(3,194)

(376)

57
P
=18,975

51
=20,107
P

Unrecognized share of losses of an associate amounted to P
=2,891 million in 2005. Accumulated
unrecognized share of losses of an associate amounted to P
=1,639 million and P
=4,091 million as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
A discussion on the Company’s major associates follows:
a. FPHC
FPHC is involved in management and investment holdings of subsidiaries and associates that
are engaged in, but not limited to, power generation and power distribution, roads and
tollways operations, real estate development, manufacturing and construction, financing and
other services industries. The fair value of the Parent Company’s investment in FPHC as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006 amounted to about P
=18 billion and P
=16 billion, respectively.
On January 23, 2008, FPHC acquired the 40% interest of Union Fenosa Internacional S.A. in
First Philippine Union Fenosa, Inc. (FPUFI). FPHC is now the sole owner of FPUFI. FPUFI
owns 253,093,270 shares or 28.82% interest in Manila Electric Company (MERALCO). With
this acquisition, the First Holdings Group now owns, directly and indirectly, through FPUFI,
33.42% interest in MERALCO.
Significant contracts and commitments of FPHC are discussed in Note 30.
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2007
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets
Attributable to:
Equity holders of FPHC
Minority interest

Attributable to:
Equity holders of FPHC
Minority interest

2006*

P
=52,097
183,823
(40,483)
(108,654)
P
=86,783

=50,859
P
85,990
(21,648)
(49,971)
=65,230
P

P
=47,078
39,705
P
=86,783

=35,536
P
29,694
=65,230
P

2006*

2005*

P
=58,827
(47,147)
P
=11,680

P59,572
=
(43,979)
=15,593
P

=
P53,259
(42,547)
=
P10,712

P
=4,475
7,205
P
=11,680

=8,754
P
6,839
=15,593
P

=
P5,514
5,198
=
P10,712

2007
Revenues
Costs and expenses
Net income

(In Millions)

(In Millions)

* These amounts are restated to reflect the impact of adopting Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12 effective January 1, 2007
(see Note 4).

b. MERALCO
As of April 10, 2008, MERALCO is a 33.42% owned associate of FPHC. MERALCO is
involved in the distribution and supply of electricity covering 25 cities and 86 municipalities
in Metro Manila and in six provinces surrounding Metro Manila.
Prior to the enactment in 2001 of RA No. 9136, the “Electric Power Industry Reform Act of
2001,” MERALCO was subject to the ratemaking regulations and regulatory policies of the
Energy Regulatory Board (ERB). On June 8, 2001, RA No. 9136 was signed into law.
RA No. 9136 abolished the ERB and created in its place the Energy Regulatory Commission
(ERC).
On June 9, 2003, President Gloria Macapagal-Arroyo signed into law RA No. 9209, “Manila
Electric Company Franchise,” which took effect on June 28, 2003. The law granted
MERALCO a 25-year franchise to construct, operate and maintain an electric distribution
system and consolidated MERALCO’s 50 franchises servicing 25 cities and 86 municipalities
in Metro Manila and in six surrounding provinces.
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- 49 Ten Applications for Recovery of Generation Costs
During the supply months of August 2006 to May 2007 wherein the Automatic Generation Rate
Adjustment (AGRA) mechanism was suspended by the ERC, MERALCO filed ten separate
applications for the full recovery of generation costs and system loss amounting to
=12,679 million and P
P
=1,295 million, respectively, including value-added tax.
On January 18, 2008, the ERC issued an Order allowing MERALCO to collect the amount of
=8,829 million of generation costs under-recoveries through a P
P
=0.1662 per kWh charge on its
billings to customers. The charge was implemented beginning February 2008 and will continue
until the P
=8,829 million is fully collected. Of the P
=8,829 million, the portion expected to be billed
in 2008 amounted to P
=4,219 million.
In the same Order, the ERC directed MERALCO to refund to its customers the amount refunded
by Philippine Electric Market Corporation to MERALCO relative to the Net Settlement Surplus
(NSS) in order to mitigate the impact of the increase in its generation cost. As of April 10, 2008,
NSS was estimated at P
=2,812 million. The amount is to be refunded through a P
=0.1614 per kWh
credit to customers’ bills beginning February 2008 and will continue until the P
=2,812 million is
fully refunded.
As of April 10, 2008, a decision on the remaining P
=3,850 million, representing the balance of
MERALCO’s generation cost under-recoveries, is still pending at the ERC. In addition,
MERALCO is also expecting the ERC to decide on its pending applications for recovery of
system loss adjustments amounting to P
=1,295 million.
Unbundling Rate Case Filed with the Supreme Court
On April 14, 2000, MERALCO filed with the ERB an application for a =
P0.30 per kWh rate
increase.
In accordance with Section 36 of RA No. 9136, MERALCO, on December 26, 2001 filed with the
ERC a petition for its unbundled rate charges. On June 17, 2002, the ERC issued an Order
consolidating MERALCO’s =
P0.30 per kWh rate increase petition (ERC Case No. 2001-646) with
its unbundling petition (ERC Case No. 2001-900) in order to simplify and expedite the resolution
of the rate cases. All records and proceedings of the rate increase application were deemed
consolidated with that of the unbundling. The hearings on the consolidated petitions were
terminated on December 19, 2002.
On March 30, 2003, the ERC issued an Order approving MERALCO’s unbundled tariffs that
resulted in a total increase of P
=0.17 per kWh over May 2003 levels, after giving effect to the
reduction of rates ordered by the SC in April 2003. This consisted of P
=0.0835 per kWh increase
reflecting higher generation and transmission charges and P
=0.0865 per kWh increase in
MERALCO-related charges (distribution, supply and metering). The tariff increase was
implemented in June 2003.
On August 4, 2003, certain consumer and civil society groups filed with the Court of Appeals
(CA) a “Petition for Review” of the ERC’s ruling. On July 22, 2004, the CA set aside the ERC’s
ruling on MERALCO’s rate unbundling and remanded the case back to the ERC. According to
the CA, the ERC should have asked the Commission on Audit (COA) to audit the books of
MERALCO. The ERC and MERALCO subsequently filed separate motions asking the CA to
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- 50 reconsider its decision. On January 24, 2005, the CA denied the motions, thus, the ERC and
MERALCO elevated the case to the SC.
In an En Banc Decision promulgated on December 6, 2006, the SC set aside and reversed the CA
ruling saying that a COA audit was not a prerequisite in the determination of a utility’s rates.
Under Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets,” if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the obligation should be reversed. The reversal of
such provision should be recognized prospectively as required by PAS 8, “Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.” Accordingly, in 2006, MERALCO reversed the
entire provision for probable losses related to this case amounting to P
=15,725 million. The
Company’s share in the reversal of the provision amounted to P
=1,201 million, and is shown as part
of “Equity in net earnings of associates” account in the 2006 consolidated statement of income.
=0.167 per kWh Refund
SC Decision on the P
Following the SC’s final ruling that directed MERALCO to refund affected customers
=0.167 per kWh covering the billing period from February 1994 to April 30, 2003, the ERC
P
approved the release of the refund in four phases. The last phase, Phase IV (for non-residential
accounts), is ongoing.
Contingencies
�

Contingent Assets
(1) As of December 31, 2007, MERALCO has a contingent assets amounting to
=9,087 million consisting of under-recoveries for Transmission Charge of
P
=6,361 million, Lifeline and Inter-class Subsidy of =
P
P1,918 million and for Generation
and System Loss Charges of =
P805 million. These under-recoveries accumulated in
the absence of an adjustment mechanism for these charges when the unbundled rates
were implemented.
On September 26, 2007, MERALCO filed an application to recover P
=5,554 million in
transmission charge under-recoveries accumulated over the period June 2003 to July
2007, along with a corresponding carrying cost. The application is currently
undergoing hearings at the ERC.
Similarly, on November 14, 2007, MERALCO filed a petition, currently being heard
at the ERC, to recover P
=1,054 million in under-recoveries incurred in implementing
the inter-class subsidy system, along with a corresponding carrying cost. Also, on
February 19, 2008, MERALCO filed a separate application with the ERC to recover
=864 million for the under-recoveries incurred by the Parent Company in the
P
implementation of the lifeline subsidy system.
(2) MERALCO has a contingent asset for overpaid income taxes for the years 1994 to
1998 and 2000 to 2001 estimated at P
=7,107 million. MERALCO has filed its claim
for the recovery of the excess income taxes for the said taxable years. The BIR has
issued the letters of authority for the examination of MERALCO’s books during the
said period, including submission of the documents. The BIR examination resulted in
net income tax refund of P
=6,690 million subject to a resolution of the issue on
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- 51 prescription, which is being heard by the CTA. The BIR allowed MERALCO an
income tax refund for the year 2001 of P
=894 million. MERALCO amended its
Petition in the CTA to reflect the recoverable amount established by the BIR.
Likewise, MERALCO has contingent asset for overpaid income taxes for the years
1987 and 1988 amounting to P
=107 million. MERALCO’s claim was granted by the
CTA in its decision dated August 23, 1995 and the same was affirmed by the Second
Division of the SC on October 10, 2007. The Commissioner of Internal Revenue filed
a Motion for Reconsideration on November 9, 2007 but was denied by the SC with
finality on February 4, 2008.
�

Contingent Liabilities
(1) Real property tax assessment
MERALCO is being assessed by six (6) local governments units (LGUs) for real
property taxes on certain properties of MERALCO such as its electric poles, wires,
insulators, and transformers. One of these cases is now on appeal with the SC because
of the CA’s decision declaring that the electric poles, wires, insulators and
transformers are subject to real property tax under the Local Government Code. An
adverse decision on any of these cases may result to tax assessments by all LGUs
within the franchise areas of MERALCO. To date, there are 114 cities and
municipalities under MERALCO’s franchise.
To address the possible liabilities for realty taxes, MERALCO filed on December 23,
2004 an application with the ERC for a mechanism to recover all types of tax
assessments by LGUs, excluding the local franchise tax. The first and only hearing on
the application was conducted on May 23, 2005. MERALCO is awaiting the
guidelines from the ERC that would set forth the recovery mechanism for these taxes.
MERALCO believes that with such pass-through mechanism, the LGUs will exercise
prudence in assessing MERALCO, whether on a retroactive or prospective basis, as
this will translate to higher bills for their constituents.
The ultimate outcome of the real property tax assessments cannot presently be
determined, and no other provisions for liabilities, other than those provided for
pending cases, that may result from additional cases in the event of any adverse
decision on these cases, have been made in the financial statements of MERALCO.
The Company has likewise not provided for its share in the possible liabilities.
(2) Local franchise tax
MERALCO was assessed by certain local governments for local franchise tax during
the period when such LGUs were not qualified to assess. In the opinion of
management and its legal counsel, MERALCO has strong legal grounds to contest the
assessments. Moreover, if management will agree to pay the assessments, any
interested party may contest the pass-through of such payments in the bills of
consumers as not prudent recoverable costs. At any rate, even assuming that the said
assessments are upheld by the courts, the principle adopted by the ERC is that
franchise tax is a pass through tax. The unbundled rates approved by the ERC allow
MERALCO to recover the current franchise tax payments.
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- 52 In 2007, a local franchise case between MERALCO and an LGU was resolved in
favor of MERALCO.
(3) Income tax assessment
When the SC’s Decision ordering MERALCO to refund =
P0.167 per kWh to affected
customers became final in April 2003, it resulted to overpayment of income taxes
estimated at that time at P
=8,900 million. MERALCO exercised its option to amend its
income tax return for the year 1999, which was then pending for audit by the BIR, to
reflect an overpayment of income tax for that year in the sum of P
=977 million. The
=977 million was carried over and credited to income tax liabilities in 2002, since the
P
books of accounts of MERALCO for the years 2000 and 2001 have already been
audited by the BIR and their corresponding returns cannot be amended.
On March 16, 2007, MERALCO received from the BIR-Large Taxpayers Division a
Preliminary Assessment Notice dated January 2, 2007 disallowing the carryover and
crediting of overpaid income tax of P
=977 million for the year 1999 to the year 2002.
The BIR’s preliminary notice of assessment shows the amount of P
=2,208 million
including surcharge and interests.
MERALCO protested this assessment and is currently pending before the Office of
the Commissioner of Internal Revenue.
On March 5, 2008, MERALCO availed of the tax amnesty program of the BIR
implementing provisions of RA No. 9480. Subsequently, MERALCO intends to seek
relief invoking Section 6 (a) of the said Act which states that, “The taxpayer shall be
immune from the payment of taxes, as well as additions thereto, and the oppurtunent
civil, criminal or administrative penalties under the National Internal Revenue Code
of 1977, as amended, arising from the failure to pay any and all internal revenue
taxes for the taxable year 2005 and prior years.”
MERALCO accounts for its utility plant at “deemed cost.” Appropriate adjustments have
been made on the financial statements of MERALCO to conform to the cost method followed
by the Company in accounting for property and equipment.
Condensed consolidated financial information of MERALCO before adjustment to reverse the
effect of “deemed cost” on utility plant follow:
2007
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets
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P
=46,565
134,271
(49,882)
(75,933)
P
=55,021

(In Millions)

2006

P47,113
=
127,405
(47,989)
(75,555)
=50,974
P

- 53 -

2007
Attributable to:
Equity holders of MERALCO
Minority interest
2007

Revenues
Costs and expenses
Net income (loss)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of MERALCO
Minority interest

P
=200,693
(196,657)
P
=4,036
P
=3,759
277
P
=4,036

(In Millions)

2006

P
=51,680
3,341
P
=55,021

=47,770
P
3,204
=50,974
P

2006

2005

(In Millions)

P190,787
=
(176,906)
=13,881
P
=13,686
P
195
=13,881
P

=
P174,268
(174,475)
(P
=207)
(P
=350)
143
(P
=207)

c. FPII and FPIDC
Prior to September 17, 2007, FPIDC was 49% owned by the Parent Company and 51% owned
by FPHC (see discussion on “Investment in SOARs” below). FPIDC owns 67% of MNTC
and 46% of Tollways Management Corporation (TMC). MNTC rehabilitated, expanded and
operates the North Luzon Expressway (NLEX) while TMC is the operation and management
company for the NLEX.
Investment in Share Options Acquisition Rights (SOARs)
On December 23, 2002, the Parent Company, FPIDC, FPHC and Lopez entered into a
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) wherein the parties agreed to the following terms:
1) The Parent Company shall assign P
=1,100 million worth of advances made to FPIDC in
favor of FPHC for a total consideration of =
P1,100 million (Acquired Advances).
2) FPHC shall issue a promissory note (Note) in the same amount, payable to the Parent
Company in 18 months after the date of the issue, subject to conversion into a 15-year
loan under such terms that may be agreed with the Parent Company. FPHC shall have the
right, but not the obligation, to apply any portion of the Note against the corresponding
amount of the SOAR issue price and deposit for the relevant SOAR, as discussed below.
3) FPHC shall convert a portion of its original advances and a portion of the Acquired
Advances into such number of shares of stocks of FPIDC which will result in a combined
ownership between the Parent Company and Lopez of not more than 33-1/3% of FPIDC.
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- 54 The MOA also states that until after the Acquired Advances has been fully paid, FPHC
undertakes that, upon each conversion of any portion of the Acquired Advances into shares of
FPIDC, FPHC shall create SOARs on such shares in favor of the Parent Company for a
consideration of P
=0.10 per share plus a P
=99.90 deposit, which will be applied towards the
purchase price of the Underlying Share. The SOARs shall entitle the Parent Company to
(1) delivery of one share of stock of FPIDC which has been converted from the Acquired
Advances upon the occurrence of any Trigger Event, as defined in the MOA, (2) delivery of
the net proceeds arising from the sale of such Underlying Share in the event of a sale by
FPHC, and (3) rights to dividends or other economic benefits relating to or arising out of each
Underlying Share.
Also on the same date, the Parent Company and FPHC entered into a Deed of Assignment to
implement the said MOA and FPHC issued a promissory note to the Parent Company in
consideration of the assignment.
On December 22, 2006, the Parent Company exercised its right to the delivery of FPIDC
shares. Consequently, the Investment in SOARs has been reclassified to investment in shares
of stock of associates. As of December 31, 2006, the Parent Company owns 49% of the
issued and outstanding shares of FPIDC.
Acquisition of FPII
In 2007, the Parent Company and FPHC acquired FPII, which they intend to be the backdoor
listing vehicle for their investment in the tollway business. In line with this objective, the
Parent Company, which owns 14,453,689 common shares of FPIDC, and FPHC, which owns
15,043,635 common shares of FPIDC, executed a Deed of Assignment (DOA), which would
assign and convey to FPII, by way of absolute ownership and free from all liens and
encumbrances, the FPIDC shares. The par value of each FPIDC share is P
=100. In exchange,
the Parent Company received 2,435,579,607 shares while FPHC received 2,534,991,020
shares of FPII, with a par value of P
=1 per share.
Prior to the execution of the DOA, the BOD and the stockholders of FPII approved and
authorized the following amendments to the Articles of in corporation:
a. Change in the corporate name of City Resources (Phil.) Corporation to “First Philippine
Infrastructure, Inc.”,
b. Decrease in the number of directors from eleven to seven, and
c. Increase in the authorized capital stock from P
=335 million divided into 335 million shares
with a par value of P
=1 each share to P
=5,400 million divided into 5.4 million shares with
the same par value.
On September 17, 2007, the SEC approved the above amendments to the articles of
incorporation.
After the assignment of shares, FPII became 50.04% owned by FPHC, 48.08% owned by
BHC, 1.72% owned by Lopez, Inc and 0.16% owned by individuals. As of April 10, 2008,
FPHC and the Parent Company are in the process of buying back Lopez’s shares to increase
their ownership to 50.92% and 48.92%, respectively.
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- 55 MNTC’s Deferral of Imposition of VAT
Upon the effectivity of the Republic Act No. 9337 (Act), the BIR adopted Revenue
Memorandum Circular No. 52-2005 issued on September 28, 2005, which, for the first time,
expressly referred to toll road operations as being subject to VAT.
The TRB, in its letter dated October 28, 2005, ordered MNTC to defer the imposition of VAT
on toll fees, thus, MNTC has deferred, and continues to defer, the imposition and collection of
VAT from motorists. MNTC, together with other toll road operators, is currently discussing
the issue of VAT with the concerned government agencies.
Due to the effectivity of the Act and the possibility that MNTC will eventually be subjected to
VAT, MNTC, in 2005, carved out the input tax from its purchases of goods and services
(includes input tax in relation to the Project construction cost) which were previously recorded
as part of property and equipment account and recorded such input tax, together with the input
tax on 2005 purchases and onwards, as a separate “Input value added tax” account in its
books. In September 2005, MNTC also requested for confirmation from the Bureau of
Internal Revenue (BIR) that MNTC can claim VAT input tax credit for the passed-on VAT on
its purchases of goods and services for 2003 and prior years. As of April 10, 2008,
confirmation by the BIR is still pending. Consequently, MNTC continues to account for input
tax from 2003 and prior years’ purchases as part of concession assets, subject to amortization.
MNTC’s management, in consultation with its legal counsel, believes that if and when the
TRB authorizes the toll road operators to collect VAT from motorists, it will be applied
prospectively and at the same time, MNTC will be allowed to claim the input tax against the
output tax. Accordingly, no VAT liability was recognized by MNTC.
MNTC’s management also believes that in any event, the STOA amongst MNTC, ROP,
acting by and through the TRB, and PNCC, provides MNTC with legal recourse in order to
protect its lawful interests in case there is a change in existing laws which makes the
performance by MNTC of its obligations materially more expensive.
Condensed consolidated financial information of FPIDC as of and for the years December 31,
2006 and 2005 and FPII as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007 follows:
FPII
2007
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets
Attributable to:
Equity holders of FPII/ FPIDC
Minority interest

FPIDC
2006*
(In Millions)

P
=2,363
16,910
(1,059)
(8,374)
P
=9,840

P3,874
=
15,764
(2,327)
(9,125)
=8,186
P

P
=6,988
2,852
P
=9,840

=5,731
P
2,455
=8,186
P
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2007
Revenues
Costs and expenses
Net income
Attributable to:
Equity holders of FPII/FPIDC
Minority interest

2006*

FPIDC

2005*

(In Millions)

P
=5,499
(3,303)
P
=2,196

P5,709
=
(3,995)
=1,714
P

=
P5,117
(3,321)
=
P1,796

P
=1,498
698
P
=2,196

=1,177
P
537
=1,714
P

=
P1,285
511
=
P1,796

* These amounts are restated to reflect the impact of adopting Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12 effective
January 1, 2007 (see Note 4).

d. Rockwell
Rockwell is engaged in real estate development, sale or lease of residential and commercial
lots and units and lease of mall facilities.
In January 2004, Rockwell launched the Joya, a new residential tower at the east side of
Rockwell Center. Construction costs incurred as of December 31, 2007 amounted to
=137 million while total estimated cost to complete the project amounts to P
P
=394 million.
Rockwell expects to complete the Joya by 2008.
In January 2006, Rockwell launched “One Rockwell,” a two-tower project consisting of the
East and the West Towers. It is Rockwell’s biggest condominium development to date with
close to 1,300 units. Construction costs incurred as of December 31, 2007 amounted to
=1,257 million while total estimated cost to complete the project amounts to P
P
=5,581 million.
The East and the West Towers are expected to be completed by 2010 and 2011, respectively.
Total cash received from pre-selling activities of One Rockwell amounted to P
=2,411 million as
of December 31, 2007.
In December 2007, the Parent Company subscribed to an additional 177 million common
shares and 674 million preferred shares out of the increase in the authorized capital stock of
Rockwell. Such additional investment amounted to P
=184 million.
In March 2008, Rockwell and MERALCO entered into a joint venture agreement to construct
a three-tower Meralco Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) building project at the Meralco
Compound, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. As agreed, MERALCO contributed the use of the
land while Rockwell will contribute to the development cost of the property. The joint
venture agreement provides that the sharing between the parties shall be 70% for Rockwell
and 30% for the MERALCO. As of December 31, 2007, the project is at the substructure
phase and development cost incurred amounted to P
=256 million. Total estimated cost to
complete the project amounts to P
=2,257 million.
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- 57 Condensed financial information for Rockwell follows:
2007
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net assets

P
=6,893
5,392
(1,787)
(3,868)
P
=6,630
2007

Revenues
Costs and expenses
Net income

(In Millions)

P
=3,520
(3,044)
P
=476

2006

2006

=4,594
P
4,770
(1,266)
(1,696)
=6,402
P
2005

(In Millions)

P2,931
=
(2,562)
=369
P

=
P2,623
(2,335)
=
P288

e. CIS
In 2006, MERALCO acquired an additional 49% equity in CIS as settlement of MERALCO’s
receivable from the Parent Company. The excess of payable over the carrying value of the
investment in CIS amounted to P
=286 million and is shown separately in the 2006 consolidated
statement of income.
f.

Bayantel
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Parent Company’s total investments, deposits in and
advances to Bayantel (before any valuation allowance and accumulated equity in net losses)
amounted to P
=11,677 million and =
P11,918 million, respectively. It has commitments to
acquire approximately US$50 million Bayantel shares from certain shareholders of
Bayantel as discussed in Note 30(b). In addition, the Parent Company has guaranteed the
redemption of the convertible preferred shares issued by Bayantel with a redemption value of
US$167 million based on original terms at redemption date as discussed in Note 30(a). The
Parent Company has set up an allowance for decline in value of its investments in and
advances to Bayantel, including additional claims that may arise from its guarantees and
commitments amounting to =
P16,159 million and P
=16,617 million as of December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively.
In relation to the guarantee, the Parent Company agreed to advance to each holder, on behalf
of Bayantel, such amount that the holder is entitled to receive from Bayantel with respect to
such dividend payments. These advances amounted to US$23 million (equivalent to
=940 million) and US$18 million (equivalent to P
P
=880 million) as of December 31, 2007 and
2006, respectively. Pursuant to this guarantee, the Parent Company and Bayantel entered into
an Indemnity Agreement where Bayantel agreed to indemnify the Parent Company in the
event that it is required to pay the guaranteed obligations. Under the Indemnity Agreement,
Bayantel shall indemnify and keep the Parent Company indemnified by paying the guaranteed
obligations actually paid within 45 days from the date of such payment. Bayantel shall also
indemnify the Parent Company for all costs, liabilities, losses and expenses that it may incur
by reason of, in connection with, or in relation to the guarantee (see Note 17).
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- 58 Advances made by the Parent Company effective November 2002 bear interest at LIBOR +
1% on the value of the convertible preferred shares as of May 30, 2003.
The convertible preferred shares were subject to mandatory redemption on January 8, 2003 at
US$50 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends and a final dividend that will provide
holders with an effective annual yield of 6.5% compounded annually from issue date to the
date of redemption. The Parent Company, pursuant to the guarantee, has likewise guaranteed
full payment in full of the convertible preferred shares at its accreted value at maturity date.
On January 8, 2003, Bayantel and the Parent Company were unable to redeem the shares. The
Parent Company is presently negotiating with the preferred shareholders on the settlement of
the mandatory redemption price. As of April 10, 2008, no actual redemption has been made
by Bayantel and the Parent Company.
To address the debt problem, Bayantel and its subsidiary, Radio Communications of the
Philippines, Inc. (RCPI) requested their creditors for the restructuring of its bank loans (shortterm and long-term) and bonds payable. Instead of a consensual restructuring, creditors of
Bayantel opted for a court-assisted rehabilitation. The Rehabilitation Plan (Plan) which were
presented to the creditors and reviewed and evaluated by a court appointed receiver (Receiver)
was approved by the Pasig Regional Trial Court (Court) in a decision dated June 28, 2004.
Pursuant to the Plan, the level of sustainable debt was reduced to US$325 million for a period
of 19 years, and the unsustainable debt will be converted into an appropriate instrument that
shall not be a financial burden for Bayantel. Moreover, a Monitoring Committee was formed
composing of representatives from all classes of the restructured debt and the Receiver’s role
was limited to monitoring and overseeing the implementation of the Plan.
The Court approval, however, covered only claims against Bayantel and did not include RCPI.
Notwithstanding, the Court enjoined Bayantel to procure the restructuring of RCPI’s loans
under the same terms and conditions. Negotiations are ongoing with the creditors of RCPI to
agree to a debt restructuring pursuant to the Decision. As of December 31, 2007, three of the
four creditors agreed to the debt restructuring of P
=968 million of the outstanding loan balance
of P
=2.1 billion. The restructuring with the creditors resulted to the reversal of accrued interest
and penalties of P
=1,062 million in 2007 and P
=220 million in 2006. Bayantel paid principal
and interest aggregating P
=128 million in 2007 and P
=24 million in 2006 to update payments of
the debt in accordance with the debt restructuring.
There are appeals filed by majority of the creditors for the review of the Decision. The
unsecured creditors are seeking for the increase in the level of sustainable debt from
US$325 million to US$471 million to be repaid in 12 years. The secured creditors, on the
other hand, are appealing the pari-passu decision of the Court. Except for the appeal on paripassu filed by a secured creditor, Philippine National Bank (PNB), all the appeals were
consolidated. The consolidated appeals were dismissed by the Court of Appeals (CA) for lack
of merit in a decision dated August 18, 2006. Subsequently, the secured creditors filed a
Petition for Partial Review on the consolidated appeals with the Supreme Court (SC) while the
unsecured creditors filed a Motion for Partial Reconsideration with the CA. The Motion for
Partial Reconsideration was denied by the CA in a Resolution dated November 8, 2006 and
the unsecured creditors filed an appeal with the SC. Similar to the CA, both petitions were
consolidated by the SC and are still pending resolution.
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- 59 Bayantel has been able to increase its revenue level because of its wireless local loop (WLL)
service and data service. The launch of the WLL service in 2006 has increased the
Company’s Local Exchange Carrier (LEC) subscriber base. Moreover, in 2007, Bayantel
entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with Multimedia Telephony, Inc., further
increasing its WLL coverage service area in Metro Manila. Data service continues to be a
major source of revenue stream because of Bayantel’s increasing capability to provide
broadband and seamless service to customers with its upgraded internet backbone network and
core data service network.
Condensed consolidated financial information of Bayantel follows:
2007
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Net capital deficiency attributable to equity holders
of Bayantel
2007
Revenues
Costs and expenses
Net income (loss)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of Bayantel
Minority interest

P
=10,868
(7,540)
P
=3,328
P
=3,328
–
P
=3,328

2006
(In Millions)

P
=2,607
14,944
(15,764)
(14,820)

P3,016
=
14,999
(18,154)
(16,221)

(P
=13,033)

(P
=16,360)

2006

2005

P7,575
=
(6,601)
=974
P

=
P6,893
(7,434)
(P
=541)

=974
P
–
=974
P

(P
=449)
(92)
(P
=541)

(In Millions)

Bayantel still has a deficit of =
P25 billion in 2007 and P
=29 billion in 2006 and a capital
deficiency of P
=13 billion in 2007 and =
P16 billion in 2006 because of losses sustained in the
past. However, because of the positive operating cash flow and the results of the Company’s
Rehabilitation Plan, the Company has continued to meet its loan service requirements.
Advances to Associates
Details of this account follow:
2007
Bayantel
SkyVision (net of accumulated equity in net losses
of P
=203 million)
Others
Valuation allowance

2006
(In Millions)

P
=3,753

=3,537
P

–
4
3,757
(3,753)
P
=4

–
4
3,541
(3,537)
=4
P
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- 60 Provision for decline in value of advances to Bayantel amounted to P
=216 million, P
=237 million
and P
=260 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
11. Property and Equipment

Land and
Improvements
Year Ended December 31, 2007:
Beginning net book value
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications and other changes
Depreciation and amortization
(see Notes 20, 22 and 23)
Ending net book value
At December 31, 2007:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment
losses
Net Book Value
Year Ended December 31, 2006:
Beginning net book value
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications and other changes
Depreciation and amortization
(see Notes 20, 22 and 23)
Ending net book value
At December 31, 2006:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment
losses
Net Book Value

Building and
Improvements

Television,
Radio,
Movie and
Auxiliary
Other
Equipment
Equipment
(In Millions)

Construction
in Progress

Total

P
= 630
–
–
–

P
= 7,794
1
(1)
88

P
= 954
343
(1)
111

P
= 691
405
(37)
64

P
= 116
237
–
(263)

P
= 10,185
986
(39)
–

(1)
P
= 629

(503)
P
= 7,379

(407)
P
= 1,000

(316)
P
= 807

–
P
= 90

(1,227)
P
= 9,905

P
= 642

P
= 10,069

P
= 6,278

P
= 3,986

P
= 90

P
= 21,065

(13)
P
= 629

(2,690)
P
= 7,379

(5,278)
P
= 1,000

(3,179)
P
= 807

–
P
= 90

(11,160)
P
= 9,905

=
P631
–
–
–

P
=8,227
7
–
43

P
=1,054
311
–
(6)

P
=730
61
(4)
204

P
=119
238
–
(241)

P
=10,761
617
(4)
–

(1)
P
=630

(483)
P
=7,794

(405)
P
=954

(300)
P
=691

–
P
=116

(1,189)
P
=10,185

P
=642

P
=9,981

P
=5,825

P
=3,554

P
=116

P
=20,118

(12)
P
=630

(2,187)
P
=7,794

(4,871)
P
=954

(2,863)
P
=691

–
P
=116

(9,933)
P
=10,185

Property and equipment of ABS-CBN with a carrying amount of P
=8,367 million and
=8,746 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, were pledged as collateral to
P
secure ABS-CBN’s long-term debt (see Note 16).
Unamortized borrowing costs capitalized as part of property and equipment amounted to
=934 million and P
P
=973 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. No borrowing
cost was capitalized beginning 2002.
Property and equipment includes the following amounts where ABS-CBN is a lessee under a
finance lease (see Note 30):
2007
Cost - capitalized finance lease
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value
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P
=699
(389)
P
=310

(In Millions)

2006
P468
=
(293)
=175
P

- 61 The useful lives of the Company’s assets are estimated as follows:
Leasehold improvements
Building and improvements
Television, radio, movie and auxiliary equipment
Other equipment

5 to 10 years
15 to 40 years
10 to 15 years
3 to 11 years

The Company determined depreciation charges for each significant part of an item of property and
equipment.
12. Other Noncurrent Assets
2007
Tax credits with tax credit certificates (TCCs)
Deposits - net of allowance for decline in value of
=4,615 (see Notes 2 and 19)
P
Goodwill (see Note 14)
Noncurrent AFS investments (see Notes 9, 16
and 28)
Plan assets (Note 26)
Deferred charges and others

(In Millions)

2006

P
=1,707

=1,741
P

218
104

218
126

77
36
199
P
=2,341

1,785
30
339
=4,239
P

a. Tax Credits
Tax credits represent claims of ABS-CBN on the government arising from airing of
government commercials and advertisements. Pursuant to PD No. 1362, these will be
collected in the form of TCCs which ABS-CBN can use in paying for import duties and taxes
on its broadcasting equipment. ABS-CBN expects to utilize these tax credits within the next
10 years.
b. Deposits
Deposits are payments for options to purchase shares of stock of Bayantel (net of allowance
for decline in value of P
=2,217 million) and SkyVision (net of allowance for decline in value of
=2,398 million) from Lopez at a pre-agreed price. The options will be exercised by the Parent
P
Company when the underlying shares of the associates are listed in the Philippine Stock
Exchange in connection with their initial public offering.
No impairment loss was recognized in 2007. The Parent Company recognized an impairment
loss of P
=335 million and P
=2,063 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively, on its deposits in
SkyVision. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the remaining carrying value of the deposit
amounted to P
=218 million.
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- 62 The recoverable values were based on the discount rate of 13% in 2007 and 11% in 2006
which is based on a debt-to-equity ratio of 63%-37% in 2007 and 2006 of SkyVision. The
cost of equity was computed by adding the risk free rate and the risk premium multiplied by
the equity beta of SkyVision. Gross revenues over the next five years will be driven by
subscriber growth as well as subscription rate increases of 10% every two years. Cash
expenses are projected to increase at an inflationary pace. Programming cost is assumed to be
a certain percentage of revenues.
c. Goodwill
Goodwill consists of the Parent Company’s goodwill in ABS-CBN amounting to P
=104 million
in 2007 and 2006 and ABS-CBN’s goodwill in its subsidiaries amounting to =
P22 million in
2006.
In 2007, ABS-CBN’s goodwill in its subsidiary, amounting to =
P22 million, was fully provided
with allowance for impairment loss.
d. AFS Investments
AFS investments represent investments in ordinary shares and therefore have no fixed
maturity date or coupon rate. AFS investments with a carrying value of P
=15 million as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, were pledged as part of the collateral to secure ABS-CBN’s
long-term debt (see Note 16).
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, unrealized gains on fair value adjustments of AFS
investments amounting to P
=36 million and P
=21 million, respectively, were directly charged to
equity.
e. Deferred Charges
Deferred charges as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 amounting to P
=122 million and
=85 million, respectively, mainly pertain to excess of cost over revenue from sale and
P
installation of decoders and set-top boxes. Amortization of deferred charges amounted to
=40 million and P
P
=27 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively.
In view of the Deal Memorandum with DirecTV as discussed in Note 30, ABS-CBN wrote off
in 2005 the deferred charges amounting to P
=348 million pertaining to the DTH subscribers.
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- 63 13. Noncurrent Program Rights and Other Intangible Assets
December 31, 2007

Program
Rights

Story,
Music and
Publication
Rights

Movie in
Process

Video rights
and Record
Master

Cable
Channels CPI

Production
and
Distribution
Business Middle East

Total

(In Millions)

Balance at beginning
of year
Additions
Amortization and writeoff during the year
(see Notes 20 and 22)
Balance at end of year
Less current portion
Noncurrent portion

P
=1,537
1,584

P
=5
–

P
=83
137

P
=8
21

P
=460
–

P
=125
–

P
=2,218
1,742

(1,096)
2,025
930
P
=1,095

–
5
–
P
=5

(147)
73
69
P
=4

(21)
8
8
P
=–

–
460
–
P
=460

(25)
100
–
P
=100

(1,289)
2,671
1,007
P
=1,664

December 31, 2006

Program
Rights

Story,
Music and
Publication
Rights

Movie in
Process

Video Rights
and Record
Master

Cable
Channels CPI

Production
And
Distribution
Business Middle East

Total

(In Millions)

Balance at beginning
of year
Additions
Amortization and writeoff during the year
(see Notes 20 and 22)
Balance at end of year
Less current portion
Noncurrent portion

=
P1,630
793
(886)
1,537
683
P
=854

=
P5
1

P
=79
173

P
=11
18

P
=460
–

P
=142
–

P
=2,327
985

(1)
5
–
=
P5

(169)
83
82
=
P1

(21)
8
8
=
P–

–
460
–
P
=460

(17)
125
–
P
=125

(1,094)
2,218
773
P
=1,445

Costs and related accumulated amortization of other intangible assets are as follow:

Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net carrying amount

2007
Production
and
Cable Distribution
Channels Business CPI Middle East
P
=575
P
=212
(115)
(112)
P
=460
P
=100

Total
P
=787
(227)
P
=560

Cable
Channels CPI
=575
P
(115)
=460
P

2006
Production
and
Distribution
Business Middle East
P
=212
(87)
P
=125

Total
P
=787
(202)
P
=585

The cable channels, namely, Lifestyle Channel, Cinema One and Myx Channel, were acquired by
CPI from SkyVision in 2001. Based on ABS-CBN’s analysis of all the relevant factors, there is
no foreseeable limit to the period over which this business is expected to generate net cash inflows
for ABS-CBN and therefore, assessed to have an indefinite life. As of December 31, 2007 and
2006, cable channels were tested for impairment (see Note 14).

Benpres AR 2007
Financial Statements

117

Benpres Holdings Corporation and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements
- 64 Production and distribution business for the Middle East operations represents payments arising
from the sponsorship agreement between Arab Digital Distribution (ADD) and ABS-CBN Middle
East. This agreement grants ABS-CBN the right to operate in the Middle East with ADD as
sponsor for a period of 25 years.
14. Impairment Testing of Goodwill and Intangible Assets with
Indefinite Useful Lives of ABS-CBN
The Company performs impairment testing annually or more frequently when there are indications
of impairment for intangible assets with indefinite lives. The Company has identified that
goodwill and cable channels of CPI have an infinite life. The Company performed impairment
testing of these assets at December 31. Cable channels of CPI amounted to P
=460 million as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006 (see Note 13).
The Parent Company’s goodwill of =
P104 million represents goodwill in its investment in
ABS-CBN. The fair value of the Parent Company’s investment in ABS-CBN, which is based on
the market price of shares, amounted to P
=14,521 million and =
P9,048 million as of December 31,
2007 and 2006. No impairment loss was recognized on investment in ABS-CBN since the
recoverable value is greater than the carrying value of the investment.
ABS-CBN’s goodwill, which pertains to an investment in a subsidiary, amounting to P
=22 million
as of December 31, 2006 was fully provided with an allowance for impairment loss in 2007.
Goodwill is included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated balance sheet
(see Note 12). There were no impairment losses recognized in 2006 and 2005.
For the impairment test of goodwill of ABS-CBN in its subsidiary and cable channels, the
recoverable amount and the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit was compared. The
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is its value-in-use. Value-in-use was determined
using cash flow projections which were based on financial budgets approved by its subsidiaries’
senior management covering a five-year period. Due to the low interest rate environment, the
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 10.54% in 2007, an improvement from the
15.22% used in 2006. A 0–3% perpetuity growth was assumed at the end of the five-year forecast
period.
Key Assumptions
The following describes each key assumption on which ABS-CBN management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of its goodwill in its subsidiaries and cable
channels.
Gross Revenues. On average, gross revenues of the subsidiaries over the next five years were
projected to grow in line with the economy or with nominal Gross Domestic Product (GDP). This
assumes that the market share of the subsidiaries in their respective industries will be flat on the
assumption that the industries also grow at par with the economy. Historically, advertising
spending growth had a direct correlation with economic growth.
Operating Expenses. On the average, operating expenses were projected to increase at a singledigit growth rate and at a slower pace than revenue.
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- 65 Gross Margins. Increased efficiencies over the next five years are expected to result to some
improvements in gross margins.
Discount Rate. The discount rate used to arrive at the present value of future cash flows was
ABS-CBN’s Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC). WACC was based on the appropriate
weights of debt and equity, which were multiplied with the assumed costs of debt and equity.
15. Trade and Other Payables
2007
Trade
Accrued interest (see Note 16)
Accrued expenses:
Production cost and other expenses
Salaries and other employee benefits
Taxes
Current portion of obligation for program rights
Due to related parties (see Note 19)
Deferred revenue
Others

2006
(In Millions)

P
=1,769
4,524

=1,698
P
4,004

1,091
774
595
744
640
324
365
P
=10,826

934
691
602
348
526
240
278
=9,321
P

Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and are generally on 30-day terms.
For terms and conditions of transactions relating to related party payables, refer to Note 19.
16. Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings

Current
Parent Company:
7.875% Notes
LTCPs
ABS-CBN:
Bank loans
Long-term debt
Obligations under capital lease
(see Note 30)
Bayanmap:
Peso-denominated loans

Effective Interest Rate
2006
2007

Maturity

7.875%
–

7.875%
–

7.40%
6.94%

2007

2006

–
–

P
=6,192
1,990

=7,355
P
2,000

10.28%
12.26%

2008
2008

400
10

474
1,555

–

–

2008

178

108

–

–

–

–
P
=8,770

5
=11,497
P

(In Millions)
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Noncurrent
Parent Company:
4.2% Perpetual Convertible Bonds
ABS-CBN:
Long-term debt (net of transaction
costs and debt discount)
Obligations under capital lease
(see Note 30)

Effective Interest Rate
2006
2007

Maturity

4.2%

4.2%
6.75%

2007

2006

–

P
=12

=12
P

12.90% 2008–2014

4,685

2,252

2008–2011

243
P
=4,940

185
=2,449
P

(In Millions)

Parent Company
a. 7.875% Notes
On June 17, 1997, the Parent Company issued 7.875% Notes of US$150 million listed in the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The 7.875% Notes which matured on December 19, 2002, bear
interest at 7.875% per annum, net of withholding taxes, payable in arrears in equal semiannual installments in June and December of each year. At the option of the Noteholders, the
Parent Company will redeem all (but not less than all) of such holder’s 7.875% Notes at any
time upon the occurrence of the Restructuring Event as defined in the Indenture, which
excludes the event described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, at 100% of the
principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest to the date of redemption and any
additional amounts in accordance with the terms of the 7.875% Notes.
At the option of the Parent Company, the 7.875% Notes may be redeemed at 100% of the
principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest to the date of redemption and any
additional amounts in accordance with the terms of the 7.875% Notes, in whole or in any part,
at anytime by giving 30 to 45 days notice to Noteholders on certain conditions as defined
under the terms of the 7.875% Notes.
The 7.875% Notes constitute direct, subordinated and unsecured obligations of the Parent
Company and shall at all times rank pari passu and without any preference or priority among
themselves. The payment obligations of the Parent Company under the 7.875% Notes shall,
save for such exceptions as may be provided by mandatory provision of law and subject to the
terms of the 7.875% Notes, at all times rank at least equally with all its other present and
future unsecured obligations.
The 7.875% Notes provide certain restrictions with respect to, among others, incurrence of
debt and merger or consolidation, except in certain circumstances.
In 2002, the Company defaulted on its principal and interest payments on the above
obligations. The terms of the 7.875% Notes provide that the principal amount, together with
accrued interest thereon and all other amounts due and payable, become immediately due and
payable.
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- 67 b. LTCPs
On August 9, 1996, the SEC approved the issuance of P
=3 billion worth of LTCPs to finance
the Parent Company’s investments in real property development, telecommunications,
infrastructure projects and power-related projects of its subsidiaries and associates.
The LTCPs were offered and issued in two series, “A-1” for P
=1,000 million and “A-2” for
=2,000 million. Series A-1 was fully paid in 2001. Series A-2 shall be repaid in one lump
P
sum on October 1, 2003 with interest at 1-1/8% above the 91-day TB rate, also payable
quarterly in arrears.
The LTCPs provide certain restrictions and requirements with respect to, among others,
incurrence of mortgage, pledge, lien or other encumbrance over the whole or any part of the
Parent Company’s assets or revenues, merger or consolidation, sales, lease, transfer or
otherwise disposal of all or substantially all of its assets, dividend distribution and
maintenance of certain financial ratios.
The Parent Company also defaulted on its interest payments on the above obligations in 2002
and on its principal in 2003. The terms of the LTCP loan provide for the payment of penalties
should there be an event of default on interest and/or principal computed at 24% per annum
from the date of default.
In 2007, the Parent Company purchased debt from five (5) LTCP holders holding a total value
of P
=10 million. The debt was purchased for P
=6 million or at 60% of the principal amount of
debt. The purchase resulted to a gain on redemption amounting to P
=4 million (shown as part
of the “Other income” account in the 2007 consolidated statement of income) (see Note 24).
c. 4.2% Perpetual Convertible Bonds (Bonds)
The 4.2% Bonds, listed in the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and issued in registered form in
denomination of US$1.49 each, bear interest from November 26, 1994 at 4.2% per annum, net
of withholding taxes, determined at a fixed exchange rate and payable annually in arrears in
November 30 of each year commencing on November 30, 1995. The Bonds may be converted
on or after November 26, 1995 into fully paid common shares of the Parent Company by
reference to the Philippine peso equivalent of the US dollar-denominated principal amount of
the Bonds, determined at a fixed exchange rate, and at an initial conversion price of P
=4.20 per
share, subject to adjustment in certain events. The Bonds are redeemable at the option of the
Parent Company, in whole or in part, at any time after November 26, 1998 at a price equal to
the principal amount of the Bonds or market price of the shares issuable upon conversion,
whichever is higher, subject to certain conditions.
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, 29,449 units have been converted into 324,337,262
common shares. Certain number of shares equivalent to 3,421,410 shares, are reserved to
cover any conversion of the outstanding Bonds into common shares and stock dividends
declared during the year.
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- 68 The Bonds constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and subject to certain exceptions,
unsecured obligations of the Parent Company and shall at all times rank pari passu and
without any preference or priority among themselves and at least equally with all other present
and future unsecured obligations of the Parent Company, except for such exceptions as may be
provided by applicable legislation. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, P
=12 million of the
Bonds are outstanding.
As discussed in Note 1, the Parent Company is currently in negotiation with the creditors to
address all its obligations. Interest and other finance charges, including penalties recognized by
the Parent Company, amounted to P
=1,211 million in 2007 and P
=1,329 million in 2006.
ABS-CBN
a. Bank Loans
This represents peso and dollar-denominated loans obtained from local banks which bear
average annual interest rates of 7.40% in 2007 and 10.28% in 2006.
b. Term Loan under the Senior Credit Agreement (SCA)
On June 18, 2004, ABS-CBN entered into an SCA with several foreign and local banks
(Original Lenders) for a US$120 million dual currency syndicated term loan facility for the
purpose of refinancing existing indebtedness incurred for the construction of the Eugenio
Lopez, Jr. Communications Center, additional investment in the cable TV business and
funding capital expenditures and working capital requirements. The SCA is classified into
three (3) groups namely: Tranche A, a floating rate facility (3.5% + LIBOR) amounting to
US$62 million; Tranche B, a floating rate facility (3.5% + MART1 T-bill) amounting to
=2,688 million; and, Tranche C, a fixed rate facility (3.5% + FXTN) amounting to
P
=560 million. Both Tranche A and Tranche B have a term of five years with 17 quarterly
P
unequal payments and Tranche C has a term of four years with four annual unequal
installments. These have all been availed of in March 2005. ABS-CBN’s obligation under
the SCA is secured and covered by a Mortgage Trust Indenture (MTI) which consists of
substantially all of ABS-CBN’s real property and moveable assets used in connection with its
business and insurance proceeds related thereto. Further, ABS-CBN’s obligation under the
SCA is jointly and severally guaranteed by its principal subsidiaries.
The SCA contains provision regarding the maintenance of certain financial ratios and limiting,
among others, the incurrence of additional debt, the payment of dividends, making
investments, the issuing or selling of ABS-CBN’s capital stock or some of its subsidiaries, the
selling or exchanging of assets, creation of liens and effecting mergers. As of December 31,
2007 and 2006, ABS-CBN is in compliance with the provisions of the SCA.
As indicated in the SCA, all existing loans of ABS-CBN outside the SCA were settled via
proceeds of the term loan facility.
To manage its exposures to foreign currency exchange and interest rate risks relating to the
facility drawdowns, ABS-CBN entered into interest rate and cross currency swap contracts
with counterparty banks. These contracts were all terminated in 2007 as a result of the
prepayment of the underlying Tranche A of the SCA Facility (see Notes 27 and 28).
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- 69 On January 11, 2007, ABS-CBN signed a commitment letter with ABN Amro Bank N.V., BPI
Capital Corporation and ING Bank N.V. (together, the Mandated Lead Arrangers,) to arrange
and underwrite on a firm commitment basis the refinancing/restructuring of the existing longterm loan. Consequently, the execution copies of the agreement amending the SCA facility
were signed on March 27, 2007. The major amendments to the existing agreement that were
agreed upon with the Mandated Lead Arrangers are as follows:
i. There will be an additional amount that will be available for drawdown amounting to

US$5 million. Once effected, total outstanding loan will be around P
=4,440 million,
=270 million more than the P
P
=4,170 million that is currently outstanding;

ii. The Tranche B and C will have bullet repayment schemes maturing in March 2012 while

maintaining the original structure of the Tranche A facility with a final due date of until
June 2009. Interest payments will continue to be paid on a quarterly basis;

iii. The applicable margins added to the benchmark interest rates will be reduced from 3.50%

to an average of about 2.20%;

iv. Except for the Quezon City Broadcast Complex and certain broadcast machineries and

equipment contained therein, all other assets will be removed from the MTI and will no
longer form part of the security package;

v. Certain mandatory prepayment provisions will be removed;
vi. ABS-CBN financial ratio requirement will be removed, while maintaining a financial ratio

requirement on a Consolidated basis but at more relaxed thresholds;

vii. ABS-CBN will be allowed to make interest bearing advances and guarantees to SkyVision

of up to P
=400 million;

viii. ABS-CBN will be allowed to convert into equity outstanding advances amounting to

US$30 million including interest and P
=437 million, respectively made to SkyVision by
ABS-CBN and CPI.

On September 14, 2007, the relevant parties to the SCA facility executed the First Amendment
Agreement. The amendments centered mainly on the following provisions:
�

Allow ABS-CBN to incur additional unsecured financial indebtedness;

�

Increase the amount of support that ABS-CBN can extend to SkyVision and/or Sky Cable
from =
P400 million to P
=2,250 million; and

�

Remove the pro rata requirement in cases of prepayments.

The amendment of the SCA facility substantially modified the terms of Tranche C.
Accordingly, this resulted in the derecognition of the original liability and recognition of a
new liability. Loss on derecognition, included as part of “Finance costs” account in the 2007
consolidated statement of income, amounted to P
=16 million (P
=11 million, net of tax)
(see Note 24).
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- 70 On December 18, 2007, ABS-CBN prepaid all outstanding Tranche A of the SCA facility
amounting to US$27 million (equivalent to =
P1,132 million) from the proceeds of the
=1,350 million term loan from Banco de Oro Universal Bank (BDO).
P
c. Term Loan Facility with BDO
On December 13, 2007, ABS-CBN together with BDO signed a P
=1,350 million secured
facility to refinance the entire Tranche A of the SCA facility equivalent to US$31 million.
The refinancing effectively extended the maturity from June 2009 to December 2012 with an
interest rate of 3mPDSTF plus 2.15%.
The BDO facility contains provision regarding the maintenance of certain financial ratios and
limiting, among others, the incurrence of additional debt, the payment of dividends, making
investments, the issuing or selling of ABS-CBN’s capital stock or some of its subsidiaries, the
selling or exchanging of assets, creation of liens and effecting mergers. As of December 31,
2007, ABS-CBN is in compliance with the provisions of the BDO facility.
ABS-CBN’s obligation under the BDO facility is jointly and severally guaranteed by its
principal subsidiaries.
d. Sky Cable Debt Cash and Exchange Offer (see Note 2)
Cash Offer. On September 20, 2007, ABS-CBN settled the P
=944 million Sky Cable loans in
the amount of P
=662 million. To finance the settlement of the loans, ABS-CBN signed a
syndicated loan for P
=800 million with ING Bank N.V. and Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.,
Manila Branch with Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd., Manila Branch acting as the facility agent.
The loan is unsecured and unsubordinated with an interest rate of 3mPHIBOR plus 2.75% per
annum and final maturity on September 20, 2012. The total amount of money withdrawn is
=662 million.
P
Exchange Offer. On September 18, 2007, ABS-CBN successfully signed a syndicated loan
for =
P854 million with the previous lenders of Sky Cable, namely, United Coconut Planters
Bank, Bank of the Philippine Islands, Mega International Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., Olga
Vendivel and Wise Capital Investment & Trust Company, Inc., with Banco De Oro - EPCI,
Inc. acting as the facility agent. The loan is unsecured and unsubordinated with a fixed
coupon of 2% with a final maturity on September 18, 2014.
ABS-CBN’s obligation under these facilities is jointly and severally guaranteed by its
principal subsidiaries.
Both loan facilities contain provisions regarding the maintenance of certain financial ratios
and limiting, among others, the incurrence of additional debt, the payment of dividends,
making investments, the issuing or selling of ABS-CBN’s capital stock or some of its
subsidiaries, the selling or exchanging of assets, creation of liens and effecting mergers. As of
December 31, 2007, the ABS-CBN is in compliance with the provisions of the two facilities.
Debt discount which represents the difference between the nominal value and fair value of the
debt issued related to the Exchange Offer amounted to P
=298 million.

AR 2007
124 Benpres
Financial Statements

- 71 Repayments of long-term debt based on nominal values are scheduled as follows:
SCA
Tranche B

Tranche C

BDO Facility

=
P–
–
–
–
1,850
=1,850
P

P
=–
–
–
–
403
=
P403

=
P10
44
108
378
810
=
P1,350

Sky Cable Debt
Exchange
Cash Offer
Offer

Total

(In Millions)

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

=
P–
–
–
–
662
=
P662

=
P–
–
–
–
855
=
P855

P
=10
44
108
378
4,580
=
P5,120

Details of unamortized transaction costs and debt discount, presented as a deduction from
ABS-CBN’s long-term debt as of December 31, are as follows:
2007
Transaction costs
Debt discount

2006
(In Millions)

P
=135
290
P
=425

=114
P
–

=114
P

Transaction costs and debt discount are amortized over the term of the loans using the effective
interest rate method as follows:
Transactions Costs
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012–2014

Tranche B
P
=14
15
17
18
5
=69
P

BDO Facility
=
P3
4
4
4
2
=
P17

Cash Offer
P
=4
5
5
6
5
P
=25

Exchange
Offer
=
P4
3
3
3
11
P
=24

Debt
Discount
=
P33
36
39
43
139
=
P290

Total
P
=58
63
68
74
162
=
P425

Amortization of transaction costs and debt discount are as follows (see Note 24):
2006

2005

P
=102

=84
P

=
P87

9
P
=111

–
=84
P

–
=
P87

2007
Transaction costs (see Note 24)
Debt discount (charged to interest
expense) (see Note 24)

(In Millions)

The 2007 amortization includes unamortized transaction costs of US$860,000 (equivalent to
=36 million) as of prepayment date of the Tranche A. This should have been amortized until the
P
final maturity of the Tranche A in June 2009 had it not been prepaid in December 2007.
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2007
Balance at beginning of year
Payments during the year
Restatement of dollar-denominated guarantees
Balance at end of year

P
=10,304
(1,660)
(1,537)
P
=7,107

(In Millions)

2006

=10,361
P
(74)
17
=10,304
P

Provision for estimated liabilities from guarantees and commitments represents the Parent
Company’s guarantees and commitments in Bayantel. As discussed in Note 10, pursuant to the
guarantee, the Parent Company and Bayantel entered into an Indemnity Agreement where
Bayantel has agreed to indemnify the Parent Company in the event that the Parent Company is
required to pay the guaranteed obligations.
On November 29, 2007, the Parent Company and Lopez together settled the US$43 million worth
of debt held by Asian Infrastructure Fund (AIF), of which they are co-obligors. The debt was
settled for US$32 million, with the Parent Company paying US$26 million and Lopez paying
US$6 million. The payment effectively resulted to the transfer of the underlying Bayantel shares
(see Note 4), which the Parent Company has fully provided for. As a result, the Parent Company
reversed the corresponding valuation allowance of P
=457 million (shown as part of “Other income”
account in the 2007 consolidated statement of income) (see Note 24). The shares were actually
transferred to the Parent Company on January 30, 2008.
18. Other Noncurrent Liabilities
2007
Obligations for program rights
Asset retirement obligation
Others

P
=51
15
31
P
=97

(In Millions)

2006
=64
P
17
34
=115
P

19. Related Party Transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.
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- 73 Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties
The sales to and purchases from related parties are made at normal market prices. Outstanding
balances as of year-end are unsecured, interest-free and settlement occurs in cash, except for the
noncurrent receivables of ABS-CBN from SkyVision and Sky Cable (see Note 2). There have
been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables except those
disclosed in Notes 1, 17 and 30. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, allowance for doubtful
accounts relating to advances to associates amounted to P
=3,753 million and P
=3,537 million,
respectively (see Note 10). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining
the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
As discussed in Note 16, certain obligations of ABS-CBN are jointly and severally guaranteed by
its principal subsidiaries.
Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Company
2007
Compensation
Pension benefit
Other employee benefits
Termination benefits

P
=484
44
22
1
P
=551

2006

2005

=452
P
49
29
–
=530
P

=
P424
34
4
70
=
P532

(In Millions)

In addition to the related party transactions discussed in Notes 10 and 30, transactions of the
Parent Company with related parties involve deposits for options to purchase shares of stock of
Bayantel and SkyVision at a pre-agreed price from Lopez (see Note 12).
The outstanding gross balances of the Parent Company resulting from the above transactions as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006 are carried in the following accounts in the consolidated balance
sheets:
2007
Advances to associates (see Note 10)
Deposits (see Note 12)
Due from related parties (see Note 8)
Due to related parties (see Note 15)

P
=3,757
4,833
66
398

2006
(In Millions)

=3,541
P
4,833
66
301
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- 74 Significant transactions of ABS-CBN with associates and related parties follow:
2006

2005

P
=105

=105
P

=112
P

54

57

61

35

–

–

21

–

–

–

115

261

425

413

432

277

236

287

74

50

61

28

37

35

2007
Associates
License fees charged by CPI to Sky
Cable PCC and Home
Blocktime fees paid by Studio 23,
Inc. (Studio 23) to Amcara
Broadcasting Network, Inc.
(Amcara)
Interest on noncurrent receivable
from Sky Cable (see Note 2)
Management fees charged to Sky
Cable
Interest on noncurrent receivable
from SkyVision (see Note 2)
Affiliates
Expenses paid by ABS-CBN and
subsidiaries to MERALCO,
Bayantel and other related
parties (see Notes 20, 22
and 23)
Termination cost charges of
Bayantel, a subsidiary of Lopez,
to ABS-CBN Global, Ltd.
Airtime revenue from MNTC,
Bayantel and MERALCO,
an associate of Lopez
Expenses and charges paid for by
ABS-CBN which are
reimbursed by the concerned
related parties

(In Millions)

The related receivables from and payables to related parties of ABS-CBN, presented under “Trade
and other receivables” and “Trade and other payables” accounts, respectively, in the consolidated
balance sheets are as follows:
2007
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2006
(In Millions)

Due from associates
Due from affiliates
Total (see Note 8)

P
=43
110
P
=153

=180
P
109
=289
P

Due to associates
Due to affiliates
Total (see Note 15)

P
=69
173
P
=242

P33
=
192
=225
P

- 75 a. License Fees Charged by CPI to Sky Cable
CPI entered into a cable lease agreement (Agreement) with Sky Cable for the airing of the
cable channels (see Note 13) to the franchise areas of Sky Cable and its cable affiliates. The
initial Agreement with Sky Cable is for a period of five years effective January 1, 2001.
Subsequently, it is renewable on a yearly basis upon mutual consent of both parties. The said
Agreement was renewed for one year in 2007 and 2006 and under negotiation for 2008.
Under the terms of the Agreement, CPI receives license fees from Sky Cable and its cable
affiliates computed based on agreed percentage of subscription revenues of Sky Cable and its
cable affiliates. As the owner of the said cable channels, CPI develops and produces its own
shows and acquires program rights from various foreign and local suppliers.
b. Blocktime Fees Paid by Studio 23 to Amcara
Studio 23 owns the program rights being aired in UHF Channel 23 of Amcara. On July 1,
2000, it entered into a blocktime agreement with Amcara for its provincial operations.
c. Management Fees Charged to Sky Cable
ABS-CBN renders management services to Sky Cable through designated employees.
d. Other transactions with associates include cash advances for working capital requirements.
20. Cost of Sales and Services
2007
Facilities related expenses
(see Notes 19 and 30)
Termination costs (see Note 19)
Inventory cost
Amortization of program rights
(see Note 13)
Personnel expenses (see Note 26)
Depreciation and amortization
(see Note 11)
Other expenses

2006

2005

(In Millions)

P
=582
285
282

=424
P
375
133

=
P536
405
363

243
229

152
201

116
168

16
1,149
P
=2,786

47
894
=2,226
P

48
738
=
P2,374

2006

2005

=1,547
P
737
=2,284
P

=
P1,535
550
=
P2,085

21. Agency Commission, Incentives and Co-producers’ Share
2007
Agency commission
Incentives and co-producers’ share

P
=1,890
811
P
=2,701

(In Millions)
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- 76 Industry rules allow ABS-CBN to sell up to 18 minutes of commercial spots per hour of television
programming. These spots are sold mainly through advertising agencies which act as the buying
agents of advertisers, and to a lesser extent, directly to advertisers. Substantially, all gross airtime
revenue, including airtime sold directly to advertisers, is subject to a standard of 15% agency
commission.
Incentives include early payment and early placement discount as well as commissions paid to
ABS-CBN’s account executives and cable operators.
ABS-CBN has co-produced shows which are programs produced by ABS-CBN together with
independent producers. Under this arrangement, ABS-CBN provides the technical facilities and
airtime and handles the marketing of the shows. The co-producers shoulder all other costs of
production. The revenue earned on these shows is shared between ABS-CBN and the coproducers.
22. Production Costs
2006

2005

P
=2,662

=2,412
P

=
P2,513

972

833

840

853

734

712

645

635

680

1,361
P
=6,493

1,099
=5,713
P

946
=
P5,691

2007
Personnel expenses and talent fees
(see Notes 13 and 26)
Facilities related expenses
(see Notes 13, 19 and 30)
Amortization of program rights
(see Note 13)
Depreciation and amortization
(see Note 11)
Other program expenses
(see Notes 13 and 19)

(In Millions)

Other program expenses of ABS-CBN consist of production expenses including, but not limited
to, set requirements, prizes, transportation, advertising and other expenses related to the
promotional activities of various projects during the year.
23. General and Administrative Expenses
2007
Personnel expenses (see Note 26)
Depreciation and amortization
(see Note 11)
Facilities related expenses
(see Notes 19 and 30)
Contracted services
(Forward)
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2006

2005

(In Millions)

P
=2,715

=2,208
P

=
P2,503

566

507

579

549
447

537
488

498
481

- 77 -

2006

2005

P
=192
184

=162
P
520

=
P151
503

102
100
881
P
=5,736

94
139
686
=5,341
P

160
119
965
=
P5,959

2006

2005

2007
Taxes and licenses
Advertising and promotions
Provision for doubtful accounts
(see Note 8)
Amusement and recreation
Other expenses (see Note 19)

(In Millions)

24. Other Income and Expenses
Other Income
2007
Reversal of valuation allowance
(see Note 17)
Gain on acquisition and exchange
of debt (see Notes 2 and 16)
Rental income (see Notes 19
and 30)
Management fees
Royalty income
Others [see Notes 16(b) and 19]

(In Millions)

P
=457

=–
P

=
P–

206

–

–

110
78
39
165
P
=1,055

103
70
25
448
=646
P

91
95
11
168
=
P365

Others mainly pertain to income from gate receipts, studio tours, management fees and other
miscellaneous revenues.
Finance Costs
2006

2005

P
=1,616

=1,962
P

=
P2,046

102
59

84
138

87
219

16
16
P
=1,809

–
13
=2,197
P

–
12
=
P2,364

2007
Interest expense (see Note 16)
Amortization of debt issue costs
(see Note 16)
Hedge cost (see Note 28)
Loss on derecognition of debt
(see Note 16)
Bank service charges

(In Millions)
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- 78 The following are the sources of interest expense (see Note 16):
2007
Long-term debt
Obligations under capital lease
Bank loans

2006

2005

(In Millions)

=1,893
P
35
34
=1,962
P

=
P1,966
62
18
=
P2,046

2006

2005

P
=140

=83
P

=
P36

35
P
=175

115
=198
P

261
=
P297

P
=1,554
40
22
P
=1,616

Interest Income
The following are the sources of interest income:
2007
Cash and cash equivalents
(see Note 7)
Long-term receivable from related
parties [see Note 2(b) and (c)]

(In Millions)

25. Income Tax
The significant components of the Parent Company’s temporary differences in the consolidated
financial statements follow:
2007
NOLCO
Accrued interest
Unrealized foreign exchange losses
Carryforward benefit of MCIT
Accrued retirement and unamortized
past service cost

(In Millions)

2006

P
=1,936
915
354
20

=3,283
P
–
3,555
12

9
P
=3,234

15
=6,865
P

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Parent Company did not recognize any deferred tax assets
on these temporary differences because management believes that the Parent Company may not be
able to generate sufficient taxable profit that will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
income tax asset to be utilized.
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- 79 In the consolidated financial statements, the current provision for income tax includes the
MCIT of the Parent Company. In 2007, MCIT and NOLCO amounting to P
=3 million and
=1,418 million, respectively, expired. The Parent Company’s MCIT and NOLCO totaling
P
=20 million and P
P
=1,936 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2007, can be carried forward
and claimed as deduction against the regular income tax due and regular taxable income,
respectively as follows:
Year Paid/Incurred

Expiry Date

2005
2006
2007

December 31, 2008
December 31, 2009
December 31, 2010

MCIT
=
P2
7
11
=20
P

NOLCO

(In Millions)

P
=1,451
414
71
P
=1,936

In the consolidated financial statements, the significant components of deferred tax assets and
liabilities of ABS-CBN are as follows:
2007
Deferred tax assets - net:
Capitalized interest, duties and taxes
(net of accumulated depreciation)
Accrued pension obligation and other employee
benefits
Accrued expenses
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Gain on acquisition and exchange
of debt (net of accretion)
Customer’s deposit
Unrealized foreign exchange loss - net
Allowance for inventory obsolescence
NOLCO
MCIT
Cumulative translation adjustment
of cash flow hedge
Mark-to-market loss (gain)
Others

(P
=282)

2006
(In Millions)

(P
=296)

279
127
75

222
112
123

(62)
39
(28)
8
6
3

–
38
(70)
4
10
1

–
–
19
P
=184

87
40
31
=302
P
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- 80 The details of the unrecognized deductible temporary differences, NOLCO and certain MCIT of
the subsidiaries of ABS-CBN are as follows:
2007
NOLCO
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Accrued retirement expense and others
Carryforward benefit of MCIT
Unearned revenue

P
=520
35
11
5
–
P
=571

2006
(In Millions)

=296
P
200
6
6
31
=539
P

ABS-CBN believes that it is not probable that taxable income will be available against which the
temporary differences, NOLCO and MCIT will be utilized.
MCIT of the subsidiaries of ABS-CBN amounting to P
=8 million can be claimed as tax credit
against future regular corporate income tax as follows:
Years Incurred

Expiry Dates

2005
2006
2007

December 31, 2008
December 31, 2009
December 31, 2010

Amount

(In Millions)

=
P2
3
3
=8
P

NOLCO of the subsidiaries amounting to P
=538 million can be claimed as deductions from regular
corporate income tax as follows:
Year Incurred

Expiry Date

2005
2006
2007

December 31, 2008
December 31, 2009
December 31, 2010

Amount

(In Millions)

=
P87
235
216
=538
P

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, deferred income tax liability has not been recognized on
undistributed earnings of ABS-CBN Global, holding company of ABS-CBN’s foreign
subsidiaries, amounting to P
=200 million and P
=122 million, respectively, since ABS-CBN is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference. The undistributed earnings are earmarked for
expansion in ABS-CBN’s foreign operations.
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- 81 The reconciliation of the provision for income tax computed at the statutory income tax rates to
the provision for income tax shown in the consolidated statements of income under continuing
operations follows:

Applicable statutory income
tax rate
Income tax effects of the following:
Equity in net earnings
of associates
Interest income subjected to
final tax
Change in value of
unrecognized deferred tax
assets
Nondeductible interest and
others
Change in tax rates
Nondeductible expense

2007

2006
(As restated see Note 4)

2005
(As restated see Note 4)

35%

35%

33%

(14)

(31)

(62)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(6)

1

5

5
–
(5)
14%

7
–
1
12%

22
(5)
22
14%

On May 24, 2005, the President signed into law RA No. 9337 amending certain provisions of the
NIRC of 1997, as amended, which took effect on July 1, 2005, introducing the following changes:
i.

RCIT rate for domestic corporations and resident and non-resident foreign corporations is
increased to 35% (from 32%) beginning November 1, 2005 and the rate will be reduced to
30% beginning January 1, 2009. RCIT rate shall be applied on the amount computed by
multiplying the number of months covered by the new rate within the fiscal year by the
taxable income of the corporation for the period, divided by 12 months.

ii.

Power of the President upon the recommendation of the Secretary of Finance to increase the
rate of value added tax (VAT) to 12% (from 10%), after any of the following conditions has
been satisfied:
�

VAT collection as a percentage of gross domestic product (GDP) of the previous year
exceeds two and four-fifth percent (2 4/5%); or

�

National government deficit as a percentage of GDP of the previous year exceeds one and
one-half percent (1½%).
On January 31, 2006, a Revenue Memorandum Circular No. 7-2006 was issued approving
the recommendation of the Secretary of Finance to increase VAT to 12% (from 10%)
effective February 1, 2006.

iii. Input VAT on capital goods should be spread evenly over the useful life or 60 months,

whichever is shorter, if the acquisition cost, excluding the VAT component thereof, exceeds
=1 million.
P
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- 82 iv. Input VAT credit shall not exceed output VAT, otherwise, VAT liability before withholding

VAT credits shall be computed equivalent to 30% of output VAT.

On November 21, 2006, the President of the Philippines has signed R.A. No. 9361 which
lifted the 70% cap on input VAT allowing companies to again charge 100% of input VAT to
output VAT per quarter. This new ruling took effect on December 13, 2006.
26. Pension Plan
Parent Company
The Parent Company has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering
substantially all of its permanent employees.
The following tables summarize the components of the Parent Company’s net benefit expense
(income) recognized in the consolidated statements of income and the funded status and amounts
recognized in the consolidated balance sheets for the plan:
Net Benefit Expense (Income)
2007
Current service cost
Expected return on plan assets
Interest cost
Amortization of past service cost
Actuarial loss recognized
during the year
Gain recognized due to asset limit
Net benefit expense (income)
Actual return on Parent Company’s
plan assets

2006

2005

(In Thousands)

P
=11,400
(7,127)
6,352
5,517

P5,958
=
(4,013)
2,351
–

=
P1,989
(2,254)
2,255
–

2,160
(1,491)
P
=16,811

–
(4,910)
(P
=614)

–
–
=
P1,990

P
=8,490

=17,301
P

=
P2,254

Pension Asset
2007
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of obligation
Unrecognized asset due to asset limit
Actuarial gain
Pension asset (see Note 12)
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2006
(In Thousands)

P
=102,932
(93,368)
9,564
21,003
5,526
P
=36,093

P71,798
=
(67,406)
4,392
(1,491)
27,359
=30,260
P

- 83 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation of the Parent Company follow:
2007
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year
Actuarial loss (gain) on obligation
Current service cost
Interest cost
Past service cost
Benefits paid
Defined benefit obligation at end of year

(In Thousands)

P
=67,406
(2,832)
11,400
6,352
11,042
–
P
=93,368

2006

=20,896
P
40,646
5,958
2,351
(2,445)
=67,406
P

Changes in the fair value of plan assets of the Parent Company follow:
2007
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual contributions
Actuarial gain
Expected return on plan assets
Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

P
=71,798
22,644
1,363
7,127
–
P
=102,932

(In Thousands)

2006

=27,297
P
29,645
13,288
4,013
(2,445)
=71,798
P

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing
on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.
The Parent Company expects to contribute =
P8 million to its defined benefit obligation in 2008.
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as
follows:
Shares of stock
Government instruments
Other securities and debt instruments

2007
28%
63%
9%

2006
48%
39%
13%

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing
on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.
The principal assumptions used as of January 1, 2007 and 2006 in determining obligations for the
Parent Company’s plans are shown below:
Discount rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Future salary rate increase

2007
7.5%
5%
10%

2006
11%
15%
10%

Discount rate prevailing as of December 31, 2007 is 8.54%.
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- 84 Amounts for 2007 and 2006 are as follows:
2007
Defined benefit obligation
Plan assets
Surplus
Experience adjustments
on plan liabilities

2006

2005

(In Thousands)

P
=93,368
102,932
9,564

=67,406
P
71,798
4,392

=
P20,896
27,297
6,401

639

30,429

–

ABS-CBN
ABS-CBN’s pension plan is composed of funded (ABS-CBN) and unfunded (ABS-CBN’s
Subsidiaries), noncontributory and actuarially computed pension plan except for
ABS-CBN International (contributory) covering substantially all of its employees. The benefits
are based on years of service and compensation during the last year of employment.
In 2005, ABS-CBN implemented an Early Retirement Program. The employees availed this
program from July to December 2005. Total retrenchment cost amounted to P
=576 million, net of
recognized curtailment gain of P
=158 million.
The following table summarizes the components of consolidated net benefit expense (income)
recognized in the consolidated statements of income and accrued pension obligation recognized in
the consolidated balance sheets.
Net Benefit Expense (Income)
Current service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Net actuarial loss recognized
during the year
Curtailment gain
Net benefit expense (income)

2007
P
=118
71
(17)

2006
=53
P
36
(14)

2005
=
P41
51
(13)

23
–
P
=195

–
–
=75
P

–
(158)
(P
=79)

2007
P
=860
(264)
596
(195)
P
=401

2006
P854
=
(176)
678
(398)
=280
P

Benefit Liability
Present value of obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Unfunded obligation
Unrecognized net actuarial loss
Benefit liability
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- 85 Consolidated changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year
Actuarial loss (gain) on obligation
Current service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Curtailment gain
Defined benefit obligation at end of year

2007
P
=854
(144)
118
71
(38)
(1)
P
=860

2006
P344
=
455
53
36
(34)
–
=854
P

2007
P
=176
17
70
1
P
=264

2006
=139
P
14
–
23
=176
P

P
=19

=37
P

Change in the fair value of plan assets of ABS-CBN are as follows:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Expected return on plan assets
Actual contribution
Actuarial gains
Fair value of plan assets at end of year
Actual return on ABS-CBN’s plan assets

ABS-CBN expects to contribute P
=100 million to its defined benefit obligation in 2008.
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as
follows:
2007
50%
17%
25%
8%
100%

Investment in FXTN/FRTN
Investment in bonds
Short-term equity investment
Others

2006
48%
24%
20%
8%
100%

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing
on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.
The principal assumptions used as of January 1, 2007, 2006 and 2005 in determining pension
benefit obligations for ABS-CBN’s plans are shown below:
Discount rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Future salary rate increases

2007
7%
9%
9%

2006
11%
10%
7%

2005
14%
10%
6%

Discount rate prevailing as of December 31, 2007 is 10.312%.
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- 86 Amounts for the current and previous two periods are as follows:
Defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Deficit
Experience adjustments on defined
benefit obligation
Experience adjustments on
plan assets

2007
(P
=860)
264
(596)

2006
(P
=854)
176
(678)

2005
(P
=344)
139
(205)

–

(120)

–

1

23

–

27. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
Parent Company
The Parent Company’s principal financial instruments comprise bank loans and cash and shortterm investments. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to fund the Parent
Company’s investments in associated companies. The Parent Company holds equity in
subsidiaries and associates, which may or may not result in receipt of dividends in a given year
and has various other financial assets and liabilities which arise directly from its operations.
The main risks that may arise from the Parent Company’s financial instruments are cash flow risk,
strategic information/valuation risk, equity investment risk, foreign currency exchange risk and
foreign currency revaluation risk, financial markets risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit
risk. The BOD reviews and approves policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarized below.
Cash Flow Risk
This risk refers to the Parent Company’s exposure to the risk of lower returns on its investments or
the necessity to borrow due to shortfalls in cash or expected cash flows, or variances in their
timing. The restructuring plan is based on cash flows from dividends and asset sales and these may
not come in as expected.
To manage this, the Parent Company obtains the concurrence of subsidiaries and associates on
dividends forecast used in the restructuring plan.
Strategic Information/Valuation Risk
This refers to the lack of relevant and reliable valuation information that may preclude prospective
investors from making informed assessment of the value of the Parent Company or any of its
significant segments in a strategic context.
To manage this, the Parent Company is in constant communication with subsidiaries and
associates to obtain updated and realistic financial models of their operations, as well as how such
relate to the Company. In addition, key Parent Company officers are either elected as member of
the board in subsidiaries and associates or sit in as observer in management committee or board
meetings of subsidiaries and associates to ensure the parent company is kept abreast of the latest
developments in said companies. In 2007, Parent Company’s President was elected as director of
ABS-CBN.
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- 87 Equity Investment Risk
This refers to the Parent Company’s exposure to fluctuations in the value of equity securities or
income streams from equity ownership in subsidiaries and associates. The Parent Company has
direct and indirect equity investments in the following publicly listed companies whose market
value as measured by market capitalization changes daily: ABS-CBN, FPHC, MERALCO, First
Gen Corporation, PNOC-EDC, FPII and Digitel.
To manage this, a monitoring process is in place to validate financial forecasts against actual
numbers and to ensure that the value of the Parent Company’s equity investments is not depleted.
Financial Markets Risk
Movements in market prices of financial instruments, foreign currency exchange and interest rates,
stock market indices, etc., may affect the value of the Parent Company’s financial assets and stock
price, which may also affect the cost of capital and/or its ability to raise capital.
The Parent Company is negotiating with creditors for a cap on interest rates, or for a fixed interest
rate on debt. Other financial instruments of the Parent Company are noninterest-bearing or have
no fixed or determinable maturity and are therefore not subject to interest rate risk.
Foreign Currency Exchange Risk and Foreign Currency Revaluation Risk
Volatility in foreign currency exchange rates may expose the Parent Company to economic and
accounting losses related to large direct and indirect foreign currency-denominated obligations.
Extraordinary fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates may affect reported operational
profits and deficit, potentially reducing the ability of subsidiaries and associates to declare
dividends.
The risk was eased by the debt buyback undertaken in 2007, which directly reduced the Parent
Company’s foreign currency debt by US$43 million. The Parent Company assumes a 3% foreign
exchange depreciation per annum in its financial model and is negotiating to put a cap on foreign
exchange losses in its restructuring plan. It is also monitoring the mitigation plans of subsidiaries
and associates in relation to foreign currency revaluation risk.
Presented below are the Parent Company’s foreign currency-denominated financial assets and
liabilities as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, translated in Philippine peso at P
=41.28 and P
=49.03,
respectively:
2007

Financial asset Cash and cash equivalents
Financial liabilities:
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Estimated liabilities from guarantees
and commitments

Peso
US Dollar Equivalent

2006
US Dollar

Peso
Equivalent

$2

P
=67

$5

=
P189

150

6,192

150

7,355

172
322
($320)

7,107
13,299
(P
=13,232)

210
360
($355)

10,303
17,658
(P
=17,469)
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- 88 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US$
exchange rate in the next twelve months, with all other variables held constant of, the Parent
Company’s income before income tax due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities. There is no other impact on the Parent Company’s equity other than those already
affecting the profit and loss.
Increase/(Decrease)
USD

6%
(6%)

Effect on Income Before
Income Tax
(In Millions)

(P
=786)
786

Interest Rate Risk
Fluctuations in interest rates affect the company’s capital availability or cash flow risk as they
expose the Parent Company to variable cash requirements in relation to debt with floating interest
rates, including goodwill interest which is based on LIBOR and PDST-F.
To mitigate this risk, the Parent Company’s management continues to negotiate with creditors for
a fixed interest rate on its debt.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity analysis to a reasonable possible change in
interest rates in the next twelve months, with all other variable held constant, of the Parent
Company’s income before income tax. There is no other impact on the Parent Company’s equity
other than those already affecting the profit and loss.
Increase/(Decrease) in Basis Points
Loans and borrowings

+33
-33

Effect on Income Before
Income Tax
(In Millions)

(P
=7)
7

Capital Availability or Cash Flow (Liquidity) Risk
This risk refers to the Parent Company’s exposure to the risk of lower returns on its investments or
the necessity to borrow due to shortfalls in cash or expected cash flows, or variances in their
timing. The restructuring plan is based on cash flows from dividends and asset sales and these may
not come in as expected.
To manage this, the Parent Company obtains the concurrence of subsidiaries and associates on
dividends forecast used in the restructuring plan and financial models were updated quarterly. In
November 2007, the Parent Company bought back a portion of its principal US dollardenominated obligations and a portion of Philippine peso-denominated debt at a 40% discount.
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- 89 The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Parent Company’s financial liabilities as of
December 31, 2007 based on contractual payments.
On
Demand

Less than
3 to
3 Months 12 Months

1 to More than
5 Years
5 Years

Total

(In Millions)

Trade and other payables
Estimated liabilities from
guarantees and commitments
Current portion of interestbearing loans and borrowings
Convertible bonds

=
P4,909

=
P156

=
P–

P
=–

P
=–

P
=5,065

7,107

–

–

–

–

7,107

8,182
12
=20,210
P

–
–
=
P156

–
–
=
P–

–
–
P
=–

–
–
P
=–

8,182
12
P
=20,366

Credit Risk
The Parent Company has advances in subsidiaries and associates but these comprise less than 5%
of assets. Trade receivables refer to accounts under ABS-CBN, which are managed at the ABSCBN level. The Parent Company does not offer credit terms for the provision of services as a
holding company.
With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Parent Company, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and AFS investments, the Parent Company’s exposure to
credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amount of these instruments totalling P
=2,364 million and P
=3,027 million in 2007 and 2006,
respectively.
2007
Cash and cash equivalents
AFS investments
Receivable from related parties

P
=816
1,482
66
P
=2,364

(In Millions)

2006

=1,307
P
1,654
66
=3,027
P

The credit quality of the Parent Company’s financial assets was determined as follows:
High Credit Quality. This includes deposits or placements to counterparties with good credit
rating or bank standing. For receivables, this covers, as of report date, accounts with good credit
standing.
Low Credit Quality. This includes deposits or placements and receivables to counterparties that
are not classified as “high credit quality.”
The Parent Company’s financial assets are neither past due nor impaired and are considered to be
of high credit quality as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.
Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk to earnings or capital arising from changes in stock exchange indices
relating to its quoted equity securities. The Parent Company’s exposure to equity price risk relates
primarily to its AFS investments.
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- 90 The Parent Company’s policy is to maintain the risk to an acceptable level. Movement of share
price is monitored regularly to determine impact on its financial position.
Capital Management
The primary objective of the Parent Company’s capital management is to arrive at a debt
restructuring agreement with its creditors in order to maximize shareholder value. Capital refers
to the equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent. As discussed in Note 1(b), the Parent
Company defaulted on its principal and interest payments on its long-term direct obligations and
guarantees and commitments. The Parent Company’s BSMP plans to address all its financial
obligations.
The following are the Parent Company’s long-term direct obligations and guarantees and
commitments covered by the BSMP:
2007
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Estimated liabilities from guarantees and
commimtments
Convertible bonds

2006
(In Millions)

P
=8,182

=9,367
P

7,107
12

9,355
12

Under the BSMP, cash is reserved for debt service and working capital requirements. The Parent
Company has no material commitments for capital expenditures and has not made any major
investments since 2002. Proceeds of asset sales are placed in short-term financial instruments
under the Parent Company’s ISO-certified Money Market Operations procedure. Payment
requirements for goodwill interest and operating expenses are withdrawn using the same process.
ABS-CBN
ABS-CBN’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise cash and cash
equivalents, AFS financial assets, and bank loans. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise funds for ABS-CBN’s operations. ABS-CBN has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.
ABS-CBN also enters into derivative transactions, including principally interest rate swaps and
cross currency swaps. The purpose is to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from
ABS-CBN’s operations and its sources of finance.
It is, and has been throughout the year under review, ABS-CBN’s policy that no trading in
financial instruments shall be undertaken.
The main risks arising from ABS-CBN’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk,. The BOD reviews and agrees on the policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarized below. The ABS-CBN’s accounting
policies in relation to derivatives are set out in Note 4.
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- 91 Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk
ABS-CBN’s exposure to the risk for changes in market interest rates relates primarily to ABSCBN’s long-term receivable and debt obligations with floating interest rates.
To manage this mix in a cost-efficient manner, ABS-CBN entered into interest rate swaps, in
which ABS-CBN agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and
variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal
amount. These swaps are designated to hedge underlying debt obligations. Before the
prepayment of all outstanding loan obligations under Tranche A of the SCA facility and after
taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, approximately 43% of ABS-CBN’s
borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest. However, in 2007, the derivative contracts that cover
these swaps have been terminated as a result of the prepayment of the underlying loan obligation.
Without the existence of any swaps, ABS-CBN’s loan with fixed rate of interest is at about 25%
of the total loans at the end of 2007.
The following table sets out the carrying amount, by maturity, of ABS-CBN’s consolidated
financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk:
Within One to Two
Two to
One Year
Years Three Years

Three
to Four
Years

Four
Transaction
to Five More than
Costs and
Years Five Years
Discount

Total

(In millions)

2007
Long-term receivable Floating rate
Interest-bearings loans
and borrowings:
Fixed rate
Floating rate

P
=–

P
=–

P
=–

P
=54

P
=253

P
=1,491

(P
=364)

P
=1,434

614
10

131
44

85
108

42
378

417
3,322

854
–

(378)
(111)

1,765
3,751

2006
Interest-bearings loans
and borrowings:
Fixed rate
Floating rate

750
1,452

272
1,475

128
589

19
–

2
–

–
–

(9)
(104)

1,162
3,412

Interest on financial instruments classified as floating rate is repriced at intervals of less than three
months. Interest on financial instruments classified as fixed rate is fixed until the maturity of the
instrument. The other financial instruments of ABS-CBN that are not included in the above tables
are noninterest-bearing and are therefore not subject to interest rate risk.
On the average, benchmark interest rates, 3-month PDST-F, declined by 100 basis points since the
end of 2006. Looking at past trends, however, this has not always been the case with several
periods showing some upward adjustments due to several market pressures. Based on these
experiences, ABS-CBN provides the following table to demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of ABS-CBN’s income
before income tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings). There is no impact on the
ABS-CBN’s equity other than those already affecting the net income.
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- 92 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, of ABS-CBN’s income before income tax (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings). There is no other impact on ABS-CBN’s equity other than
those already affecting the net income.
Increase (Decrease) in Basis Points

Effect on Income Before Income Tax
(In Millions)

2007

+200
-200

(P
=46)
46

Foreign Currency Risk
ABS-CBN’s primary exposure to the risk in changes in foreign currency relates to ABS-CBN’s
long-term debt obligation. Before the prepayment of all outstanding dollar loan obligations under
Tranche A of the SCA facility, approximately 26% of ABS-CBN’s borrowings are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the operating unit. These were all covered by
cross currency swaps which have all been terminated as a result of the prepayment of the
underlying loan obligation. As of December 31, 2007, there no outstanding derivative contracts
and all of ABS-CBN’s loan obligations are in Philippine currency.
It is ABS-CBN’s policy to enter into cross currency swaps to manage this risk and eliminate the
variability of cash flows due to changes in the fair value of the foreign currency-denominated debt
with maturity of more than one year.
Other than the debt obligations, ABS-CBN has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure
arises when the transaction is denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
operating unit or the counterparty.
The following table shows ABS-CBN’s significant foreign currency-denominated financial assets
and liabilities and their Philippine peso equivalents as of December 31, 2007:
Original Currency

USD
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Investments
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Obligations for program rights
Net foreign currency-denominated
financial assets
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EURO

United Arab
Emirates
Dirham
(AED)
CAD

JPY

Peso
Equivalent

(In millions)

$26
24
1
51

€1
1
–
2

¥–
8
–
8

CAD1
1
–
2

AED10
7
–
17

=
P1,251
1,183
39
2,473

15
7
22

2
–
2

1
–
1

1
–
1

–
–
–

730
278
1,008

$29

€–

¥7

CAD

AED17

P
=1,465

- 93 In translating the foreign currency-denominated financial assets and liabilities into peso amounts,
ABS-CBN used the following exchange rates:
Currency
USD
EUR
JPY
CAD
AED

Exchange Rate
41.28
61.25
0.38
42.07
11.43

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in US$ exchange
rate, with all other variables held constant, of ABS-CBN’s income before income tax and equity.
The impact on ABS-CBN’s equity already excludes the impact on transactions affecting the net
income.
Increase (Decrease) in
= to Foreign Currency
P
Exchange Rate
USD
EUR
JPY
CAD
AED

2%
-3%
6%
-4%
14%
-4%
5%
-5%
5%
-4%

Effect on Income Before
Income Tax
(In Millions)

=
P9
(16)
2
(1)
–
–
–
–
–
–

Effect on Equity
(Gross of Tax)
=
P12
(21)
(1)
1
–
–
2
(3)
10
(7)

The change in currency rate is based on ABS-CBN’s best estimate of expected change considering
historical trends and experiences. Positive change in currency rate reflects a weaker peso against
foreign currency.
Credit Risk
ABS-CBN is exposed to credit risk from operational and certain of its financing activities. On
ABS-CBN’s credit risk arising from operating activities, ABS-CBN only extends credit with
recognized and accredited third parties. ABS-CBN implements a pay before broadcast policy to
new customers. To improve collections over ABS-CBN’s trade receivables, ABS-CBN grants
discounts on early payment. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.
Such determination takes into consideration the age of the receivable and the current solvency of
the individual accounts.
With regard to ABS-CBN’s financing activities, as a general rule, ABS-CBN transacts these
activities with counterparties that have a long credit history in the market and outstanding
relationship with ABS-CBN. The policy of ABS-CBN is to have the BOD accredit these banks
and/or financial institutions before any of these financing activities take place.
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- 94 With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of ABS-CBN, which comprise trade
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, AFS financial assets, and receivable from related
parties, ABS-CBN’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.
There is no requirement for collateral over trade receivables since ABS-CBN trades only with
recognized and accredited counterparties.
At balance sheet date, the only significant concentration of credit risk is the long-term receivable
from Sky Cable.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is partly represented by the carrying amounts of the
financial assets that are reported in the consolidated balance sheets.
Credit Risk Exposures. The table below shows the gross maximum exposure to on- and offbalance sheet credit risk exposures (including derivatives) of ABS-CBN, without considering the
effects of collateral, credit enhancements and other credit risk mitigation techniques as of
December 31:
2007
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables - net
Derivative assets
AFS investments (included as part of “Other
noncurrent assets”)
Long-term receivables from related parties

2006
(In Millions)

P
=2,146
4,919
–

=1,662
P
4,383
12

77
3,892
P
=11,034

69
2,423
=8,549
P

Credit Quality per Class of Financial Asset. The credit quality of financial assets is being
managed by ABS-CBN using internal credit ratings. The table below shows the credit quality by
class of financial assets based on ABS-CBN’s credit rating system as of December 31, 2007:
Neither Past Due nor Impaired
Past Due but
Low
Moderate
High not Impaired

Impaired

Total

(In Millions)

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand and in banks
Cash equivalents
Trade receivables:
Airtime
Subscriptions
Others
Nontrade receivables
Due from related parties
Long-term receivables from
related parties
Total
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P
=–
–

=–
P
–

=1,553
P
593

=–
P
–

=–
P
–

P
=1,553
593

32
105
–
29
–

330
128
165
132
–

1,103
171
125
296
–

609
430
552
523
154

219
61
40
34
–

2,293
895
882
1,014
154

–
=166
P

–
=
P755

3,892
=
P7,733

–
=2,268
P

–
=
P354

3,892
=
P11,276

- 95 The credit quality of the financial assets was determined as follows:
�

High Credit Quality
This includes deposits or placements to counterparties with good credit rating or bank
standing. For receivables, this covers, as of report date, accounts of good paying customers,
with good credit standing and with no history of account treatment for a defined period.

�

Moderate Credit Quality
For receivables, this covers accounts of standard paying customers, those whose payments are
within the credit term, and new customers for which sufficient credit history has not been
established.

�

Low Credit Quality
For receivables, this covers accounts of slow paying customers and those whose payments are
received upon demand at report date.

Trade Receivables
These represent amounts collectible from advertising agencies, advertisers or trade customers
arising from the sale of airtime, subscription, services and/or goods in the ordinary course of
business.
Airtime. This account refers to revenue generated from the sale of time or time block within the
on-air broadcast hours on television and radio.
Subscription. This account refers to revenue generated from regular subscriber’s fees for either
(1) access to programs aired through DTH and cable television systems, or (2) direct sale of
publications to subscribers.
Others. This account refers to other revenue generated from the sale of goods and services.
Nontrade Receivables
These represent claims, arising from sources other than the sale of airtime, subscription, services
and goods in the ordinary course of business, that are reasonably expected to be realized in cash.
The table below shows the aging analysis of past due but not impaired receivables per class that
ABS-CBN held as of December 31, 2007. A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has
failed to make a payment when contractually due.

Trade receivables:
Airtime
Subscriptions
Others
Nontrade receivables
Due from related parties
Total

Neither Past Past Due but not Impaired
Due nor
30 Days
Impaired Less than 30
and Over
P
=1,465
404
290
457
–
P
=2,616

=
P232
18
173
28
–
=
P451

=
P378
411
379
496
153
=
P1,817

Impaired
=
P219
61
40
34
–
=
P354

Allowance
(P
=208)
(52)
(27)
(32)
–
(P
=319)

Total
=
P2,086
842
855
983
153
=
P4,919
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- 96 Based on the cash flow projection, past due receivables are expected to be collected within 2008.
Liquidity Risk
ABS-CBN seeks to manage its funds through cash planning on a weekly basis. This undertaking
specifically considers the maturity of the both financial investments and financial assets and
projected operational disbursements. ABS-CBN also employs historical figures and forecasts
from its collection and disbursements. As part of its liquidity risk management, ABS-CBN
regularly evaluates its projected and actual cash flows. As a general rule, cash balance should be
equal to P
=200 million at any given time to compensate for operation exigencies in the periodic
absence of cash inflow.
It is ABS-CBN’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank credit and investment facilities. As such, ABS-CBN continuously
assesses conditions in the financial markets for opportunities to pursue fund raising activities. In
2007, ABS-CBN closed several refinancing activities to extend its debt maturity profile from a
probable average of 2.70 years to 4.80 years as of December 31, 2007. Also, ABS-CBN places
funds in the money market only when there are surpluses from ABS-CBN’s requirements.
Placements are strictly made based on cash planning assumptions and as much as possible, covers
only a short period of time.
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of ABS-CBN’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

Trade and other payables
Derivative liabilities
Obligations for program rights
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings
Total

2007
Three to
Four to
Four Years Five Years

Within
One Year

One to
Two Years

More than
Five Years

Total

P
=4,404
–
790

P
=–
–
4

P
=–
–
–

P
=–
–
–

P
=–
–
–

P
=4,404
–
794

1,049
P
=6,243

1,172
P
=1,176

4,763
P
=4,763

976
P
=976

–
P
=–

7,960
P
=13,158

Within
One Year

One to
Two Years

2006
Three to
Four to
Four Years
Five Years

More than
Five Years

Total

(In Millions)

(In Millions)

Trade and other payables
Derivative liabilities
Obligations for program rights
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings
Total

P
=3,952
358
348

P
=–
–
64

=–
P
–
–

=–
P
–
–

=–
P
–
–

P
=3,952
358
412

2,586
P
=7,244

2,364
P
=2,428

882
=
P882

2
=
P2

–
=–
P

5,834
=
P10,556

Capital Management
The primary objective of ABS-CBN’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy
capital ratios and strong credit ratings while viably supporting its business to maximize
shareholder value.
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- 97 ABS-CBN’s approach focuses on efficiently allocating internally generated cash for operational
requirements and investments to grow the existing business as well as to deliver on its
commitment of a regular dividend payout at a maximum of 50% of the previous year’s net
income. Shortages if any and acquisitions or investments in new business are funded by the
incurrence of additional debt largely capped by existing loan covenants on financial ratios.
As evidenced by the quarterly financial certificates that ABS-CBN issued to its lenders, all
financial ratios are within the required limits all throughout 2007 as follows:
Financial Ratios
Debt to earnings before
income tax, depreciation
and amortization

Required
Less than or equal to 2.25

1st Quarter
0.96

2nd Quarter
0.87

3rd Quarter
1.06

4th Quarter
1.09

Earnings before income tax
to financing cost

Greater than or equal to
2.00 on or before
September 30, 2007
Grater than or equal to 3.00
after September 30,
2007

2.94

3.49

4.04

4.50

Debt service coverage ratio

Greater than or equal
to 1.10

1.39

1.54

2.18

1.63

28. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The following table sets forth the carrying values and estimated fair values of consolidated
financial assets and liabilities recognized as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. There are no
material unrecognized financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables - net
Long-term receivables from
a related parties
Financial assets at FVPL:
Derivative assets designated as
accounting hedges
AFS investments AFS investments (included as
part of “Other current assets”
and “Other noncurrent assets”
accounts)

2007

2006

Fair Values

Carrying
Amounts

P
=2,962
4,984

P
=2,962
4,984

=2,969
P
4,438

=
P2,969
4,438

3,892

4,256

2,423

2,423

–

–

12

12

1,669
P
=13,507

1,669
P
=13,871

1,785
=11,627
P

1,785
=
P11,627

Carrying
Amounts

(In Millions)

Fair Values
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Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities at
amortized cost:
Trade and other payables
Obligations for program rights
Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings
Estimated liabilities from
guarantees and commitments
Financial liabilities at FVPL Derivative liabilities

2007

2006

Fair Values

Carrying
Amounts

P
=9,487
795

P
=9,487
796

=8,371
P
412

=
P8,371
415

13,710

14,098

13,946

14,002

7,107

7,107

10,304

10,304

–

358
=33,391
P

358
=
P33,450

Carrying
Amounts

–

P
=31,099

Fair Values

(In Millions)

P
=31,488

Fair Value of Financial Instrument
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate such value:
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables and Trade and Other payables and
Estimated Liabilities from Guarantees and Commitments . Due to the short-term nature of
transactions, the fair values of these instruments approximate the carrying amounts as of balance
sheet date.
AFS Investments. The fair values of publicly-traded instruments were determined by reference to
market bid quotes as of balance sheet date. Investments in unquoted equity securities for which no
reliable basis for fair value measurement is available are carried at cost net of impairment.
Long-term receivable from Related Parties. The receivable from Sky Cable, which is subjected to
monthly repricing, is not discounted since it approximates fair value.
Obligations for Program Rights. Estimated fair value is based on the discounted value of future
cash flows using the applicable risk-free rates for similar types of loans adjusted for credit risk.
Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings. Fair value was computed based on the following:
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Debt Type

Fair Value Assumptions

Term loan

Estimated fair value is based on the discounted value of
future cash flows using the applicable risk free rates for
similar types of loans adjusted for credit risk. The
interest rates used to discount the future cash flows have
ranged from 4.3% to 5.4% for those that are dollardenominated and from 4.4% to 12.5% for those that are
peso-denominated.

Other variable rate loans

The face value approximates fair value because of recent
and frequent repricing (i.e., 3 months) based on market
conditions.

- 99 Principal-only Swaps and Interest Rate Swaps. The fair values were computed as the present
value of estimated future cash flows.
Bifurcated Foreign Currency Forwards: The fair values of embedded foreign currency forwards
were calculated by reference to forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet date.
Derivative Instruments
Cross Currency Swaps. In 2004, ABS-CBN entered into long-term cross currency swaps that
hedge 100% of the Tranche A Principal against foreign exchange risk. Under these agreements,
ABS-CBN effectively swaps the principal amount of certain US dollar-denominated loans under
the SCA into Philippine peso-denominated loans with payments up to June 2009.
ABS-CBN is also obligated to pay swap costs based on a fixed rate of 8.0% on a notional amount
of P
=353 million, 5.125% on a notional amount of P
=55 million, 3-month PHIREF minus 2.9% on a
notional amount of P
=2 billion and 3-month PHIREF minus 3.1% on a notional amount of
=264 million.
P
On December 18, 2007, ABS-CBN prepaid all its outstanding loan obligations under Tranche A of
the SCA facility amounting to US$27 million (equivalent to P
=1,132 million). This made it
necessary for ABS-CBN to unwind the existing cross currency swaps. On December 20, 2007,
ABS-CBN paid P
=394 million to unwind the hedges. Cumulative translation adjustments
amounting to P
=232 million previously recorded in equity were recognized in the 2007
consolidated statement of income (see Note 24).
Interest Rate Swaps. To manage the interest rate exposure from the floating rate loans, ABS-CBN
also entered into USD interest rate swaps and PHP interest rate swaps which effectively swap
certain floating rate loans into fixed-rate loans. In 2007, the USD interest rate swaps have been
terminated as a result of the prepayment of the outstanding loan obligations under Tranche A of
the SCA facility. ABS-CBN received a total of US$12 million (equivalent to P
=539 million) as net
settlement for the unwinding of the interest rate swaps. Cumulative translation adjustments
amounting to P
=44 million previously recorded in equity were recognized in the 2007 consolidated
statement of income (see Note 24).
Hedge Accounting Implications of Swaps. ABS-CBN’s principal-only currency swaps and USD
interest rate swap are designated as cash flow hedges on October 1, 2005 to manage ABS-CBN’s
exposure to variability in cash flows attributable to foreign exchange and interest rate risks of the
underlying debt obligations. Since the critical terms of the swaps and the outstanding debt
obligations coincide, the hedges are expected to exactly offset changes in expected cash flows due
to fluctuations in foreign exchange and the prime rate over the term of the debt obligations.
From October 1, 2005 up to December 31, 2005, the effective net mark-to-market losses that have
been deferred in equity for these cash flow hedges amounted to P
=53 million (P
=34 million, net of
tax). Prior to designation as cash flow hedges, the principal-only currency swaps accounted for
mark-to-market losses in the consolidated statement of income of about P
=32 million (net of
=316 million gain on the swap differentials), while the USD interest rate swap accounted for
P
mark-to-market gains in the consolidated statement of income of P
=48 million.
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The effective net mark-to-market losses that have been deferred in equity for these cash flow
hedges amounted to P
=249 million (P
=163 million, net of tax) in 2006.
On December 20, 2007, ABS-CBN terminated all outstanding cross currency swap and interest
rate swap contracts as a result of the prepayment of all the outstanding Tranch A loan of the SCA
facility. The net mark-to-market losses amounting to P
=277 million previously recorded in equity
were recognized in the 2007 consolidated statement of income (see Note 24).
As part of the transition adjustments as of January 1, 2005, ABS-CBN initially recognized an
aggregate amount of P
=117 million (P
=76 million, net of tax), representing the fair value for the
principal-only currency swaps (net of the impact of the foreign exchange restatement) and the
USD and PHP interest rate swaps. This amount is initially recorded as a credit adjustment in CTA
(‘initial CTA’) and will be amortized using the effective interest rate method over the remaining
term of the underlying related loans. Amortization of the initial CTA amounted to P
=54 million in
2007 and P
=31 million in 2006. This is recorded as a reduction in interest expense (see Note 24).
In 2006, ABS-CBN made a reassessment of its outstanding cross currency swap and interest rate
swap. The valuation of each swap transaction was remeasured to confirm with the values derived
by each of the counterparties to the hedges. This recalibration resulted in the increase of the
derivative liability and decrease of the derivative asset by P
=105 million and P
=26 million,
respectively, in 2006. The aggregate total of P
=131 million was then recorded in equity and was
transferred to the 2007 consolidated statement of income when ABS-CBN terminated the hedge
contracts as a result of the prepayment of all outstanding Tranche A loans of the SCA facility in
2007.
Movements in the CTA of ABS-CBN related to derivative instruments are as follows:
2007
Balance at beginning of year
Amounts taken to equity
Reversal of tax effect
Amounts transferred to profit and loss:
Due to the termination of hedged item
and related cross currency swap
Due to the termination of hedged item
and related interest rate swap
Amortization of initial CTA
Less tax effects of items taken directly to equity
Balance at end of year

(P
=161)
24
(87)
(224)

(In Millions)

2006
=32
P
(249)
–
(217)
–

232
44
(54)
222
–
–
P
=–

–
(31)
(31)
(248)
87
(P
=161)

Embedded Derivatives. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, ABS-CBN has outstanding
embedded foreign currency derivatives which were bifurcated from various non-financial
contracts. The impact of these embedded derivatives is not significant.
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- 101 As discussed in Note 2, ABS-CBN has a receivable from SkyVision that is convertible into the
latter’s common share, which are not quoted in an active market. The conversion option
embedded in the receivable is not separately accounted for as a financial asset at FVPL. The
entire receivable from SkyVision is reported at cost subject to impairment.
The table below summarizes the fair values of derivative instruments (both freestanding and
embedded) as of December 31, 2006:
Derivative
Liabilities

Derivative Assets
(In Millions)

Cross currency swaps
Interest rate swaps
Embedded derivatives

=
P–
11
1
=12
P

P
=358
–
–
=358
P

The net movements in fair value changes of the Company’s derivative instruments as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:
2007
Balance at beginning of year
Net changes in fair value of derivatives:
Designated as accounting hedges
Not designated as accounting hedges
Less fair value of settled instruments
Balance at end of year

(P
=346)
(47)
–
(393)
393
P
=–

(In Millions)

2006
=89
P
(365)
1
(275)
(71)
(P
=346)

29. Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity
holders of the parent (after deducting interest on the convertible bonds) by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of shares that
would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential shares into shares.
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The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share
computations:

2007
(a) Income attributable to equity holders of the parent
from continuing operations
(b) Income attributable to equity holders of the parent
from discontinued operations
(c) Income attributable to equity holders of the parent
Interest on convertible bonds and amortization
of bond issue cost
(d) Net income attributable to equity holders of the
parent - diluted
(e) Weighted average number of common shares basic (see Note 31)
Conversion of bonds (see Note 16)
(f) Adjusted weighted average common shares diluted

P
=5,365

Diluted
Income (loss) attributable to equity holders
of parent (d/f)

2005
(As restated see Note 4)

(In Millions)

=4,297
P

=
P354

5,365

4,297

–

439
793

1

1

1

P
=5,366

=4,298
P

=
P794

4,581,544,408
3,421,410

4,581,544,408
3,421,410

4,581,544,408
3,421,410

4,584,965,818

4,584,965,818

4,584,965,818

–

2007

Per Share Amounts
Basic
Income attributable to equity holders
of parent (c/e)
Income from continuing operations attributable
to equity holders of the parent (a/e)
Income from discontinued operations attributable
to equity holders of the parent (b/e)

2006
(As restated see Note 4)

2006
(As restated see Note 4)

(In Millions)

2005
(As restated see Note 4)

P
=1.171

=0.9379
P

=
P0.1731

1.171

0.9379

0.0773

–

–

0.0958

P
=1.170

=0.9374
P

=
P0.1731

There have been no other transactions involving shares or potential shares between the reporting
date and the date of completion of these financial statements.
The effect of the conversion of the Perpetual Convertible Bonds is anti-dilutive for the year ended
December 31, 2005. Accordingly, diluted EPS is the same as basic EPS.
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Parent Company
a. Guarantee on the convertible preferred shares issued by Bayantel
The Parent Company acts as a surety to guarantee the payment of principal and interest of the
convertible preferred shares issued by Bayantel with a redemption value of US$167 million
(US$160.7 million as of commencement date of BSMP).
b. The Parent Company and Lopez have entered into a Shareholders’ Agreement (SA) with
certain shareholders (option holders) of Bayantel where the shareholders have the option to
require the Parent Company and Lopez to purchase shares of Bayantel (option shares) from
them under certain conditions. The options can be exercised upon the occurrence of certain
events specified in the SA or in 2002, whichever comes first. The purchase price of the option
share shall be the greater of the aggregate cost price in US dollars of the relevant option shares
paid by the shareholders thereof amounting to an initial investment of approximately US$20
million plus interest at the US Prime Rate compounded annually from the date of the relevant
purchase to the date of the exercise of the option or the fair market value of the option share.
The Parent Company has provided the following amounts for certain Bayantel options due on
October 24, 2002 before payments made on December 2, 2002:
1) Amount owed to Chase Manhattan Bank (Chase) - US$6.35 million as of commencement
date of BSMP; and
2) Amount owed to Asian Infrastructure Fund (AIF) - US$43.03 million as of
commencement date of BSMP.
Both Chase and AIF have indicated the value of the option shares to be higher.
On November 29, 2007, the Parent Company and Lopez settled the US$43 million owed to
AIF. The debt was settled for US$32 million with the Parent Company paying US$26 million
and Lopez paying US$6 million (see Note 17).
ABS-CBN
c. Deal Memorandum with DirecTV
On June 1, 2005, ABS-CBN and ABS-CBN International entered into a 25-year Deal
Memorandum (Memorandum) with DirecTV in which ABS-CBN granted DirecTV the
exclusive right via satellite, internet protocol technology and satellite master antenna
television system or similar system, to display, exhibit, perform and distribute certain
programs of ABS-CBN that are listed in the Memorandum. ABS-CBN International may
engage in any marketing plan mutually agreed by both parties and DirecTV. All costs under
any mutually agreed marketing plans shall be shared equally between DirecTV and ABS-CBN
International.
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As provided in the Memorandum, all rights, title and interest in and to the content, discrete
programs or channels not granted to DirecTV are expressly reserved by ABS-CBN. All
programming decisions with respect to the programs shall be in ABS-CBN’s commercially
reasonable discretion, including the substitution or withdrawal of any scheduled programs,
provided that ABS-CBN agrees that the programs will consist substantially the same content
and genre provided for in the Memorandum.
The Memorandum also provides for the following license fees to be paid by DirecTV to
ABS-CBN:
i. A license fee for each existing DTH subscriber of ABS-CBN International or a new

subscriber who becomes an activated subscriber during the migration period (from
June 2005 to February 2006); and

ii. An additional license fee for each activated subscriber who becomes an activated

subscriber during the migration period that remains a subscriber for 14 consecutive
months.

The Memorandum also provides that subscription revenues, computed as the current and stand
alone retail price per month for a subscription to the TFC channel multiplied by the average
number of subscribers, shall be divided equally between DirecTV and ABS-CBN
International.
Starting July 2005, existing DTH subscribers of ABS-CBN International have been migrating
to DirecTV. License fee earned from DirecTV amounted to P
=548 million in 2007
(representing additional license fee for each subscriber who became activated during the
migration period and remained a subscriber for fourteen months), P
=1,117 million in 2006 and
=1,619 million in 2005. ABS-CBN International’s share in the subscription revenues earned
P
from subscribers that have migrated to DirecTV amounted to P
=772 million in 2007,
=616 million in 2006 and P
P
=93 million in 2005.
On January 17, 2006, ABS-CBN and DirecTV agreed to amend the Memorandum entered in
June 1, 2005 that includes among others the extension of the migration period from
February 2006 to August 2006.
d. Operating lease commitments - Company as Lessee
ABS-CBN leases office facilities, space and satellite equipment. Future minimum rentals
payable under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows as of December 31:
2007
Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
After five years
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P
=192
851
198
P
=1,241

2006
(In Millions)

=306
P
932
456
=1,694
P

- 105 e. Operating lease commitments - Company as Lessor
ABS-CBN has entered into commercial property leases on its building, consisting of the
ABS-CBN’s surplus office buildings. These non-cancelable leases have remaining
non-cancelable lease terms of between 3 to 5 years. All leases include a clause to enable
upward revision of the rental charge on a predetermined rate.
Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows
as of December 31:
2007
Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
f.

2006
(In Millions)

=150
P
187
=337
P

P
=26
83
P
=109

Obligations Under Capital Lease
ABS-CBN has finance leases over various items of equipment. Future minimum lease
payments under finance leases and hire purchase contracts together with the present value of
the net minimum lease payments are as follows:
2007
Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
Total minimum lease payments
Less amounts representing finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments
Less current portion

P
=214
271
485
64
421
178
P
=243

(In Millions)

2006
=137
P
207
344
51
293
108
=185
P

FPHC Group
g. Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs)
FGP and FGPC
FGP and FGPC each have an existing PPA with Meralco, the largest power distribution
company operating in the island of Luzon and in the Philippines and the sole customer of both
projects. Under the PPA, MERALCO will purchase in each contract year from the start of
commercial operations, a minimum number of kilowatt-hours of the net electrical output of
FGP and FGPC for a period of 25 years. Billings to MERALCO under the PPA are
substantially in U.S. Dollars and a small portion is billed in Philippine Pesos.
On January 7, 2004, MERALCO, FGP and FGPC signed the Amendment to their respective
PPAs. The negotiations resulted in a package of concessions including the assumption of FGP
and FGPC of community taxes at current tax rate, while conditional concessions include
increasing the discounts on excess generation, payment of higher penalties for non-
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performance up to a capped amount, recovery of accumulated deemed delivered energy until
2011 resulting in the non-charging of MERALCO of excess generation charge for such energy
delivered beyond the contracted amount but within a 90% capacity quota. The amended terms
under the respective PPAs of FGP and FGPC was approved by the Energy Regulatory
Commission (ERC) on May 31, 2006.
Under the respective PPAs of FGP and FGPC, the fixed capacity fees and fixed operating and
maintenance fees are recognized monthly based on the actual Net Dependable Capacity
(NDC) tested and proven, which is usually conducted on a semi-annual basis. Total fixed
capacity fees and fixed operating and maintenance fees amounted to $276.6 million in 2007,
$268.2 million in 2006 and $267.5 million in 2005.
FG Bukidnon
On January 9, 2008, FG Bukidnon and Cagayan Electric Power and Light Co., Inc.
(CEPALCO), an electric distribution utility operating in the City of Cagayan de Oro, signed a
Power Supply Agreement (PSA) for the FG Bukidnon plant. Under the PSA, FG Bukidnon
shall generate and deliver to CEPALCO and CEPALCO shall take, or pay for if not taken, the
Available Energy for a period commencing on the commercial operations date until March 28,
2025. The terms and conditions of the PSA are still subject to the review by the ERC and the
effectivity and commercial operations date of the PSA will coincide with the date of ERC
approval of the agreement. The sale to CEPALCO of the plant’s output since March 29, 2005
has been governed by a MOA signed by both parties in 2005.
FG Hydro
FG Hydro has existing contracts, which were transferred by NPC to FG Hydro as part of the
acquisition of PAHEP/MAHEP for the supply of electric energy with several customers within
the vicinity of Nueva Ecija. FG Hydro shall generate and deliver to these customers the
contracted energy on a monthly basis. FG Hydro is bound to service these customers of the
remainder of the stipulated terms, the range of which falls between June 2007 and 2010.
These contracts may be renewable upon renegotiation with the customers and due process as
stipulated by the ERC. With the expiration on December 25, 2007 of the existing contract
with the Nueva Ecija 1 Electric Cooperative, Inc. (NEECO1), a new contract was signed by
FG Hydro and NEECO1 in December 2007 for the supply of power for the next five (5) years.
The contract with Cabanatuan Electric Corporation, which expired on June 25, 2007, was not
renewed.
EDC
The electricity produced by the operating plants of EDC is sold to NPC, pursuant to the
following PPAs:
�

Leyte-Cebu, Leyte-Luzon
The PPA provides, among others, that NPC shall pay EDC a base price per kWh of
electricity delivered subject to inflation adjustments. The PPA stipulates a contracted
annual energy of 1,370 GWH for Leyte-Cebu and 3,000 GWH for Leyte-Luzon
throughout the cooperation period. It also stipulates a nominated energy of not lower than
90% of the contracted annual energy.
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- 107 On November 12, 1999, NPC agreed to accept from PNOC EDC a combined average
annual nominated energy of 4,455 GWH for the period July 25, 1999 to July 25, 2000 for
both Leyte-Cebu and Leyte-Luzon PPA. However, the combined annual nominated
energy starting July 25, 2000 is currently under negotiation with NPC. The contracts are
for a period of twenty-five (25) years commencing in July 1996 for Leyte-Cebu and July
1997 for Leyte-Luzon.
�

47 MW Mindanao I
The PPA provides, among others, that NPC shall pay EDC a base price per kWh of
electricity delivered subject to inflation adjustments. The PPA stipulates a minimum
offtake energy of 330 GWH for the first year and 390 GWH per year for the succeeding
years. The contract is for a period of twenty-five (25) years which commenced in March
1997.

�

48.25 MW Mindanao II
The PPA provides, among others, that NPC shall pay EDC a base price per kWh of
electricity delivered subject to inflation adjustments. The PPA stipulates a minimum
offtake energy of 398 GWH per year. The contract is for a period of twenty-five (25)
years which commenced in June 1999.

h. Stored Energy Commitment of EDC
On various dates, EDC entered into Addendum Agreements to the PPA for the Unified Leyte
and BacMan 2 projects where it agreed to credit such payments made by NPC under the
minimum take-or pay arrangements for periods with undelivered electricity against stored
energy, reporting the contracted energy that NPC was not able to take. Deliveries of the stored
energy are to be taken from delivery above the nominated energy for the agreed lifting period.
As of December 31, 2007, the commitment for stored energy follows (in gigawatt-hours):
Unified Leyte
BacMan 2 - Cawayan
i.

4,326.6
306.1

Geothermal Service Contracts of PNOC-EDC
EDC entered into seven (7) service contracts with the DOE granting PNOC-EDC the right to
explore, develop, and utilize the country’s geothermal resource subject to sharing of net
proceeds with the government. The net proceeds is what remains after deducting from the
gross proceeds the allowable recoverable costs, which include development, production and
operating costs.
The allowable recoverable costs shall not exceed 90% of the gross proceeds. PNOC-EDC
pays 60% of the net proceeds as government share and retains the remaining 40%.
The 60% government share is comprised of royalty fees and income taxes. The royalty fees
are shared by the government through DOE (60%) and the LGU (40%).
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PNOC-EDC secured an approval from the DOE to defer remittance of the royalty portion of
the government share at P
=180 million per year. A portion of said payment was applied to the
amortization of the deferred royalty fees as of December 31, 1998, and the balance to 1999
and future obligations. On March 23, 2004, EDC and DOE agreed to increase the royalty
payment plan to P
=200 million per year starting 2004. A portion of the revised payment shall
be applied to the amortization of the deferred royalty fees as of December 31, 2003 and the
balance to 2004 and future obligations for existing EDC operating projects. However,
remittances to the LGU of their share in royalty fees are made as they fall due pursuant to the
Local Government Code.
The DOE approved the application of EDC for the 20-year extension of the Tongonan,
Palinpinon and Bacon-Manito (BacMan) Geothermal Service Contracts (GSCs). The
extension is embodied in the fourth amendment to the GSCs dated October 30, 2003. The
amendment extended the Tongonan GSC from May 15, 2011 to May 16, 2031, while the
Palinpinon and Bacon-Manito GSCs are extended from October 16, 2011 to October 17, 2031.
j.

Geothermal Resources Sales Contracts of EDC
The geothermal energy currently produced by EDC’s geothermal projects is supplied to its
BOT contractors and the power plants owned and operated by NPC pursuant to the following
steam sales contracts:
�

Tongonan I
Under the steam sales contract entered in June 1984 for Tongonan I, NPC agrees to pay
EDC a base price per kWh of net generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on
a guaranteed take-or-pay rate at 75% plant factor for a period of twenty-five (25) years.

�

Palinpinon I
The steam sales contract for Palinpinon I provides, among others, that NPC shall pay EDC
a base price per kWh of gross generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on a
guaranteed take-or-pay rate at 75% plant factor. The contract is for a period of twenty
years (20) which commenced on December 25, 1988.

�

Palinpinon II
In June 1996, EDC and NPC signed a steam sales contract for Palinpinon II’s four (4)
modular plants - Nasuji, Okoy, Sogongon I and Sogongon II. Under the terms and
conditions, NPC agrees to pay EDC a base price per kWh of gross generation, subject to
inflation adjustments and based on a guaranteed TOP rate commencing from the
established commercial operation period, using the following plant factors: 50% for the 1st
year, 65% for the 2nd year and 75% for the 3rd and subsequent years. The contract is for a
period of 25 years for each module commencing on December 13, 1993 for Nasuji;
November 28, 1994 for Okoy; January 28, 1995 for Sogongon I and March 23, 1995 for
Sogongon II.
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BacMan I
The steam sales contract for the BacMan geothermal resources entered in November 1988
provides, among others, that NPC shall pay EDC a base price per kWh of gross
generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on a guaranteed TOP rate at 75%
plant factor. The contract is for a period of 25 years commencing in May 1993.

�

BacMan II
BacMan II’s steam sales contract with NPC was signed in June 1996 for its two 20-MW
capacity modular plants - Cawayan and Botong. The terms and conditions under the
contract contain, among others, NPC’s commitment to pay EDC a base price per kWh of
gross generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on a guaranteed TOP rate,
commencing from the established commercial operation period, using the following plant
factors: 50% for the 1st year, 65% for the 2nd year and 75% for the 3rd and subsequent
years. The contract is also for a period of 25 years commencing in March 1994 for
Cawayan and December 1997 for Botong.

k. Build-Operate-Transfer (BOT) Agreements
BPPC
BPPC has an existing Fast Track Build, Operate and Transfer Project Agreement (Project
Agreement) with NPC. Under the Project Agreement, NPC supplies all the fuel required to
generate electricity, with all electricity generated purchased by NPC. BPPC is entitled to
payment of fixed capacity and operations and maintenance fees based on the nominated
capacity as well as energy fees from the delivery of electric power to NPC. The Project
Agreement is for a period of 15 years which runs up to July 2010 (Compensation period).
Upon expiration of the 15-year period, BPPC shall transfer to NPC all of its rights, titles and
interests in the power plant complex, free from liens created by BPPC and without any
compensation.
In line with the EPIRA-mandated IPP contracts review, PSALM, NPC and BPPC executed
and signed in 2005 a General Framework Agreement (GFA) that embodied the renegotiated
terms and conditions of the BOT Agreement. The GFA caps at 215MW the Bauang plant’s
nominated capacity and obligates BPPC to make the P
=0.01/kwh contribution to an
environment fund from the effective date of the GFA up to the end of Cooperation Period.
Conversely, this paves way for allowing the heat run of the Bauang plant at 8.5 MW for
1 hour daily, except on weekends and holidays, during extended economic shutdown and the
carry-over of 50% of the plant’s unutilized downtime allowance up to 3 years. The GFA
likewise permits the pursuit of bilateral contracts for ancillary services and the excess 10MW
capacity with National Transmission Corporation (TransCo) and power purchasers,
respectively, under an income sharing arrangement subject to certain limitations and
restrictions. The National Economic Development Authority (NEDA) approved the GFA on
July 11, 2007.
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PNOC-EDC
Pursuant to RA No. 7718 dated May 5, 1994 (Amended BOT Law), PNOC-EDC entered into
Energy Conversion Agreements (ECA) with various international geothermal power producers
for the construction and operation of power plants in Leyte and Mindanao to convert the
geothermal steam to be supplied by PNOC-EDC to electricity. Under these contracts, the BOT
Contractor shall deliver electricity to NPC on behalf of PNOC-EDC.
Leyte
Under the ECA with the BOT Contractors, namely: California Energy for a) 125 MW Power
Plant - Upper Mahiao Agreement; b) 231 MW Power Plant - Malitbog Agreement; and c)
180 MW Power Plant - Mahanagdong Agreement and with Ormat Inc. for the Leyte
Optimization Project BOT Agreement, EDC shall pay the BOT Contractors monthly energy
fees to be computed based on actual energy delivered and capacity fees, which include capital
and fixed operating cost recovery fees and service fees, to be computed on a per kilowatt
nominated capacity basis.
Except for the capital cost recovery portions, the fees are subject to inflation adjustments. The
contracts are for a period of ten years commencing July 1996 for the Upper Mahiao
Agreement, July 1997 for the Malitbog and Mahanagdong Agreements and September 1997
for the Optimization Agreement. The ownership of the Upper Mahiao Power Plant was
transferred to EDC on June 25, 2006; Malitbog and Mahanagdong Power Plants were
transferred on July 25, 2007; and the Optimization Power Plant on September 25, 2007.
Mindanao
Under the terms and conditions of the ECA with Oxbow Power Corporation and Marubeni
Corporation, EDC shall pay the BOT Contractor monthly energy efficiency fees and capacity
fees, which include capital and fixed operating cost recovery fees and service fees, to be
computed on a per kW nominated capacity basis and excess energy fees which are payment
for the share of BOT Contractor for the revenues from surplus energy generation on top of the
nominated energy. Except for energy efficiency payments and capital cost recovery portion of
capacity fees, the fees are subject to inflation adjustments. The contract is for a period of ten
(10) years commencing in March 1997 for Mindanao I (47 MW) and June 1999 for Mindanao
II (48.25 MW). An amendment to the Mindanao I ECA was signed on November 17, 2006
extending the contract period to June 2009 with the corresponding restructuring of BOT fees.
The fair value of these BOT contracts are included as part of the fair value of the construction
services accounted for under Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12 (see Note 4)
l.

Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) Contract
FGPC entered into a Turnkey EPC Contract (EPC Contract) with Siemens AG, Siemens
Power Generation and Siemens, Inc. (collectively, “Siemens”) for the construction of the
1,000 MW Combined Cycle Power Plant (the “Santa Rita Power Plant” or “Project”).
A dispute has arisen between FGPC and Siemens in connection with its construction of
FGPC’s power plant in accordance with the EPC Contract with Siemens for the construction
of the Santa Rita power plant. The dispute stemmed from the delays incurred by Siemens and
its subcontractors in the timely completion of the Project.
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- 111 In December 2002, Siemens submitted a request for arbitration to the ICC in London against
FGPC. After several hearings, the Arbitral Tribunal ruled in November 2005 that FGPC was
entitled to US$94.2 million that it had previously withheld from Siemens in connection with
delays to the completion of the Santa Rita power plant. The withheld amount, net of
applicable taxes was recorded as a reduction in the cost of the power plant in 2005. With
respect to Siemens’ monetary claims against FGPC and FGPC’s counterclaims against
Siemens, the Arbitral Tribunal ruled in April 2006 the following: (i) FGPC was entitled to an
US$11.2 million award (inclusive of the US$5.1 million already recognized as other income in
2005) for its remaining counterclaims against Siemens and (ii) Siemens was entitled to
approximately US$8.5 million for its remaining claims against FGPC.
Following the ruling of the Arbitral Tribunal in April 2006, FGPC and Siemens entered into a
Settlement Agreement on October 2, 2006 to conclude the arbitration and to settle all
outstanding matters between them. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, Siemens agreed to
make an additional net payment to FGPC of US$10.5 million (inclusive of the US$5.1 million
that was initially recognized as other income in 2005 and the US$1.5 million outstanding
receivables of FGPC from Siemens).
On October 16, 2006, FGPC received the net payment from Siemens of US$10.5 million. The
net balance of US$3.9 million was recognized as part of “Other income (charges)” account in
the consolidated statement of income in 2006.
On December 12, 2006, the Arbitral Tribunal issued its Final Award, which is final and
binding, incorporating all previous awards and the agreement of the parties to settle all
outstanding matters between them. The issuance of the Final Award finally resolved all
outstanding matters in the arbitration, and formally concluded the dispute between FGPC and
Siemens.
m. Obligation to Gas Sellers on Annual Deficiencies
The details of obligations to Gas Sellers on Annual Deficiencies recognized pursuant to the
SAs and the PDAs, including accrued interest, are as follows:

FGP:
Balance at beginning of year
Principal payments
Interest payments
Alleged annual deficiency
for the year
Interest
Application of excess gas
consumed in 2005
Foreign exchange
(Total Carried Forward)

2007
In Philippine
Peso
P
=1,128
(369)
(46)

In US
Dollar
$23
(8)
(1)

2006
In Philippine
Peso
=1,911
P
(513)
(308)

In US
Dollar
$36
(10)
(6)

–
46

–
1

205
103

4
2

–
(138)
621

–
–
15

(154)
(116)
1,128

(3)
–
23
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(Total Brought Forward)
FGPC:
Balance at beginning of year
Principal payments
Interest payments
Alleged annual deficiency
for the year
Interest
Application of excess gas
consumed in 2005
Foreign exchange
Total
Less current portion

2007
In Philippine
Peso
P
=621

In US
Dollar
$15

3,484
(924)
(231)

71
(20)
(5)

–
231

–
5

–
(434)
2,126
2,747
2,053
P
=694

–
–
51
66
40
$26

2006
In Philippine
Peso
=1,128
P
6,849
(2,053)
(1,078)
205
411
(462)
(388)
3,484
4,612
1,823
=2,789
P

In US
Dollar
$23
129
(40)
(21)
4
8
–
(9)
71
94
28
$66

FGP and FGPC each executed on March 22, 2006 their respective Settlement Agreements
(SA) and Payment Deferral Agreements (PDA) with the Gas Sellers to amicably settle their
long-standing disputes under the GSPA for Contract Years 2002 to 2004. The disputes related
to the Gas Sellers’ claim for Annual Deficiency payments totaling P
=2,816 million
(US$68.0 million) and P
=6,767 million (US$163.4 million) from FGP and FGPC, respectively,
covering the unconsumed gas volumes during these Contract Years.
Under the terms of their respective SAs and the PDAs, the Gas Sellers’ claims from FGP and
FGPC have been reduced to P
=1,354 million (US$32.7 million) and P
=4,775 million
(US$115.3 million), respectively. Mandatory prepayments of P
=85 million (US$2.05 million)
and P
=3,320 million (US $7.98 million) and pre-settlement interest of P
=118 million
(US$2.86 million) and P
=453 million (US$10.95 million) for FGP and FGPC, respectively,
were paid on June 7, 2006. Additional reductions of Annual Deficiency amounting to
=159 million (US$3.8 million) for FGP and =
P
P393 million (US$9.5 million) for FGPC were
recognized in 2006 to credit FGP and FGPC for gas consumption in excess of their respective
TOPQ’s for 2005.
The remaining liabilities will be paid through quarterly principal payments until December 26,
2009 with interest at LIBOR plus margin. The respective SAs and PDAs allow FGP and
FGPC to prepay all or part of the outstanding balances and to “make up” the volume of gas up
to the extent of the principal repayments made under the PDA for a longer period of time
instead of the ten-Contract Year recovery period allowed under their respective GSPAs. On
May 31, 2006, all the conditions precedent set out in the respective SAs and PDAs of FGP and
FGPC were completely satisfied. Such conditions precedent included an acknowledgment and
consent by MERALCO.
Under the terms of the PPA with Meralco, all fuel and fuel related payments are pass-through.
The payment obligations of FGP and FGPC under their respective SAs, the PDAs and the
GSPAs are passed on to MERALCO on a “back-to-back” and full pass-through basis.
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- 113 Upon payment of the principal amount, a corresponding prepaid gas is recognized to cover the
principal portion paid to the Gas Sellers. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the remaining
prepaid gas arising from the SAs and PDAs and the corresponding unearned revenue
amounted to P
=2,563 million (US$61.9 million) and =
P2,075 million (US$50.1 million),
respectively. The December 31, 2007 prepaid gas balance is net of the recoveries of Annual
Deficiencies recognized by the Gas Sellers for gas consumed above the TOPQ, as calculated
by the Gas Sellers, for the current contract year which totaled to P
=658 million
(US$15.9 million).
For Contract Year 2006, the Gas Sellers issued the Annual Reconciliation Statements (ARS)
of FGP and FGPC on December 29, 2006. The Gas Sellers are claiming Annual Deficiency
payments for Contract Year 2006 amounting to P
=162 million (US$3.9 million) for FGP and
=224 million (US$5.4 million) for FGPC. Both FGP and FGPC disagree that such Annual
P
Deficiency payments are due and each claimed relief for, among others, force majeure events
arising from governmental actions beyond its control as well as circumstances which affected
the Transmission Facilities or the Transmission Company’s ability to accept or transmit
electric energy generated by the power plant. FGP’s and FGPC’s position is that the power
plants actually consumed more than their respective TOPQs and are entitled to make-up its
Outstanding Balance of Annual Deficiencies. The matter is now in arbitration under the
International Chamber of Commerce (ICC) Rules of Arbitration pursuant to the terms of the
GSPA.
n. Gas Sale and Purchase Agreements (GSPA)
FGP and FGPC each have an existing GSPA with the consortium of Shell Philippine
Exploration B.V., Shell Philippines LLC, Chevron Malampaya, LLC and PNOC Exploration
Corporation (collectively referred to as Gas Sellers), for the supply of natural gas in
connection with the operations of the power plants. The GSPA, now on its sixth Contract
Year, is for a total period of approximately 22 years.
Total cost of natural gas purchased amounted to P
=7,297 million (US$176.2 million) in 2007,
=8,146 million (US$196.7 million) in 2006 and =
P
P7,007 million (US$169.2 million) in 2005
for FGP and =
P18,411 million (US$444.6 million) in 2007, =
P16,448 million
(US$397.2 million) in 2006 and P
=13,773 million ($332.6 million) in 2005 for FGPC.
Under the GSPA, FGP and FGPC are obligated to consume (or pay for, if not consumed) a
minimum quantity of gas for each Contract Year (which runs from December 26 of a
particular year up to December 25 of the immediately succeeding year), called the Take-OrPay Quantity (TOPQ). Thus, if the TOPQ is not consumed within a particular Contract Year,
FGP incurs an “Annual Deficiency” for that Contract Year equivalent to the total volume of
unused gas (i.e., the TOPQ less the actual quantity of gas consumed). FGP and FGPC are
required to make payments to the Gas Sellers for such Annual Deficiency after the end of the
Contract Year. After paying for Annual Deficiency gas, FGP and FGPC can, subject to the
terms of the GSPA, “make-up” such Annual Deficiencies by consuming the unused-but-paidfor gas (without further charge) within ten-Contract Year after the Contract Year for which the
Annual Deficiency was incurred, in the order that it arose.
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FGP paid certain fees to the Gas Sellers, in lieu of incurring certain Annual Deficiency
payment obligations for the first Contract Year (2002) as a result of the failure to commence
commercial operations of the power plant at the Start Date (July 2, 2002) in accordance with
the GSPA. These fees amounted to P
=406 million (US$9.8 million) and have been booked as
prepaid gas, net of adjustment, in the same manner as if the fees were paid for Annual
Deficiency incurred in Contract Year 2002.
o. Lubricating Oil Supply Agreement
BPPC entered into a supply contract with Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation, whereby the
latter will supply lubricating oil for a period of 15 years until 2010 at the agreed price
indicated in the contract. The price is subject to adjustments twice a year based on various
conditions, such as changes in the cost or rates of the product, among others.
p. Operating and Maintenance (O&M) Agreements
FGP and FGPC have separate O&M Agreements with Siemens Power Operations, Inc. (SPO)
mainly for the operation, maintenance, management and repair services of their respective
power plants. As stated in the respective O&M Agreements of FGP and FGPC, SPO is
responsible for maintaining adequate inventory of spare parts, accessories and consumables.
SPO is also responsible for replacing and repairing the necessary parts and equipment of the
power plants to ensure the proper operation and maintenance of the power plants to meet the
contractual commitments of FGP and FGPC under their respective PPAs and in accordance
with the Good Utility Practice.
Based on the current operating regime of both plants, it is estimated that the Santa Rita and
San Lorenzo O&M Agreements will expire in 2010. FGP and FGPC are currently considering
the options for the Plants’ operation and maintenance after 2010.
q. Substation Interconnection Agreement
FGPC has an agreement with Meralco and NPC for: (a) the construction of substation
upgrades at the NPC substation in Calaca and the donation of such substation upgrades to
NPC; (b) the construction of a 35-kilometer transmission line from the power plant to the NPC
substation in Calaca and subsequent donation of such transmission line to NPC; (c) the
interconnection of the power plant to the NPC Grid System; and (d) the receipt and delivery of
energy and capacity from the power plant to Meralco’s point of receipt.
As of December 31, 2007, FGPC is still in the process of transferring the substation upgrades
in Calaca, as well as the 230 KV Santa Rita to Calaca transmission line, to NPC.
r.

Interim Interconnection Agreement
FGP has an agreement with NPC and Meralco whereby NPC will be responsible for the
delivery and transmission of all energy and capacity from FGP’s power plant to Meralco’s
point of receipt.
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FPHC, through FGHC, has a franchise granted by the 11th Congress of the Philippines
through Republic Act (RA) No. 8997 to construct, install, own, operate and maintain a natural
gas pipeline system for the transportation and distribution of the natural gas throughout the
island of Luzon (the “Franchise”). The Franchise is for a term of 25 years until February 25,
2026. FGHC must commence the exercise of any privileges granted under the Franchise
within five years (until February 25, 2006) from its effectivity, otherwise, the Franchise shall
be deemed revoked. As of January 31, 2008, FGHC, among others, has secured an ECC on
May 16, 2005 and has undertaken substantial pre-engineering works and design and
commenced preparatory works for the right-of-way acquisition activities.
t.

Lease Commitments
FGPC has a noncancelable annual offshore lease agreement with the DENR for the lease of a
parcel of land in Sta. Rita, Batangas where the power plant complex is located. The term of
the lease is for a period of 25 years starting May 26, 1999 for a yearly rental of P
=3 million
(US$0.05 million) and renewable for another 25 years at the end of the term. The land will be
appraised every ten years and the annual rental after every appraisal shall not be less than 3%
of the appraised value of the land plus 1% of the value of the improvements, provided that
such annual rental cannot be less than P
=3 million (US$0.05 million).
FG Bukidnon has a noncancelable lease agreement with PSALM on the land occupied by its
power plant. The term of the lease is for a period of 20 years commencing on March 29,
2005, renewable for another period of 10 years or the remaining corporate life of PSALM,
whichever is shorter. The rental paid in advance by the Company for the entire term is
=1.12 million (US$0.02 million).
P
Future minimum rental payments under the noncancelable operating leases with INAEC and
the DENR are as follows:
Amount

(In Millions)

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
After five years

$298
266
734
$1,298
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FPIDC Group
u. North Luzon Tollway Project (the NLE Tollway Project) Agreements
i)

Joint Venture Agreement (JVA)
MNTC was established in accordance with a JVA between FPIDC and PNCC for the sole
purpose of implementing the Project. PNCC, as the franchise holder for the construction,
operation and maintenance of toll facilities in the North and South Luzon Tollways and
the Metro Manila Expressway, has assigned its rights, interests and privileges under its
franchise to construct, operate and maintain toll facilities in the NLE in favor of MNTC.
FPIDC, in turn, assigned to MNTC all of its rights, interests and privileges to the ManilaSubic Expressway Project which became a part of the North Luzon Tollway Project.
The North Luzon Tollway Project is divided into three phases, as described below.
Phase I

Rehabilitation and expansion of approximately 84 kilometers (km) of the
existing NLE and an 8.8-km stretch of a greenfield expressway

Phase II

Construction of the northern parts of the 17-km circumferential road C-5
which connects the current C-5 expressway to the NLE

Phase III

Construction of the 57-km Subic arm of the NLE to SBMA and the
5.85-km road from McArthur to Letre

The construction of Phase I of the Project started on February 11, 2003. On January 26,
2005, the Certificate of Substantial Completion (CSC) of Phase I was issued by the
Independent Certification Engineer of the Project. On January 27, 2005, the Toll
Regulatory Board issued the Toll Operation Permit (TOP) for the operation and
maintenance of Phase I consisting of Segments 1, 2, 3 and 7 in favor of MNTC. The CSC
and TOP became effective on February 8, 2005 upon MNTC’s compliance with the
specified conditions. MNTC took over the NLE from PNCC and commenced commercial
operations on February 10, 2005.
ii) Shareholders’ Agreements
On December 16, 1999, FPIDC, PNCC and Egis Projects, S.A (EGIS) (collectively
referred to as the “Principal Shareholders of MNTC”) entered into a Shareholders’
Agreement (SA) to govern their rights and duties as shareholders of MNTC as well as the
management, financing, and operations of FPIDC. The SA was amended on
December 13, 2001 extending the term of the original SA.
On January 14, 2003, the Principal Shareholders of MNTC and Leighton Asia Limited
(LAL) entered into a Shareholder Loan Agreement (SLA) to reflect the entry of LAL as a
new shareholder through the acquisition of 10% interest in MNTC from FPIDC and a
further 6.5% interest through additional equity infusion. The SLA amended the equity
sharing of the shareholders under the SA to: FPIDC - 67.1%; LAL - 16.5%; EGIS 13.9%; and PNCC - 2.5%. The transfer of the 10% interest in MNTC from FPIDC to
LAL was finalized on February 3, 2003.
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- 117 On September 30, 2004, the Principal Shareholders of MNTC and LAL amended and
restated the SA dated December 31, 2001. The following important provisions of SA
(as amended and restated) in addition to the provisions noted in the amended SA as
follows:
a. FPIDC and LAL acknowledged that the 10% shares of LAL were transferred by
FPIDC to LAL in consideration of: (i) LAL’s agreement to, prior to the crossover date
(date which the equity funding is equivalent to US$125.5 million), make the
FPIDC/LAL Proxy Shareholder Contribution in behalf of FPIDC under the
Shareholder Contribution Agreement amounting to =
P352.38 million or approximately
US$7 million; and (ii) LAL’s agreement to pay FPIDC under section 8.04.02 of the
revised and amended SA should LAL decide to sell at least 10% of FPIDC’s total
issued capital stock.
b. The final equity participation described in the amended SA dated December 31, 2001
was revised as follows: FPIDC - 67.1%; LAL - 16.5%; EGIS - 13.9%; and PNCC 2.5%, which agreed with the SLA entered on January 14, 2003.
c. The guarantee fee, calculated at 2.5% per annum fee and being billed by FPIDC and
EGIS, shall be payable within 60 days from receipt of invoice.
iii) Tollways Management Corporation (TMC)
TMC is the operator of Phase I of the North Luzon Tollway Project of MNTC under an
Operations and Maintenance Agreement (O&M Agreement) with MNTC. On
February 10, 2005, pursuant to the O&M Agreement, TMC took over the operations and
maintenance of Phase I of the NLE, including Segment 7 from FPIDC.
v. In connection with the financing closing of MNTC, FPIDC has entered into the following
major agreements on July 7, 2001:
i) Shareholder Contribution Agreement with the other shareholders of MNTC, the Parent
Company, Lopez, Transroute International S.A. (TISA), the security trustee, the cosecurity trustee, inter-creditor agent and MNTC which provides, among others, for the
Principal Shareholders to make additional equity contributions to MNTC in order to meet
the required debt-to-base equity ratio prior to the proposed drawdown date.
The CTA and related agreements were amended on January 30, 2003 to reflect certain
changes in the deal, mainly: (a) the replacement of BHC with FPHC, and the removal of
Lopez, Inc. in the Financing Agreements; (b) the entry of Leighton Asia Limited (LAL) as
a new shareholder and the revised shareholders structure; and (c) credit enhancement of
FPHC guarantee under the SSA through the provision of FPIDC of a sponsor support
letter of credit equivalent to US$21.1 million (reduced to US$2.8 million in 2005).
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ii) Sponsor Support Agreement (SSA) with EGIS, the security trustee, the co-security trustee,
inter-creditor agent and MNTC, which provides, among others, for FPIDC and EGIS to
provide certain support to MNTC up to a maximum of US$25.0 million. The SSA
provides for certain restrictions with respect to, among others, waiver, modification,
amendment or assignment of the key project agreements, merge or amalgamate or be
consolidated with any other person or entity and enter into any arrangement or
commitment on terms less favorable to MNTC than arm’s length open market terms
unless otherwise approved by the lenders. The Parent Company has guaranteed the
obligations of FPIDC as MNTC sponsor under the SSA.
On December 28, 2005, the lenders of MNTC, through the inter-creditor agent, confirmed
that the conditions to the reduction of the sponsor support commitment have been met.
This allowed the reduction of the US$25.0 million commitment to US$3 million,
computed based on the sum of the post-material completion (MC) works reserve amount
and the estimated right-of-way dispossession exposure. Of this total, FPIDC provided
security for US$2.85 million in the form of an irrevocable standby letter of credit while
EGIS provided security for the balance of US$0.47 million in the form of a corporate
guarantee. The remaining commitment is subject to further reduction on a quarterly basis
depending on the accomplishment of post-MC works.
w. Transactions with Subsidiaries and Associates
� FPIDC provided interest-bearing advances to MNTC. The advances were covered by
Shareholder Loan Agreements amounting to US$6.9 million. The advances are payable
90 days after First Repayment Date, in accordance with the Trust and Retention Agreement
or on March 15, 2005 subject to availability of cash in the Restricted Payment Account and
the provision of the amended and restated SA. Interest on the advances are computed at
LIBOR plus a 4% spread.
� FPIDC has an Operation and Maintenance Agreement (S7 O&M) with MNTC whereby
MNTC appointed FPIDC as the operator of the Segment 7 of the NLE Project. Segment 7
(also known as the SBMA-Tipo Road) connects Tipo in Hermosa, Bataan to Subic. Under
the S7 O&M, FPIDC shall operate and maintain Segment 7 under the terms and conditions
of the Supplemental Toll Operations Agreement until the commencement of commercial
operation of Phase 1 of the NLE. FPIDC retains all toll derived from the operation of
Segment 7 as a tolled motorway, including any and all incidental revenues as may be
derived in relation to its operation of Segment 7.
� TMC took over the operations and maintenance of the Phase 1 of NLE, including
Segment 7, on February 10, 2005.
x. Transactions with Affiliates
Two separate agreements on the shareholders’ corporate guarantee (collectively, “Corporate
Guarantees”) were executed by FPIDC and TISA (collectively known as “Guarantors”) with
MNTC, whereby each has guaranteed the liability of TMC under the O&M Agreement in the
following percentages: TISA - 34% and FPIDC - 66%. On August 29, 2003, TMC and the
Guarantors, entered into a Memorandum of Agreement, whereby, for and in consideration of
the agreement and of the full and faithful compliance by the parties of the terms and
conditions, the parties agreed that TMC shall book all accruing Guarantee Fees stipulated in
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the Corporate Guarantees. Any guarantee fee not paid within 30th of June and 31st of
December of each year (“the Payment Dates”) shall earn interest computed from the relevant
Payment Date up to the date of actual payment of Guarantee Fees. Interest is at 91-day
Philippine TB Rate plus 2% per annum as defined in the O&M Agreement.
31. Equity
a. Capital Stock
Details of the Parent Company’s capital stock follow:
Number of Shares

Amount
(In Millions)

Common shares - P
=1 par value
Authorized shares

5,500,000,000

P
=5,500

Issued shares

4,581,544,408

P
=4,581

b. Excess of Acquisition Cost over the Carrying Value of Minority Interests
On January 29, 2007, ABS-CBN Interactive acquired the remaining 25% interest in ABSCBN Multimedia from the latter’s individual shareholders for P
=11 million. The carrying value
of the interest acquired amounted to P
=4 million as of the acquisition date. The share of the
Parent Company in the excess of cash paid over the carrying value of interest acquired
amounting to P
=4 million was recorded as part of “Excess of acquisition cost over the carrying
value of minority interests” in the 2007 consolidated balance sheet.
On December 20, 2000, ABS-CBN Interactive established an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan available to its officers and employees. As of December 31, 2006, there
were 9,613,314 shares available for the said option. The estimated value of the option
amounted to P
=10 million as of December 31, 2006.
In 2007, ABS-CBN Interactive received from its officers and employees an additional
=2 million for 1,646,133 shares. In December 2007, ABS-CBN paid the officers and
P
employees P
=25 million in exchange for the 11,259,447 shares allocated for the option valued
at P
=12 million as of the date of exchange. The purchase was accounted for as an acquisition
of minority interest. The share of the Parent Company in the excess of cash paid over the
value of the shares amounting to P
=8 million was recorded as part of “Excess of acquisition
cost over the carrying value of minority interests” in the 2007 consolidated balance sheet.
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32. Notes to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
2006

2005

P
=670
–

=394
P
286

P
=266
–

280

118

166

55

22

–

–

–

81

–

–

44

2007
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Acquisition of program rights on
account
Disposal of investment
Acquisition of property and equipment
under capital lease
Payment of bonus through the issuance
of Treasury Shares by ABS-CBN
Acquisition of property and equipment
on account
Acquisition of property and equipment
as settlement of trade receivables

(In Millions)

33. Other Matters
a. In 1972, ABS-CBN discontinued its operations when the government took possession of its
property and equipment. In the succeeding years, the properties were used without
compensation to ABS-CBN by Radio Philippine Network, Inc. (RPN) from 1972 to 1979, and
Maharlika Broadcasting System (MBS) from 1980 to 1986. A substantial portion of these
property and equipmet was also used from 1986 to 1992 without compensation to ABS-CBN
by People’s Television 4, another government entity. In 1986, ABS-CBN resumed
commercial operations and it was granted temporary permits by the government to operate
several television and radio stations.
ABS-CBN, together with Chronicle Broadcasting System, filed a civil case on January 14,
1988 against Ferdinand E. Marcos and his family, RPN, MBS, et. al., before the
Sandiganbayan to press collection of the unpaid rentals for the use of its facilities from
September 1972 to February 1986 totaling P
=305 million plus legal interest compounded
quarterly and exemplary damages of P
=100 million.
ABS-CBN’s BOD resolved on June 27, 1991 to declare as scrip dividends, in favor of all
stockholders of record as of that date, whatever amount that may be recovered from the
foregoing pending claims and the rentals subsequently settled in 1995. The scrip dividends
were declared on March 29, 2000. In 2003, additional scrip dividends of P
=13 million were
recognized for the said stockholders.
On April 28, 1995, ABS-CBN and the government entered into a compromise settlement of
rental claims from 1986 to 1992. The compromise agreement includes payments to ABSCBN of =
P30 million (net of government’s counterclaim against ABS-CBN of P
=68 million) by
way of tax credits or other forms of noncash settlement as full and final settlement of the
rentals from 1986 to 1992. The tax credit certificates were issued in 1998.
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ABS-CBN
ABS-CBN has contingent liabilities with respect to claims and lawsuits filed by third parties.
The events that transpired last February 4, 2006, which resulted in the death of 71 people and
injury to about 200 others led ABS-CBN to shoulder the burial expenses of the dead and
medical expenses of the injured, which did not result in any direct or contingent financial
obligation that is material to ABS-CBN. ABS-CBN has settled all of the funeral and medical
expenses of the victims of the tragedy. Given the income flows and net asset base of
ABS-CBN, said expenses do not constitute a material financial obligation of ABS-CBN, as
ABS-CBN remains in sound financial position to meet its obligations.
As of April 10, 2008, the claims in connection with the events of February 4, 2006 are still
pending and remain contingent liabilities. While the funeral and medical expenses have all
been shouldered by ABS-CBN, there still exist claims for compensation for the deaths and
injuries upon evaluation of these claims, the amount of which have not been declared and
cannot be determined with certainty at this time. ABS-CBN’s management is nevertheless of
the opinion that should there be any adverse judgment based on these claims, this will not
materially affect the Company’s financial position and results of operations.
FGPC
FGPC was assessed by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) on July 19, 2004 for deficiency
income tax for taxable years 2001 and 2000. FGPC filed its Protest Letter to the BIR on
October 5, 2004. On account of the BIR's failure to act on FGPC's Protest within the prescribe
period, FGPC filed with the Court of Tax Appeals (CTA) on June 30, 2005 a Petition against
the Final Assessment Notices and Formal letters of Demand issued by the BIR. On February
20, 2008, the CTA granted FGPC's Motion for Suspension of Collection of Tax until the case
is resolved with finality. Management believes that the resolution of this assessment will not
materially affect First Gen Group’s audited consolidated financial statements.
On June 25, 2003, FGPC received various Notices of Assessment and Tax Bills dated April 15
and 21, 2003 from the Provincial Government of Batangas, through the Office of the
Provincial Assessor, imposing an annual real property tax (RPT) on steel towers,
cable/transmission lines and accessories (the T-Line) amounting to $0.22 million
(P
=12 million) per year. FGPC, claiming exemption from said RPT, appealed the assessment
to the Provincial Local Board of Assessment Appeals (LBAA) and filed a Petition on
August 13, 2003, praying for the following: (1) that the Notices of Assessment and Tax Bills
issued by the Provincial Assessor be recalled and revoked; and (2) that the Provincial Assessor
drop from the Assessment Roll the 230 KV transmission lines from Sta. Rita to Calaca in
accordance with Section 206 of the Local Government Code (LGC). FGPC argued that the
T-Line does not constitute real property for RPT purposes, and even assuming that the T-Line
is regarded as real property, FGPC is still not liable for RPT as it is NPC/TRANSCO, a
government-owned and -controlled corporation (GOCC) engaged in the generation and/or
transmission of electric power, which has actual, direct and exclusive use of the T-Line.
Pursuant to Section 234(c) of the LGC, a GOCC engaged in the generation and/or
transmission of electric power and which has actual, direct and exclusive use thereof, is
exempt from RPT. FGPC sought for, and was granted, a preliminary injunction by the
Regional Trial Court (Branch 7) of Batangas City to enjoin the Provincial Treasurer of
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Batangas City from collecting the RPT pending the decision of the LBAA. Despite the
injunction, the LBAA issued an Order dated September 22, 2005 requiring FGPC to pay the
RPT within 15 days from receipt of the Order. On October 22, 2005, FGPC filed an appeal
before the Central Board of Assessment Appeals (CBAA) assailing the validity of the LBAA
order. In a Resolution rendered on December 12, 2006, the CBAA set aside the LBAA Order
and remanded the case to the LBAA. The LBAA was directed to proceed with the case on the
merits without requiring FGPC to first pay the RPT on the questioned assessment.
In a decision dated January 30, 2006, the Regional Trial Court (Branch 7) of Batangas City
denied a 2nd motion to lift the injunction previously issued by the court to stop the Province
from collecting the tax pending decision of the LBAA. Hence, the preliminary injunction
stays. The court is scheduled to conduct a pre-trial of the main case for prohibition.
BPPC
There are ongoing cases involving the assessment of RPT and franchise tax by the local
government. BPPC believes that under the Project Agreement, any RPT and franchise tax that
may be found due is for the sole account of NPC.
i. The first case was filed by NPC with the LBAA of Province of La Union in connection

with the assessment of RPT by the Provincial Treasurer on BPPC’s machinery and
equipment from 1995 to 1998. Following the denial of NPC’s petition for exemption by
the LBAA and NPC’s appeal to the CBAA, BPPC formally intervened in the CBAA case
to further protect its interest. The CBAA affirmed the decision of the LBAA. Both NPC
and BPPC filed their respective appeals to the CTA. Last February 13, 2006, the CTA
promulgated a decision denying the respective Appeal’s filed by BPPC and NPC. While
NPC elevated the matter directly to the Supreme Court (SC), BPPC filed a Motion for
Reconsideration (MR) with the Court of Tax Appeals (CTA), which denied said motion
on July 10, 2006. BPPC then filed a Petition for Review on Certiorari with the SC on
September 11, 2006, reiterating NPC’s exemption from RPT. In a minute resolution dated
October 4, 2006, the SC’s First Division denied BPPC’s petition on the ground that it
failed to show that the CTA committed any reversible error as to warrant the exercise by
the SC of its appellate jurisdiction. An MR was filed by BPPC on December 12, 2006.
The MR was denied with finality by the 3rd Division of the SC in another minute
resolution dated February 26, 2007. BPPC filed a second MR on April 16, 2007
requesting for the consolidation of all related RPT cases and the elevation to the Supreme
Court En Banc for decision. The petition seeks a definitive ruling on the issue of
exemption from RPT of the machinery and equipment of all NPC-independent power
producers (NPC-IPPs). The second MR was consequently denied with finality in July
2007. In the light of these developments, the Province of La Union filed with the SC on
August 22, 2007 a Motion to Dismiss the NPC case. The said Motion remains undecided
to date.
There is an outstanding May 2001 Writ of Injunction issued by the RTC of La Union
which precludes the Province from collecting the RPT and levying the properties until
further orders by the Court.
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Delinquency on the real property taxes of the machinery, buildings and improvements of
the Bauang Plant. The properties are to be auctioned on February 01, 2008 at the
Provincial Capitol should the amounts due on the delinquent taxes not be settled within
ten (10) days from Notice issuance. On December 18, 2007, BPPC counsels filed with the
Regional Trial Court (RTC) of Bauang a Manifestation disputing the Final Notice of
Delinquency in view of the Writ of Preliminary Injunction. Initial hearing for the
Manifestation was initially scheduled on December 19, 2007 but was postponed to
January 29, 2008. NPC similarly filed their Manifestation. The Manifestation was
admitted by the RTC for resolution during the January 29, 2008 hearing, but was not
timely enough to prevent the auction which proceeded as scheduled on 1 February 2008.
In the absence of any bidder, the Province of La Union forfeited the property. The Local
Government Code of 1991 accords the owner of the property sold the right to redeem the
property within one year from date of forfeiture, or until February 1, 2009, by paying the
amount of the tax plus expenses of sale and interest of not more than 2% per month on the
purchase price. During the one-year redemption period, BPPC will be entitled to remain
in possession of the properties and the right to any income generated by them. Further,
since the sale was in violation of a valid and subsisting order of injunction, BPPC is
exploring its legal remedies to declare the sale as null and void.
ii. The second case was filed by NPC, for itself and on behalf of BPPC, following issuance

of a revised assessment of RPT on BPPC’s machinery and equipment on July 15, 2003 by
the Municipal Assessor of the Municipality of Bauang, La Union. Under the said revised
Assessment, the maximum tax liability for the period 1995 to 2003 is about $18.72
million (P
=775.1 million), based on the maximum 80% assessment level imposable on
privately-owned entities and a tax rate of 2%. In addition, interest on the unpaid amounts
(2% per month not exceeding 36 months) has reached a total amount of $11.81 million
(P
=489 million). The case remains pending with the LBAA of the Province of La Union.
In addition to the case filed by BPPC, there are two other cases involving the very same
issues which are still pending with the Third Division of the SC. Notwithstanding the
denial of its MR, BPPC believes it will benefit if the SC conducts a thorough review of
these two pending cases and subsequently rules in favor of NPC on the substantive and
novel issue on the validity of the imposition of RPT on the machinery and equipment
being operated under the BOT scheme, which was not squarely addressed in the BPPC
case.
There is also an outstanding preliminary injunction against the collection of RPT by the
Province of La Union, which is for the benefit of both BPPC and NPC, and the Province
cannot collect the tax until the NPC petition (involving the same facts and issues and the
very same machinery and equipment, which has been given due course and is pending
with the Third Division of the SC) is also finally resolved.
In any event, BPPC believes that NPC shall be directly responsible for the payment of all
RPT that may be assessed on machinery and equipment at Bauang Plant, pursuant to the
terms of the Project Agreement which specifically provides that NPC shall pay all real
estate taxes and assessments in respect of the site, machinery and equipment and
improvements of the power plant complex.
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To date, the potential maximum tax liability on BPPC’s machinery and equipment for the
period from 1995 to 2007 is about $26.6 million (P
=1.1 billion), based on the maximum
80% assessment level imposable on privately-owned entities and a tax rate of 2%. In
addition, maximum interest on the tax liability (2% per month not exceeding 36 months)
amounts to $17.76 million (P
=735.42 million).
While BPPC maintains its position that, pursuant to the terms of the Project Agreement, it
is NPC that is ultimately responsible for the payment of all real property taxes related to
the power plant, and that BPPC has the right of recourse against NPC for whatever
amount of real property taxes it may be required to pay, BPPC recognized as of
December 31, 2007 a “Provision for real property taxes” amounting to $44.36 million
(including interest) in accordance with PAS 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets.” Correspondingly, the BPPC also recognized a “Receivable from
NPC” for the same amount representing its claim for reimbursement for real property
taxes. The combined effect of the provision and the claim for reimbursement is presented
on a net basis in BPPC’s statement of income.
iii. The third case was filed on October 19, 2005 by NPC, for itself and on behalf of BPPC,

following receipt of Statement of Account from the Municipal Treasurer dated August 5,
2005 for RPT on BPPC’s buildings and improvements from 2003 to August 2005
amounting to $0.10 million (P
=4.2 million). The case is pending with the LBAA of the
Province of La Union. NPC paid all RPT on Buildings and Improvements directly to the
local government from 1995 until 2003, when it stopped payment of the tax and claimed
an exemption under the Local Government Code.
Despite the pending case at the LBAA, these properties were included in the Final Notice
of Delinquency and Warrant of Levy issued by the Province of La Union.
To date, the potential maximum tax liability on BPPC’s buildings and improvements for
the year ended December 31, 2007 is about $1.1 million (P
=48.45 million), pursuant to
Statement of Account from the Municipal Treasurer dated November 14, 2007, including
alleged back-taxes and interest dating back from 1995.

iv. BPPC also filed a Petition for Certiorari and Prohibition in September 2004 to contest an

assessment for franchise tax for the period 2000 to 2003 amounting to $0.82 million
(P
=33.0 million), including surcharges and penalties, on the ground that BPPC is not a
public utility which is required by law to obtain a legislative franchise before operating,
thus is not subject to franchise taxes. The case is pending before the RTC of Bauang, La
Union.
Both NPC and BPPC believe that they are not subject to pay franchise tax to the local
government. In any case, BPPC believes that the Project Agreement with NPC allows
BPPC to claim indemnity from NPC for any new imposition, including franchise tax,
incurred by BPPC that was not originally contemplated when it entered into said Project
Agreement.
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Last September 2005, Mirant Global Corporation, on behalf of Claredon Towers Holdings
Corporation (the Purchaser of PPC), notified FPHC, Panay Electric Company, Inc. and FPPC
(collectively referred to as the “Sellers), claiming for indemnity for taxes assessed by the BIR
on PPC for the year 2000 amounting to approximately $6.24 million (P
=331 million).
The Sellers have denied any liability to indemnify the Purchaser on the ground that (i) the
claim was made after the expiry of the statute of limitations for the taxable period to which the
claim relates; (ii) the claim was made beyond the allowable period for claims (18 months after
Closing Date) indicated in the Sale and Purchase Agreement (SPA) entered into by the parties
in June 2003; and (iii) the Purchaser had failed to provide the Sellers the proper written notice
within the appropriate time under the SPA.
In the meantime, the Purchaser has issued a waiver on the statute of limitations (without
abandoning its defense that the assessment of the BIR had already prescribed) and is
conducting discussions with the BIR.
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, there are no provisions for probable losses arising from
legal contingencies recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
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corporate addresses
Benpres Holdings Corporation
4/F Benpres Building
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center
1605 Pasig City
T +632 449 2345

First Philippine Holdings Corporation
4/F Benpres Building
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center
1605 Pasig City
T +632 631 8024

ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation
Sgt. Esguerra Avenue
corner Mother Ignacia Street
1101 Diliman, Quezon City
T +632 924 4101 to 22

First Gen Corporation
3/F Benpres Building
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center
1605 Pasig City
T +632 449 6400

Sky Cable Corporation
33/F East Tower, PSE Centre
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center
1605 Pasig City
T +632 636 9292

Manila Electric Company
Ortigas Avenue
1605 Pasig City
T +632 631 2222

Rockwell Land Corporation
Rockwell Drive
Bel-Air, Makati City
T +632 793 0088

First Philippine Infrastructure
Development Corporation
5/F Benpres Building
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center
1605 Pasig City
T +632 634 3715

Professional Services, Incorporated
(The Medical City) Ortigas Avenue
Pasig City
T +632 635 6789

Bayan Telecommunications, Inc.
Bayan Roosevelt Operations Center
234 Roosevelt Avenue
San Francisco Del Monte, Quezon City
T +632 449 3000

Manila North Tollways Corporation
NLEX Compound, Balintawak
1400 Caloocan City
T +632 479 3000
Tollways Management Corporation
Km 12 Balintawak Toll Plaza
North Luzon Expressway
1400 Caloocan City
T +632 580 8900

contact information
Stock Transfer Agent
Securities Transfer Services, Inc.
4/F Benpres Building
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center
1605 Pasig City
Telephone +632 631 8024 ext. 6151 to 6156
External Auditors
Sycip Gorres Velayo and Co.
SGV Building 6760 Ayala Avenue
Makati City
T +632 891 0307
Legal Counsel
The Law Firm of Quiason Makalintal
Barot Torres and Ibarra
21/F Robinsons – PCIBank Tower
ADB Avenue corner Poveda Road
Pasig City
T +632 631 0981
Bankers
Bank of the Philippine Islands
BDO Universal Bank
ING Bank Manila
AIG Philam Savings Bank

Investor Relations
Cybele Lucero-Regalado
Tel. +632 449 2418
Fax +632 634 3009
Email ir_benpres@benpres.com.ph

Corporate Communications & Media Relations
Rosan Cruz
Tel. +632 449 2856
Fax: +632 633 3520
Email: rcruz@benpres.com.ph
Carla Paras-Sison
Tel. +632 449 2467
Fax: +632 633 3520
Email: cpsison@benpres.com.ph
Internet users can access information at www.benpres-holdings.com
All information in this Annual Report is correct to the best of our
knowledge, but does not constitute an assumption of liability or a
guarantee of particular characteristics.
This publication may not be reprinted in its entirety without the company’s
permission.
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